
Larry Cretul
Speaker

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

Wednesday, March 3, 2010
8:00 AM -10:30 AM

306 House Office Building

Robert C. "Rob" Schenck
Chair



Committee Meeting Notice
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

Start Date and Time:

End Date and Time:

Location:
Duration:

Wednesday, March 03/ 2010 08:00 am

Wednesday, March 03, 2010 10:30 am

306 HOB
2.50 hrs

Consideration of the following biJI(s) with proposed committee substitute(s):

PCS for HB 131 -- Absent Uniformed Services and Overseas Voters

Consideration of the following biJI(s):

HB 625 Voter Information Cards by Gibson
HB 1207 Campaign Financing by McKeel

Consideration of the following proposed committee biJI(s):

PCB GAP 10-03 -- Public Record Exemption for E911 Recordings
PCB GAP 10-06 -- OGSR Voter Information
PCB GAP 10-07 -- OGSR Commission on Ethics
PCB GAP 10-08 -- OGSR GAL Identification and Location Information
PCB GAP 10-10 -- OGSR Identification of a Minor
PCB GAP 10-11 -- OGSR Florida Self-Insurers Guaranty Association
PCB GAP 10-12 -- OGSR Insurance Claim Data Exchange Information
PCB GAP 10-18 -- OGSR Domestic Security Oversight Council
PCB GAP 10-22 -- Fire Sprinklers
PCB GAP 10-23 -- Voter Interface Device Requirements

Department of the Lottery:
1. Update on a consolidation plan regarding excess office space in the Tallahassee

Headquarters "
2. Discussion of its rulemaking authority, including its grant of emergency rulemaking

authority

NOTICE FINALIZED on 03/01/2010 15:36 by Ellinor.Martha

03/01/2010 3:36:23PM Leagis ® Page 1 of 1





BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCS for HB 131 Absent Uniformed Services and Overseas Voters
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 1682

1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

ACTION

Orig. Comm.:

REFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ANALYST STAFF DIRE~!.a:r, '

________ MCDo~ Wiliiamsont"tUAf

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The recent enactment of the Military and Overseas Voter Empowerment (MOVE) Act with the Military Defense
Authorization Act (Public Law 111-84) expands the rights of voters subject to the Uniformed and Overseas
Citizens Absentee Voting Act. At a minimum, the MOVE Act allows uniformed services members and their
spouses and dependents absent from their place of residence whether inside or outside the United States, and
civilians overseas to:

• Submit a request for and receive a voter registration application and an absentee ballot request form by
mail or electronically,

• Receive from the supervisor of elections a blank (unvoted) absentee ballot by mail or electronically,
• Require the blank (unvoted) absentee ballot to be sent by mail or electronically no later than 45 days

before an election, and
• Track via a free access system whether the voted absentee ballot has been received.

The bill adds a definition of "absent uniformed services voter" and amends the current definition of "overseas
voter" to conform to changes in federal law. This definitional change makes clear that uniformed services
voters who are stateside, but away from their place of residence, are governed the same under the Florida
Election Code as are those voters who are overseas.

Upon receiving a request for an absentee ballot, the supervisor of elections must notify an absent uniformed
services voter or overseas voter of the free access system designated by the department for determining
absentee ballot status which is a new federal requirement. lfimeframes for sending an absentee ballot and
methods of transmission of the ballot to the absent uniformed voter and the overseas voter are amended to
conform to recent changes in federal law. The bill requires the department to prescribe rules for a ballot to be
sent to absent uniformed services voters and overseas voters if candidate certification for election cannot be
accomplished within specified timeframes. It amends provisions relating to the federal postcard application to
conform to the use of means other than mail to send an absentee ballot and to remove language regarding its
two year effectiveness as registration, which was recently removed by changes to federal law.

The bill requires the supervisor of elections to record an overseas voter's e-mail address, if provided, in the
voter's request for an absentee ballot, in the absentee ballot record. The bill then expands the information that
a supervisor of elections must provide an overseas voter via e-mail to include confirmation of the ballot request
and notification of the estimated date the ballot will be sent to the voter and confirmation of the receipt of the
voted ballot.

The bill takes effect upon becoming a law.

There is an indeterminate fiscal impact on state expenditures and a possible minimal fiscal impact on local
governments. See "Fiscal Comments."

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcs0131.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/1/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Current Situation

The Florida Election Code (Chs. 97-106, F.S.)

An overseas voter1 may request an absentee ballot or apply for voter registration with a Federal Post
Card Application obtained from a Voting Assistance Officer or through the Federal Voter Assistance
Program of the U.S. Department of Defense. Florida law specifies that the absentee ballot will be
mailed if the ballots are available for mailing and if the registration information provided is in order. The
postcard application request for an absentee ballot is effective for elections through the next two
general elections.2 Florida law also allows the overseas voter to request an absentee ballot by calling,
mailing, faxing or e-mailing the supervisor of elections.

A supervisor of elections is required to record specific information for each request for any absentee
ballot received; such as date of the request, date the ballot was delivered, date the ballot was received
by the supervisor, and other information deemed necessary. The information is provided in electronic
format, updated each day, and provided to the Divi~on of Elections of the Department of State.
Information collected is confidential and is made available only to the voter on request or to certain
specified other groups.3

Under the Florida Election Code, an absentee ballot requested by an overseas voter who is qualified to
vote must be mailed by the supervisor of elections not less than 35 days before the primary election
and not less than 45 days before the general election.4 Forwardablemail is the method of transmission

IAn overseas voter is defmed in s. 97.021(22) and clarified in the defmition of "uniformed services" in 97.21(38), F.S., as a member of
the Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine Corps, Coast Guard, the commissioned corps of the Public Health Service, and the commissioned
corps of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration while in the active service who is a permanent resident ofthe state and
is temporarily residing outside the territorial limits ofthe u.s. and the District ofColumbia; a member of the Merchant Marine of the
U.S. who is a permanent resident of the state and is temporarily residing outside the territorial limits of the u.s. and the District of
Columbia; and, any other U.S. citizen who is a permanent resident of the state and is temporarily residing outside the territorial limits
of the u.s. and the. District of Columbia, who is qualified and registered to vote as provided by law. Florida elections law does not
include a definition for "absent uniformed services voter" as is provided in the Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee Voting Act
(UOCAVA).
2 See s. 101.694, F.S.
3 See s. 101.62(3), F.S.
4 See s. 101.62(4)(a), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: pcs0131.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/112010



specified for voters who are entitled to vote by absentee ballot under the Uniformed and Overseas
Citizens Absentee Voting Act.5

If an overseas voter's request for an absentee ballot includes an e-mail address, the supervisor of
elections must e-mail the voter a list of candidates who will be on the ballots. The list of candidates for
the primary and general election must be sent no later than 30 days before each election. Information
pertaining to whether the absentee ballot was sent or received is not required.6

,7

Absentee ballots received from overseas voters are presumed to be mailed on the date provided on the
outside of the return envelope regardless of the absence of a postmark date on the envelope or a date
that is later than the election date.8

The Department of State is required to determine if secure electronic means can be established for
receiving ballots from overseas voters. Additionally, if security can be established, the department is
required to adopt rules authorizing a supervisor of elections to accept a request for an absentee ballot
or a voted absentee ballot from an overseas voter by secure facsimile transmission (fax) or other
secure electronic means. Acceptance of a voted ballot requires verification of the voter, security of the
transmission, and the recording of each ballot.9 The department has adopted a rule allowing overseas
voters to receive their blank ballot by mail, fax, or e-mail. Voted ballots, however, must be returned by
mail or fax. 10 As provided in law, the department may authorize other methods of returning voted
ballots if it determines that secure methods can be established.

As of this date, the Department of State has authorized only one secured electronic transmission
program. In the 2008 General Election, the Okaloosa County's Distance Balloting Pilot Program
(ODEP) in conjunction with Operation BRAVO Foundation was implemented. Supervised absentee
voting kiosks were established at U.S. military installations in Mildenhall, England; Ramstein, Germany;
and Kadena, Japan. Each kiosk location permitted voting by secure electronic remote voting
technology under the management and control of the Supervisor of Elections. These voting stations
were connected by a secure Virtual Private Network (VPN) to a secure voting server in Florida. Ninety­
three ballots using 23 different ballot styles were cast in the 2008 election. 11

Recent Changes in Federal Law Relating to Military and Overseas Voters

The Military and Overseas Voter Empowerment Act (MOVE) was signed into law on October 28, 2009
as part of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 201012

. The MOVE Act amends the
Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee Voting Act (UOCAVA) which pertains to absentee voting
for members of the United States uniformed services and merchant marines who are overseas or
absent stateside from their place of residence, their family members who are also absent, and U.S.
citizens residing outside the U.S. 13 Some provisions"pertain to new requirements concerning state
actions while others relate to the U.S. Department of Defense. Additionally, some requirements impact
the November 2010 General Election while others take effect after the 2010 General Election.
UOCAVA and MOVE pertain only to Federal elections. The following provisions take effect prior to the
2010 General Election:

• Each state must establish procedures that allow UOCAVA voters to request voter registration
applications and absentee ballot applications by mail or electronically for general, special,
primary, and runoff elections for Federal office. Voters must be able to state a preference for
how information is to be received. The state must transmit voter registration applications and

5 See s. 101.62(4)(b), F.S.
6 Analysis ofHB 131, Department of State, November 5, 2009, p.l.
7 See s. 101.6952(1), F.S.
8 See s. 101.6952(2), F.S.
9 See s. 101.697, F.S.
10 Rule 2.013, F.A.C.
II Analysis ofHB 131, Department of State, November 5,2009, p. 1.
12 P.L. 111-084.
13 UOCAVA is 42 U.S.C. 1973ff et seq. and MOVE adds Part H to Title V.
STORAGE NAME: pcs0131.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/1/2010

PAGE: 3



absentee ballot applications based on the preference of the voter or in accordance with state
law, if no preference is given, or if there is no state law, then by mail.

• Each state must designate at least one means of electronic communication for use by voters to
request voter registration or absentee ballot application and for the state to send such
information and to provide UOCAVA voters with election and voting information. The means of
electronic communication must be included on all information and instructional materials sent
with the ballot materials.

• Each state may provide a means of electronic communication for jurisdictions in the state to
communicate with UOCAVA voters.

• Each state must develop procedures for transmitting blank ballots to UOCAVA voters, including
military stateside, by mail and electronically; must include a means for the voter to designate
how he or she wants to receive the ballot, by mail or electronically; and must send the
requested information based on the stated preference. To the extent practicable, privacy and
integrity of absentee ballots must be protected as well as the privacy of the identity and
personal data of the voter throughout the transmission process.

• Each state chief election official must work with local jurisdictions to develop a free access
system allowing a UOCAVA voter to determine if the voted absentee ballot was received by the
election official.

• Absentee ballots must be sent 45 days before the primary and general elections -- applies to all
UOCAVA voters. Provision for certain waivers regarding timeframes is established for states.

• Any runoff election must have a written plan to make absentee ballots available to UOCAVA
voters with sufficient time to vote.

• The federal provision allowing one request to serve as a request to receive absentee ballots
through the next two federal general elections is repealed. 14

On December 31,2010, the use of the Federal Write-In Absentee Ballot (FWAB) is expanded to
include all special and primary elections as well as general elections for federal office.

Provision is made for financial assistance in implementing MOVE. There is a 5 percent match
requirement.

Effect of the Bill

The bill adds a definition of "absent uniformed services voter" and amends the current definition of
"overseas voter" to conform to changes in federal law. This definitional change makes clear that
uniformed services voters who are stateside, but away from their place of residence, are governed the
same under the Florida Election Code as are those voters who are overseas.

Upon receiving a request for an absentee ballot from an absent uniformed services voter or an
overseas voter, the supervisor of elections must notify the absentee voter of the free access system
designated by the department for determining absentee ballot status which is a new federal
requirement. Timeframes for sending an absentee ballot and methods of transmission of the ballot to
the absent uniformed voter and the overseas voter are amended to conform to recent changes in
federal law, including the transmission of an absentee ballot by facsimile or electronic mail. The bill
requires the department to prescribe rules for a ballot to be sent to absent uniformed services voters
and overseas voters if candidate certification for election cannot be accomplished within specified
timeframes. It also amends provisions relating to the federal postcard application to conform to the use
of means other than mail to send an absentee ballot and to remove language regarding its two year
effectiveness as registration, which was recently removed by changes to federal law.

The bill requires the supervisor of elections to record an overseas voter's e-mail address.ifprovided.in
the voter's request for an absentee ballot, in the absentee ballot record. The bill then expands the
information that a supervisor of elections must provide an overseas voter via e-mail to include
confirmation of the ballot request and notification of the estimated date the ballot will be sent to the
voter and confirmation of the receipt of the voted ballot.

14 Florida law requires ballots to be sent through two general elections.
STORAGE NAME: pcs0131.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/1/2010

PAGE: 4



8. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Amends s. 97.021, F.S., to add a definition for "absent uniformed services voter" and to
amend the definition of "overseas voter" to conform to federal law related to military and overseas
voters.

Section 2. Amends s. 98.0981, F.S., to correct a cross-reference.

Section 3. Amends s. 101.62, F.S., to require supervisors of elections to accept certain requests for
absentee ballots; to require supervisors of elections to notify an absent uniformed services voter and
overseas voter of the free access system designated by the department for determining absentee ballot
status; and to authorize the department to prescribe rules for a ballot to be sent to absent uniformed
services voters and overseas voters if candidate certification for election cannot be accomplished within
specified timeframes.

Section 4. Amends s. 101.694, F.S., to require supervisors of elections to mail ballots upon receipt of
the federal postcard application and to remove provisions relating to two year applicability of the
application in compliance with changes in federal law.

Section 5. Amends s. 101.6952, F.S., to require a supervisor of elections to record the overseas
voter's e-mail address in the absentee ballot record, confirm bye-mail the receipt of the ballot request
and provide the estimated date for the ballot being sent, and confirm bye-mail the receipt of the voted
absentee ballot.

Section 6. Amends s. 379.352, F.S., to correct a cross-reference.

Section 7. Provides that the bill takes effect upon becoming a law.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

Indeterminate. See "Fiscal Comments."

8. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

Indeterminate. See "Fiscal Comments."

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcs0131.GAP.doc
3/1/2010

PAGE: 5



D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

Correspondence from the Florida Association of Supervisors of Elections indicates there is no cost
associated with section 5 of the bill; however, some programming changes might be involved. 15

Costs related to implementation of the "single free access system" for persons who vote absentee
ballot to be able to access information on the status of their absentee ballots is indeterminate for the
state and local levels at this time. The Department of State has been gathering information from
vendors and others on various ways to implement the federal requirement. According to department
staff, costs would be for programming and implementation changes needed for such a system;
however, different implementation methodologies are being considered. 16

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill is exempt from mandate requirements because it is amending the elections laws.

2. Other:

Under section 5 of the Voting Rights Act, new legislation that implements a voting change, including,
but not limited to, a change in the manner of voting, change in candidacy requirements and
qualifications, change in the composition of the electorate that may vote for a candidate, or change
affecting creation or abolition of an elective office, is subject to preclearance by the U.S. Department
of Justice. The preclearance review is to determine if the change has a discriminatory purpose or
effect that denies or abridges the right to vote on account of race, color or membership in a language
minority group in a covered jurisdiction. Florida has five covered jurisdictions subject to
preclearance: Collier, Hardee, Hendry, Hillsborough, and Monroe. If the Attorney General objects to
the voting change, the legislation is unenforceable.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

The bill conforms current statutory authorization for department rulemaking authority for a ballot to be
sent to specified voters if candidate certification for election cannot be accomplished within specified
timeframes to changes in voter definitions and federal requirements for transmission of certain
information to such voters.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

15 Information received from Mr. Bill Cowles, Chair of the Legislative Committee, Florida Association of Supervisors ofElections,
December 30,2009. Correspondence on file with the Governmental Affairs Policy Committee.
16 Conversation with Department of State staff, January 25,2010.
STORAGE NAME: pcs0131.GAP.doc PAGE: 6
DATE: 3/1/2010



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

A bill to be entitled

system for determining absentee ballot status; providing a

timeframe for an absentee ballot to be sent to each absent

uniformed services voter and overseas voter; providing

acceptable formats for requesting an absentee ballot;

modifying circumstances under which the department is

authorized to prescribe rules for a ballot to be sent to

absent uniformed services voters and overseas voters;

An act relating to absent uniformed services and overseas

voters; amending s. 97.021, F.S.; defining the term

"absent uniformed services voter"; revising the definition

of "overseas voter"; amending s. 98.0981, F.S., relating

to statewide voter information; conforming a cross­

reference; amending s. 101.62, F.S.; requiring the

supervisor of elections to notify the absent uniformed

services voter and overseas voter of the free access

YEARORIGINAL

amending s. 101.694, F.S.; conforming timeframes for

sending an absentee ballot upon receipt of federal

postcard application to those prescribed in s. 101.62,

F.S.; deleting the requirementpfor a federal postcard

application request to be effective through two regularly

scheduled general elections pursuant to changes in federal

law; amending s. 101.6952, F.S.; revising responsibilities

of the supervisor of elections when an overseas voter's

request for an absentee ballot includes an e-mail address;

requiring the supervisor to record the e-mail address in

the absentee ballot record and, via e-mail, confirm that

the request was received, inform the voter of the

BILL

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Page 1of 8
pes HB 131.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

29 estimated date the ballot will be sent, and notify the

30 voter when the absentee ballot is received; amending s.

31 379.352, F.S., relating to recreational licenses and

32 permits; conforming cross-references; providing an

33 effective date.

34

35 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

36

37 Section 1. Subsections (2) through (21) and (23) through

38 (43) of section 97.021, Florida Statutes, are renumbered as

39 subsections (3) through (22) and (24) through (44),

40 respectively, a new subsection (2) is added to that section and

41 present subsection (22) is amended to read:

42 97.021 Definitions.-For the purposes of this code, except

43 where the context clearly indicates otherwise, the term:

44 (2) "Absent uniformed services voter" means:

45 (a) A member of a uniformed service on active duty who, by

46 reason of such active duty, is absent from the place of

47 residence where the member is otherwise qualified to vote;

48 (b) A member of the merchant ~arine who, by reason of

49 service in the merchant marine, is absent from the place of

50 residence where the member is otherwise qualified to vote; or

51 (c) A spouse or dependent of a member referred to in

52 paragraph (a) or (b) who, by reason of the active duty or

53 service of the member, is absent from the place of residence

54 where the spouse or dependent is otherwise qualified to vote.

55 (23)~ "Overseas voter" means:

56 (a) An absent uniformed services voter who, by reason of

Page 2of8
PCS HB 131.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

57 active duty or service is absent from the United States on the

58 date of the election involved ~4embers of the uniformed services

59 \.Thile in the active service \Jho are permanent residents of the

60 state and are temporarily residing outside the territorial

61 limits of the United States and the District of Columbia;

62 (b) A person who resides outside the United States and is

63 qualified to vote in the last place in which the person was

64 domiciled before leaving the United States ~4embers of the

65 Herchant Harine of the United States \.Tho are permanent residents

66 of the state and are temporarily residing outside the

67 territorial limits of the United States and the District of

68 Columbia; or aBEl:

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

(c) A person who resides outside the United States and,

but for such residence, would be qualified to vote in the last

place in which the person was domiciled before leaving the

United States Other citi2ens of the United States \lho are

permanent residents of the state and are temporarily residing

outside the territorial limits of the United States and the

District of Columbia,

\Jho are qualified and registered to vote as provided by law.

Section 2. Subsection (3) of section 98.0981, Florida

79 Statutes, is amended to read:

80 98.0981 Reports; voting history; statewide voter

81 registration system information; precinct-level election

82 results; book closing statistics.-

83 (3 ) PRECINCT-LEVEL BOOK CLOSING STATISTICS.-After the date

84 of book closing but before the date of an election as defined in

Page 3 of 8
PCS HB 131.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

85 s. 97.021(11)~ to fill a national, state, county, or district

86 office, or to vote on a proposed constitutional amendment, the

87 department shall compile the following precinct-level

88 statistical data for each county:

89

90

(a) Precinct numbers.

(b) Total number of active registered voters by party for

91 each precinct.

92 Section 3. Paragraph (c) is added to subsection (1) of

93 Section 101.62, Florida Statutes, and subsection (4) of that

94 section is amended to read:

95

96

97

101.62 Request for absentee ballots.-

( 1)

(c) Upon receiving a request for an absentee ballot from

98 an absent uniformed services voter or overseas voter, the

99 supervisor of elections shall notify the voter of the free

100 access system that has been designated by the department for

101 determining the status of his or her absentee ballot.

102 (2) A request for an absentee ballot to be mailed to a

103 voter must be received no later than 5 p.m. on the sixth day

104 before the election by the supervispr of elections. The

105 supervisor of elections shall mail absentee ballots to voters

106 requesting ballots by such deadline no later than 4 days before

107 the election.

108 (4) (a) No later than 45 days before each election, the

109 supervisor of elections shall send an absentee ballot as

110 provided in subparagraph (b)2. to each absent uniformed services

111 voter and to each overseas voter who has requested an absentee

112 ballot. To each absent qualified elector overseas \lho has

Page 4 of 8
PCS HB 131.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

113 requested an absentee ballot, the supervisor of elections shall

114 mail an absentee ballot not less than 35 days before the primary

115 election and not less than 45 days before the general election.

116 (b) The supervisor shall provide an absentee ballot to

117 each elector by whom a request for that ballot has been made by

118 one of the following means:

119 1. By nonforwardable, return-if-undeliverablemail to the

120 elector's current mailing address on file with the supervisor,

121 unless the elector specifies in the request that:

122 a. The elector is absent from the county and does not plan

123 to return before the day of the election;

124 b. The elector is temporarily unable to occupy the

125 residence because of hurricane, tornado, flood, fire, or other

126 emergency or natural disaster; or

127 c. The elector is in a hospital, assisted living facility,

128 nursing home, short-term medical or rehabilitation facility, or

129 correctional facility,

130

131 in which case the supervisor shall mail the ballot by

132 nonforwardable, return-if-undeliverqblemail to any other

133 address the elector specifies in the request.

134 2. By forwardab1e mail, e-mail, or facsimile machine

135 transmission to absent uniformed services voters and overseas

136 voters who are entitled to vote by absentee ballot under the

137 Uniformed and Overseas Citi3ens Absentee Voting Act. The absent

138 uniformed services voter or overseas voter may designate in the

139 absentee ballot request the preferred method of transmission. If

140 the voter does not designate the method of transmission, the

Page 5 of 8
PCS HB 131.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

141 absentee ballot shall be mailed.

142 3. By personal delivery before 7 p.m. on election day to

143 the elector, upon presentation of the identification required in

144 s. 101.043.

145 4. By delivery to a designee on election day or up to 5

146 days prior to the day of an election. Any elector may designate

147 in writing a person to pick up the ballot for the elector;

148 however, the person designated may not pick up more than two

149 absentee ballots per election, other than the designee's own

150 ballot, except that additional ballots may be picked up for

151 members of the designee's immediate family. For purposes of this

152 section, "immediate family" means the designee's spouse or the

153 parent, child, grandparent, or sibling of the designee or of the

154 designee's spouse. The designee shall provide to the supervisor

155 the written authorization by the elector and a picture

156 identification of the designee and must complete an affidavit.

157 The designee shall state in the affidavit that the designee is

158 authorized by the elector to pick up that ballot and shall

159 indicate if the elector is a member of the designee's immediate

160 family and, if so, the relationship... The department shall

161 prescribe the form of the affidavit. If the supervisor is

162 satisfied that the designee is authorized to pick up the ballot

163 and that the signature of the elector on the written

164 authorization matches the signature of the elector on file, the

165 supervisor shall give the ballot to that designee for delivery

166 to the elector.

167 (5 ) In the event that the department glections Canvassing

168 Commission is unable to certify candidates for the results of an

Page 6 of 8
PCS HB 131.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

169 election for a state office in time to comply with paragraph

170 (4) (a) subsection (4), the Department of State is authorized to

171 prescribe rules for a ballot to be sent to absent uniformed

172 services voters and electors overseas voters.

173 Section 4. Subsection (1) of section 101.694, Florida

174 Statutes, is amended to read:

175 101.694 Mailing of ballots upon receipt of federal

176 postcard application.-

177 (1) Upon receipt of a federal postcard application for an

178 absentee ballot executed by a person whose registration is in

179 order or whose application is sufficient to register or update

180 the registration of that person, the supervisor shall send the

181 ballot in accordance with s. 101.62(4) mail to the applicant a

182 ballot, if the ballots are available for mailing. The federal

183 postcard application request for an absentee ballot shall be

184 effective for all elections through the nOJ!:t tr,m regularly

185 scheduled general elections.

186 Section 5. Section 101.6952, Florida Statutes, is amended

187 to read:

101.6952 Absentee ballots for,overseas voters.-188

189 (1 ) If an overseas voter's request for an absentee ballot

190 includes an e-mail address, the supervisor of elections shall~

191 (a) Record the voter's e-mail address in the absentee

192 ballot record;

193 (b) Confirm bye-mail that the absentee ballot request was

194 received and include in that e-mail the estimated date the

195 ballot will be sent to the voter;

Page 7 of 8
PCS HB 131.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

196

197

198

199

200

201

202

203

204

205

206

207

208

209

210

211

212

213

214

215

216

217

218

219

220

(c) Inform the voter of the names of candidates who will

be on the ballots via electronic transmission. The supervisor of

elections shall e-mail to the voter the list of candidates for

the primary and general election not later than 30 days before

each election; and

(d) Notify the voter bye-mail when the voted absentee

ballot is received by the supervisor of elections.

(2) For absentee ballots received from overseas voters,

there is a presumption that the envelope was mailed on the date

stated on the outside of the return envelope, regardless of the

absence of a postmark on the mailed envelope or the existence of

a postmark date that is later than the date of the election.

Section 6. Subsection (11) of section 379.352, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

379.352 Recreational licenses, permits, and authorization

numbers to take wild animal life, freshwater aquatic life, and

marine life; issuance; costs; reporting.-

(11) When acting in its official capacity pursuant to this

section, neither the commission nor a- subagent is deemed a

third-party registration organizatipn, as defined in s.

97.021ll2l~, or a voter registration agency, as defined in s.

97.021l!ll{4G+, and is not authorized to solicit, accept, or

collect voter registration applications or provide voter

registration services.

Section 7. This act shall take effect July 1, 2010.

Page 8 of 8
PCS HB 131.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v





BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

HB 625 Voter Information Cards
Gibson

IDEN.lSIM. BILLS: SB 192

REFERENCE

1) Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

2) Military & Local Affairs Policy Committee

3) Economic Development & Community Affairs Policy
Council

4) _

5) _

ACTION ANALYST'
(

McDonakL.

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The bill requires the voter information card prescribed in s. 97.071, F.S., to include the address of the polling
place. If an elector's address of legal residence or polling place address changes, the supervisor of elections
must send the elector a new voter information card. For any elector registered to vote on July 1, 2010, the
supervisor of elections has until 30 days before the next supervisor-administered election in which the elector
is eligible to vote to include the polling place address on the elector's voter information card.

Currently, every supervisor of elections must furnish a voter information card to every registered voter in the
supervisor's county. The card must include date of registration; full name of elector; party affiliation; date of
birth; legal residence address; precinct number; supervisor's name and contact information; and other
information deemed necessary by the supervisor. Replacement cards are provided free of charge. New cards
are issued automatically when a voter's name, address, or party affiliation changes. Sixty-one counties include
the polling place address on the voter information card.

The bill takes effect July 1, 2010.

There will be a fiscal impact on counties that do not include the polling place address on the voter information
card. See "Fiscal Comments."

..

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0625.GAP.doc
DATE: 2/18/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation

Currently, every supervisor of elections must furnish a voter information card to every registered voter
in the supervisor's county. The card must include the following information:

• date of registration;
• full name of elector;
• party affiliation;
• date of birth;
• legal residence address;
• precinct number;
• supervisor's name and contact information; and,
• other information deemed necessary by the supervisor.1

Replacement cards are provided free of charge upon verification of the voter's registration, if the voter
provides a signed written request for a replacement card.2 The voter also may use the uniform
statewide voter registration application to request a'Teplacement card. 3 New cards are issued
automatically when a voter's name, address, or party affiliation changes.4

According to the Florida State Association of Supervisors of Elections, 61 counties include the polling
place address on the voter information card. Counties that do not include the polling place address are
Glades, Jefferson, Madison, Orange, Taylor, and Volusia.5

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill requires the voter information card prescribed in s. 97.071, F.S., to include the address of the
polling place. If an elector's address of legal residence or polling place address changes, the
supervisor of elections must send the elector a new voter information card. For any elector registered
to vote on July 1, 2010, the supervisor of elections has until 30 days before the next supervisor-

1 s. 97.071(1), F.S.
2 s. 97.071(2), F.S.
3 s. 97.052(1), F.S.
4 s. 97.071(3), F.S. See also s. 97.1031, F.S.
S Information received from the Florida State Association of Supervisors ofElections, February 23,2010.
STORAGE NAME: h0625.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 2/18/2010



administered election in which the elector is eligible to vote to include the polling place address on the
elector's voter information card.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Amends s. 97.01, F.S., to add polling place address to the information required on the voter
information card required to be given to all registered voters residing in a Supervisor of Elections county
and to issue the voter a new card when the polling place address changes.

Section 2. Provides an effective date of July 1, 2010.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

See "Fiscal Comments."

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

The fiscal impact has not been determined for the six counties that will be required to issue new voter
information cards reflecting the polling place address. While it varies from county to county, the
average county cost to print and mail one card is approximately 52 cents. For electors who are
registered to vote on July 1, 2010, the bill would allow the supervisor until 30 days before the next
supervisor-administered election in which an elector is eligible to vote to comply with the polling place
address requirement.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

The bill is exempt from the mandate requirements because it is amending the elections laws.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

h0625.GAP.doc
2/18/2010

PAGE: 3



C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

h0625.GAP.doc
2/18/2010

PAGE: 4



FLORIDA

HB625

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to voter information cards; amending s.

97.071, F.S.; requiring that voter information cards

contain the address of the polling place of the registered

voter; requiring a supervisor of elections to issue a new

voter information card to a voter upon a change in a

voter's address of legal residence or a change in a

voter's polling place address; providing instructions for

implementation by the supervisors of elections; providing

an effective date.

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the state of Florida:

Section 1. Section 97.071, Florida Statutes, is amended to

read:

97.071 Voter information card.-

(1) A voter information card shall be furnished by the

supervisor to all registered voters residing in the supervisor's

county. The card must contain:

(a) Voter's registration number.,
(b) Date of registration.

(c) Full name.

(d) Party affiliation.

(e) Date of birth.

(f) Address of legal residence.

(g) Precinct number.

(h) Polling place address.

(i)~ Name of supervisor and contact information of

Page 1of 2

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0625-00



FLORIDA

HB625

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

29 supervisor.

30 lil~ Other information deemed necessary by the

31 supervisor.

32 (2) A voter may receive a replacement voter information

33 card by providing a signed, written request for a replacement

34 card to a voter registration official. Upon verification of

35 registration, the supervisor shall issue the voter a duplicate

36 card without charge.

37 (3) In the case of a change of name, address of legal

38 residence, polling place address, or party affiliation, the

39 supervisor shall issue the voter a new voter information card.

40 Section 2. The supervisor must meet the requirements of

41 this act for any elector who is registered to vote on July 1,

42 2010, no later than 30 days before the first election

43 administered by the supervisor in which the elector is eligible

44 to vote.

45 Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 2010.

Page 2of 2

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0625-00



..........,
o
.......



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 1207 Campaign Financing
SPONSOR(S): McKeel
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS:

REFERENCE

1) Govemmental Affairs Policy Committee

2) Economic Development & Community Affairs Policy
Council

3) _

4) _

5) _

ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECT.

MCDon~ Williamson' r

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

On May 22,2009, portions of Chapter 106, F.S., regulating "electioneering communications," were held
unconstitutional by the United States District Court for the Northern District of Florida in Broward Coalition v.
Browning.

The bill reenacts and amends provisions related to electioneering communications and electioneering
communication organizations (ECOs) to do the following:

• Redefine "electioneering communication" to remove reference to issues, specify the allowable
communication formats, regulate advocacy that is the functional equivalent of express advocacy, and.
provide timeframes for the communications.

• Remove reference to a specific number of persons who must be targeted in a geographic area in the
definition of "electioneering communication" to only refer to targeting to "relevant electorate in the
geographic area the candidate would represent if elected."

• Redefine "electioneering communications organization" to clarify that it includes only those
organizations with "election-related activities" that are limited to electioneering communications and that
its activities would not require the group to register as a political party, political committee, or committee
of continuous existence. .

• Amend the definition of "political committee" to remove the requirement that an ECO conform to
specified requirements of a "political committee" when it is specifically exempt from the definition.

• Provide separate registration and reporting requirements for ECOs.
• Require an organization to register as an ECO upon receipt or expenditure of an aggregate amount

exceeding $5,000, rather than when it "anticipates r~ceipt or expenditure of money."
• Increase the amount an individual can expend before being subject to regulation from $100 to $5,000.
• Remove provisions identified as an impermissible burden on speech.

The bill also revises provisions relating to use of local government funds for political advertising.

The bill authorizes the leader of each political party conference of the state House of Representatives and
Senate to establish a separate, affiliated party committee to support the election of candidates of the leader's
political party. Leader is defined as President of the Senate, Speaker of the House of Representatives, or the
minority leader of either house of the Legislature, until a person is designated by a political party conference of
members of either house to succeed to the position, at which time the designee becomes the leader for
purposes of the affiliated party committee. Payment of assessments for candidates for state senator and
member of the House of Representatives must be paid to the respective affiliated party committee of the
Senate or House of Representatives. The bill provides that specified requirements and exemptions for political
parties and state executive committees apply to an affiliated party committee. Finally, the bill removes the 28­
day time limitation prior to a general election for contributions from political parties and affiliated party
committees to candidates.

See "Fiscal Comments" for details on possible fiscal impacts.
This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h1207.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/112010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Electioneering Communications and Electioneering Communications Organizations

Summary of Current Law

Federal Law and Regulations

Political speech, political association, and political expression are protected by the First Amendment.
Consequently, governments can regulate only those narrow categories of political speech that are
"unambiguously related to the campaign of a particular ... candidate.,,1 Two categories fall within that
narrow exception: "communications that in express terms advocate the election or defeat of a clearly
identifiable candidate for federal office, also referred to as express advocacy,,2; and communications
that constitute "the functional equivalent of express advocacy.,,3,4

The Bipartisan Campaign Reform Act of 2002 ("BCRA") amended the Federal Election Campaign Act
by adding a new category of political communications, "electioneering communications," to those
communications already governed by the Act. BC~ defines electioneering communications as
broadcast, cable, or satellite communications that refer to a clearly identified candidate for Federal
office, are publicly distributed within 60 days before a general election or 30 days before a primary
election, and are targeted to the relevant electorate. Individuals and entities that make electioneering
communications are subject to certain reporting requirements.

In 2007, the Supreme Court reviewed an as-applied challenge to the electioneering communications
regulations of BCRA.5 In WRTLlI, Wisconsin Right to Life, a non-profit corporation, sought to use its
own general treasury funds to pay for broadcast advertisements that qualified as electioneering
communications prohibited by BCRA. The Federal Election Commission contended that the 2003 U.S.
Supreme Court decision in McConnell v. Federal Election Commission established the "constitutional

lBuckley v. Valeo, 424 u.s. 1,80 (1976).
2 1d. at 44.

3 McConnell v. Fed. Election Comm'n, 540 U.S. 93, 206 (2003).
4 Citizens United v. Fed. Election Comm'n, 530 F.Supp.2d 274 (D.C.C. 2008)(A film producer challenged provisions of BCRA as
unconstitutional. The district court held that a movie about a presidential candidate was the functional equivalent of express
advocacy. On September 9,2009, the Supreme Court heard re-argument on the issue of contribution and expenditure limitations on
corporations.)
5 FEC v. Wisconsin Right to Life, Inc., 551 U.S. 449 (2007) ("WRTL 11").
STORAGE NAME: h1207.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/1/2010



test for determining if an ad is the functional equivalent of express advocacy: whether the ad is
intended to influence elections and has that effect.,,6 The Court held that McConnell did not adopt any
test as the standard for future as-applied challenges. The Court went on to reject the adoption of any
test for as-applied challenges that depended on the speaker's intent to affect an election. Instead, the
Court required that "a court should find that an ad is the functional equivalent of express advocacy only
if the ad is susceptible of no reasonable interpretation other than as an appeal to vote for or against a
specific candidate.,,7

Florida Law

"Legislatures have the power to regulate elections;"B however, there are certain constraints established
in federal law and in case law.

On May 22, 2009, portions of Chapter 106, F.S., regulating "electioneering communications," were held
unconstitutional by the United States District Court for the Northern District of Florida.9 The
electioneering communications laws attempted to regulate communication that "refers to or depicts a
clearly identified candidate for office or contains a clear reference indicating that an issue is to be voted
on at an election, without expressly advocating the election or defeat of a candidate or the passage or
defeat of an issue.,,1o Any group that makes an electioneering communication must register as an
electioneering communications organization. These organizations were required to register and report
expenditures and contributions in the same manner as political committees supporting or opposing an
issue or a candidate.

In the Broward Coalition decision, the court explained that there are two factors that must be met
before a communication is deemed to be the functional equivalent of express advocacy. First, the
speech must be "susceptible of no reasonable interpretation other than as an appeal to vote for or
against a specific candidate.,,11 Second, the communication must be a "broadcast, cable, or satellite
communication that refers to a clearly identified candidate within sixty days of a general election or
thirty days of a primary election.,,12 Under this criteria, the court found that: 1) none of the plaintiffs
issued communication via broadcast, cable, or satellite; 2) all of the speech at issue is susceptible of a
reasonable interpretation other than an appeal to vote for or against a candidate; and 3) "plaintiff's
speech relating to ballot issues cannot, by definition, be express advocacy for a particular candidate."13

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill reenacts and revises the following provisions of law related to electioneering communications
and electioneering communication organizations (ECOs) to address the concerns raised in the Broward
Coalition decision:

• Redefines "electioneering communication" tQ conform with federal law and case law by
removing reference to issues; only regulating advocacy that is the functional equivalent of
express advocacy and providing guidelines for such advocacy; and providing the timeframes for
such communications.

• Removes the reference to electioneering communication in the provision of law relating to
telephone solicitations which are express advocacy since such solicitations cannot, by
definition, be electioneering communications.

6 WRTL II, at 465.

7 In response to WRTL II, the FEC amended its regulations to allow electioneering communications if certain criteria were met.
8 Buckley v. Valeo, 424 U.S. 1/ 13 (1976).
9 Broward Coalition v. Browning, 2009 WL 1457972/ at *8.
10 Section 106.01l(1)(a), F.S.
11 WRTllI, at 470.
12 Id. at 476.

13 "B";-oward Coalition, 2009 WL 1457972/ at *6.
STORAGE NAME: h1207.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/1/2010



• Removes reference to a specific number of persons who must be targeted14 in a geographic
area (1,000 in current state law, 50,000 in federal law) in the definition of "electioneering
communication" to only refer to targeting to "relevant electorate in the geographic area the
candidate would represent if elected."

• Redefines "electioneering communications organization" to clarify that it includes only those
organizations with "election-related activities" that are limited to electioneering communications
and that its activities would not require the group to register as a political party, political
committee, or committee of continuous existence.

• Amends the definition of "political committee" to remove caveat on an ECO not being a political
committee but having to conform to specified requirements of a "political committee." This was
addressed in the Broward Coalition decision as being "confusing" and also that such
requirements were too onerous on ECOs.

• Amends political committee registration provisions to specifically and separately address
registration of ECOs.15

• Narrows the requirement for an organization to register as an ECO to once an organization
receives or expends an aggregate amount exceeding $5,000,16 rather than "anticipates receipt
or expenditure of money."17

• Increases the amount an individual can expend before being subject to regulation from $100 to
$5,000. 18

• Places in one section of law all provisions relating to reporting requirements for ECOs and
tailors certain provisions to ECOs. This, in part, addresses concerns of the court that ECOs are
treated like political committees when they are not political committees and that such treatment
is onerous for such organizations.

• Removes provisions stricken by the Broward Coalition decision (ss. 106.08(4)(b) and (5)(d),
F.S.) because of probable challenge as a regulation on contributions that is too far removed
from the candidate to prevent corruption and, therefore, is an impermissible burden on
speech.19

• Reenacts other provisions because of changes made in the definitions and other changes in the
proposal that seem to negate concerns raised by the court.

The bill differs from the Broward Coalition decision and from current law in the following ways:
• In redefining the term "electioneering communication", the bill retains certain print media

(newspaper, magazine, or direct mail) and adds telephone.
• A statement to be read by someone who places an electioneering communication telephone call

is provided in a separate section of law from that for express advocacy telephone solicitations.

14 1n the Order Granting Motion for Preliminary Injunction issued in Broward Coalition, 2008 WL 4791004, 21 Fla. L. Weekly Fed. D
420 (N.D.Fla., 2008), the court noted it would be impossible for plaintiffS to determine whether certain communications, issued
through the internet or print, would be received by 1,000 or more persons. See also Alaska Right to Life Committee v. Miles, 441
F.3d 773, 783 (discussing Alaska electioneering law that required the communication to "address an issue of national, state, or local
political importance" instead "targeted to the relevant electorate").
15 Section 106.03(1)(b), F.S., requires an ECO to register; however, other provisions in the registration requirements under s. 106.03,
F.S., refer to political committees even though they are used for ECOs. The caveat in the exception of ECOs from the definition of
"political committee" is used as authority for implementation of requirements under this section and other sections of ch. 106, F.5.,
as they would apply to ECOs.
16 Federal case law has established a "major purpose" test to determine whether an organization's campaign activity should be
regulated. However, basing regulation on an organization's relative amount of activity may encourage advocacy groups to
circumvent the law by hiding their electoral activity from view. In addition, such regulation would discriminate against small
organizations, because advocacy "that would constitute a small organization's major purpose might only be considered one of
several primary purposes at a larger entity." Human Life of Washington v. Brumsickle, 2009 WL 62144 (W.D.Wash., 2009).
17 Broward Coalition held that regulation based on an organizations anticipation of receiving or expending contributions constituted
a prior restraint on the organizations communication. The amount of money specified brings the requirement more in line with
federal requirements.
18 2 U.s.c. s. 434(f) places the threshold for an individual at an amount of greater than $10,000.
19 See g.:.& Emily's List v. Federal Election Com'n, --- F.3d ----, 2009 WL 2972412 (D.C.Cir., 2009)(discussing the First Amendment right
of individuals to spend funds to express their views about policy issues and the corresponding right of those individuals to band
together and pool their resources as a non-profit organization to express their views).
STORAGE NAME: h1207.GAP.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 3/1/2010



• Addresses the types of communications by local governments subject to regulation that was not
addressed by the Broward Coalition decision.

Affiliated Party Committees

Present Situation

Chapter 103, F.S., requires each political party of the state to be represented by a state executive
committee. County executive committees and other committees may be established in accordance
with the rules of the state executive committee. The selection of membership to executive committees
is provided as well as the responsibilities. Certain information relating to officers, membership, bylaws,
and rules and regulations must be filed by the state executive committees with the Department of State.
County executive committees file officer and membership information with the state executive
committee and with the respective supervisor of elections.2o Responsibility for maintaining records on
receipt and disbursement of all party funds is delineated as well as penalties for misappropriation of
funds, unlawful expenditure of funds, or false or improper accounting for committee funds.21

Unless excluded in law, the state executive committee receives payment of assessments for
candidates for office, including state senators and members of the House of Representatives.22

No person or group of persons can use the name, abbreviation, or symbol of any political party or name
of groups or committees associated with the political party that is filed by the political party with the
Department of State.23

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill establishes the mechanism for the leader of each political party conference of the Florida
House of Representatives and Senate to establish a separate, affiliated party committee to support the
election of candidates of the leader's political party.24 An affiliated party committee shall adopt bylaws
to include, at a minimum, the designation of a treasurer; conduct campaigns for candidates who are
members of the leader's political party; and establish an account to raise and expend funds. Such
funds may not be expended or committed for expenditure unless authorized by the leader.

Payment of assessments for candidates for state senator and member of the House of Representatives
must be paid to the respective affiliated party committee of the Florida Senate or Florida House of
Representatives, if such a committee has been established.

An affiliated party committee is entitled to use the name, abbreviation, or symbol of the political party of
its leader. F

Chapter 106, F.S., is amended to provide that an affiliated party committee is required to file specified
reports like an executive committee of a political party or a political party. Additionally, provisions
relating to contributions and expenditures; use of closed captioning and descriptive narrative in all
television broadcasts, telephone solicitation, polls and surveys relating to candidacies; and penalties
that relate to state executive committees and political parties are amended to include an affiliated party
committee. Funds contributed to an affiliated party committee cannot be deemed as designated for the
partial or exclusive use of a leader of an affiliated party committee.

20 Section 103.091, F.S.
21 Section 103.121, F.S.
22 Section 103.121(1)(b), F.S., provides that all party assessments are 2 percent of the annual salary of the office sought by the
respective candidate.
23 Section 103.081, F.S.
24 The term "leader" means the President of the Senate, Speaker of the House of Representatives, or the minority leader of either
house of the Legislature, until a person is designated by a political party conference of members of either house to succeed to the
position, at which time the designee becomes the leader for purposes of the affiliated party committee.
STORAGE NAME: h1207.GAP.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 3/1/2010



Section 11.045, F.S., is amended to exclude contributions or expenditures made by orto an affiliated
party committee, just as is done for a political party, from the definition of "expenditure" under this
provision.

Sections 112.312 and 112.3215, F.S., are amended to exclude from the definition of "gift" contributions
or expenditures by an affiliated party committee and to exclude from the definition of "expenditure," in
the latter section, contributions or expenditures made by or to an affiliated party committee, just as is
done for a political party in both of those sections.

Contributions by Political Parties to Candidates I Non-allocables

Present Situation

A candidate is limited to accepting an aggregate of $50,000 ($250,000 for a statewide candidate) from
a political party, no more than half of which can be accepted before the 28-day period immediately
preceding the general election.25 The following items, known as "non-allocables," are excluded from
the aggregate $50,000 contribution limit ($250,000 limit for statewide candidates): polling services,
research services, costs for campaign staff, professional consulting services, and telephone calls.

Effect of Proposed Change

The bill includes affiliated party committee along with political party in the list from which the aggregate
funds can be accepted by a candidate. It removes the 28-day time limitation prior to a general election
for candidates to accept contributions from political parties and affiliated party committees.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Amends s. 103.081, F.S., to allow an affiliated party committee to use the name,
abbreviation, or political party symbol of the party to which its leader belongs.

Section 2. Creates s. 103.092, F.S., to define the term "leader," provide for the establishment of
affiliated party committees, and delineate duties and responsibilities of an affiliated party committee.

Section 3. Amends s. 103.121, F.S., to require that certain assessments going to the party county or
state executive committees be redirected to the appropriate affiliated party committee.

Section 4. Amends s. 106.011, F.S., to revise the definition of "political committee,""independent
expenditure," "person," "filing officer," "electioneering communication," and "electioneering
communications organization;" and to re-enact "contribution" and "expenditure."

"
Section 5. Amends s. 106.021, F.S., to provide that certain expenditures by an affiliated party
committee are not considered a contribution or expenditure to or for a candidate.

Section 6. Reenacts s. 106.022(1), F.S., relating to appointment of a registered agent; duties.

Section 7. Amends s. 106.025, F.S., to exempt an affiliated party committee from certain campaign
fund raising requirements.

Section 8. Amends s. 106.03, F.S., to provide separate, distinct registration requirements for
electioneering communications organizations.

Section 9. Amends s. 106.04, F.S., to require a committee of continuous existence to report receipts
from and transfers to an affiliated party committee.

Section 10. Amends s. 106.0701, F.S., to exempt affiliated party committees from certain filing
requirements.

25 Section 106.08(2), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1207.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/1/2010

PAGE: 6



Section 11. Reenacts and amends s. 106.0703, F.S., to consolidate into one section reporting
requirements for an electioneering communications organization.

Section 12. Amends s. 106.0705, F.S., to reenact a provision, add a reference to affiliated party
committee, add cross-references, and add reference to "leader and treasurer" for required reports filed
under the section.

Section 13. Reenacts and amends s. 106.071(1), F.S., to increase the aggregate amount of
expenditures required for filing certain reports related to independent expenditures or electioneering
communications.

Section 14. Amends s. 106.08, F.S., to remove certain limitations on contributions received by an
electioneering communications organization, provide that an affiliated party committee is treated like a
political party regarding limitations on contributions, delete the 28-day restriction on acceptance of
certain funds preceding a general election, place certain restrictions on solicitation for and making of
contributions, provide guidelines for acceptance of in-kind contributions, and add an affiliated party
committee to entities subject to penalties.

Section 15. Creates s. 106.088, F.S., to require an oath or affirmation by the leader or treasurer of an
affiliated party committee as a condition of receipt of a rebate of party assessments and to provide
penalties for violation of oath or affirmation.

Section 16. Amends s. 106.113, F.S., to remove reference to electioneering communication and to
prohibit specific appropriation or designated expenditure by a local government for the purpose of a
political advertisement and to prohibit acceptance of such funds by a person for such advertisement.

Section 17. Reenacts s. 106.1437, F.S., relating to miscellaneous advertisements.

Section 18. Reenacts and amends s. 106.1439, F.S., to provide disclaimers for electioneering
communication telephone calls.

Section 19. Amends s. 106.147, F.S., to delete references to electioneering communication telephone
calls and to add affiliated party committee to the list of entities included in the definition of "person."

Section 20. Amends s. 106.165, F.S., to add affiliated party committee to the list of entities that must
use closed captioning and descriptive narratives in all television broadcasts.

Section 21. Amends s. 106.17, F.S., to add affiliatea party committee to the list of entities that can
authorize or conduct polls, surveys, and other such instruments relating to public office candidacy.

Section 22. Amends s. 106.23, F.S., to add affiliated party committee to the list of persons and
organizations that may request and be provided with advisory opinions by the Division of Elections.

Section 23. Amends s. 106.265, F.S., to authorize the imposition of civil penalties by the Florida
Elections Commission for certain violations by an affiliated party committee.

Section 24. Amends s. 106.27, F.S., to add affiliated party committee to the list of groups subject to
certain civil actions by the Florida Elections Commission.

Section 25. Amends s. 106.29, F.S., to require filing of certain reports by an affiliated party committee,
provide restrictions on certain expenditures and contributions, and to provide penalties.

Section 26. Amends s. 11.045, F.S., to exclude contributions or expenditures made by or to an
affiliated party committee from the definition of "expenditure."

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

h1207.GAP.doc
3/1/2010

PAGE: 7



Section 27. Amends s. 112.312, F.S., to exclude from the definition of "gift" contributions or
expenditures by an affiliated party committee.

Section 28. Amends s. 112.3215, F.S., to exclude contributions or expenditures made by or to an
affiliated party committee from the definition of "expenditure."

Section 29. Provides a July 1, 2010 effective date.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

See "Fiscal Comments."

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

Assessments for candidates for the state Senate and state House of Representatives that currently go
to the respective political parties instead would go to an affiliated party committee if one has been
created pursuant to the bill.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

Any state government costs associated with requirements for affiliated party committees are estimated
by the Department of State to be minimal. The provisions would entail only coding an entry for
receiving such electronic reports and receiving and processing the reports as is currently done for other
committees, candidates, and parties. The payment,of the assessment to the applicable leader likewise
would be minimal as the Department of State currently pays the political parties their assessment.

According to the Department of State, any litigation relating to the provisions in HB 1207 relating to
electioneering communications and electioneering communications organizations largely depends upon
the issue litigated and whether appeals would be taken. The department stated estimates would range
from about $50,000 at trial court level to upwards of $300,000 for defense; plus, if the department loses
and has to pay attorney fees, it could easily go upwards of over $2 million. The department also noted
that the plaintiff's attorney fees in Broward Coalition were slightly over $140,000.26

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

The bill is exempt from the mandate requirements because it is amending the elections laws.

26 Information on estimated fiscal impact of HB 1207 was provided by the Department of State, February 25, 2010.
STORAGE NAME: h1207.GAP.doc PAGE: 8
DATE: 3/1/2010



2. Other:

On May 22,2009, portions of Chapter 106, F.S., regulating "electioneering communications" were
held to be unconstitutional by the United States District Court for the Northern District of Florida in
Broward Coalition v. Browning. The court stated "because the Court has never held that the
regulation of 'electioneering communications' beyond how that term is defined in [BCRA] is
permissible, the outer limit of regulation tracks BCRA's definition: a broadcast, cable, or satellite
communication that refers to a clearly identified candidate within sixty days of a general election or
thirty days of a primary election. ,,27

The definition of "electioneering communication" contained in section 4 of HB 1207 includes types of
communication beyond that in the definition in BCRA.

Under section 5 of the Voting Rights Act, new legislation that implements a voting change including
but not limited to a change in the manner of voting, change in candidacy requirements and
qualifications, change in the composition of the electorate that may vote for a candidate, or change
affecting the creation or abolition of an elective office, is subject to preclearance by the U.S.
Department of Justice. The preclearance review is to determine if the change has a discriminatory
purpose or effect that denies or abridges the right to vote on account of race, color or membership in
a language minority group in a covered jurisdiction. Florida has five covered jurisdictions subject to
preclearance: Collier, Hardee, Hendry, Hillsborough, and Monroe. The legislation is unenforceable if
the Attorney General objects to the voting change.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

c. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

27 Broward Coalition, 2009 WL 1457972, at *6, citing, N.C. Right to Life, Inc. v. Leake, 525 F.3d 274, 282 (4th Cir. 2008).
STORAGE NAME: h1207.GAP.doc PAGE: 9
DATE: 3/1/2010



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1207 2010

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to campaign financing; amending s.

3 103.081, F.S.; permitting the use of a political party's

4 name, abbreviation, or symbol by an affiliated party

5 committee under certain circumstances; creating s.

6 103.092, F.S.; providing for the establishment of

7 affiliated party committees; providing a definition;

8 delineating duties and responsibilities of such

9 committees; amending s. 103.121, F.S.; requiring certain

10 assessments to be paid to an affiliated party committee;

11 amending s. 106.011, F.S.; revising the definition of the

12 term "political committee" to remove certain reporting

13 requirements included in the exclusion of electioneering

14 communications organizations from the definition and to

15 allow contributions to an affiliated party committee;

16 adding an affiliated party committee to the list of

17 entities not considered a political committee under

18 chapter 106, F.S.; revising the definition of the term

19 "independent expenditure" to spe~ify that certain

20 expenditures are not considered an independent

21 expenditure; revising the definition of the term "person"

22 to include an affiliated party committee; revising the

23 definition of the term "filing officer" to expand

24 applicability to electioneering communications

25 organizations; revising the definition of the term

26 "electioneering communication" to conform to certain

27 federal requirements and to delineate what constitutes

28 such a communication; revising the definition of the term

Page 1of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1207 2010

29 "electioneering communications organization"; amending s.

30 106.021, F.S.; providing that certain expenditures by an

31 affiliated party committee are not considered a

32 contribution or expenditure to or for a candidate;

33 amending s. 106.025, F.S.; exempting an affiliated party

34 committee from certain campaign fund raising requirements;

35 amending s. 106.03, F.S.; revising the registration

36 requirements for electioneering communications

37 organizations; revising the statement of organization

38 requirements; revising rule adoption requirements relating

39 to dissolution of political committees and electioneering

40 communications organizations; amending s. 106.04, F.S.;

41 requiring that a committee of continuous existence report

42 receipts from and transfers to an affiliated party

43 committee; amending s. 106.0701, F.S.; exempting an

44 affiliated party committee from certain filing

45 requirements; amending s. 106.0703, F.S.; consolidating

46 reporting requirements in ch. 106, F.S., applicable to

47 electioneering communications organizations; providing

48 penalties; conforming provisions; amending s. 106.0705,

49 F.S., relating to electronic filing of campaign

50 treasurer's reports; conforming provisions; requiring an

51 affiliated party committee to file certain reports with

52 the Division of Elections; providing that a report filed

53 by the leader and treasurer of an affiliated party

54 committee is considered to be under oath; amending s.

55 106.071, F.S.; increasing the aggregate amount of

56 expenditures required for filing certain reports related

Page 2of59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1207 2010

57 to independent expenditures or electioneering

58 communications; amending s. 106.08, F.S.; removing certain

59 limitations on contributions received by an electioneering

60 communications organization; providing that an affiliated

61 party committee is treated like a political party

62 regarding limitations on contributions; deleting the 28-

63 day restriction on acceptance of certain funds preceding a

64 general election; placing certain restrictions on

65 solicitation for and making of contributions; providing

66 guidelines for acceptance of in-kind contributions; adding

67 an affiliated party committee to entities subject to

68 penalties; creating s. 106.088, F.S.; requiring the

69 subscribing to an oath or affirmation prior to receipt of

70 certain funds; providing the form of the oath; providing

71 penalties; providing that undistributed funds shall be

72 deposited into the General Revenue Fund; amending s.

73 106.113, F.S., relating to expenditures by local

74 governments; revising definitions; prohibiting a local

75 government, or a person acting on behalf of a local

76 government, from making a specific appropriation or

77 designated expenditure of moneys under the jurisdiction or

78 control of the local government; prohibiting certain

79 persons or groups from accepting such moneys for the

80 purpose of certain political advertisements; deleting an

81 exception for certain electioneering communications;

82 clarifying that certain provisions of state law do not

83 preclude certain officials from expressing an opinion on

84 an issue at any time; amending s. 106.1439, F.S.;

Page 3of 59

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

providing identification requirements for certain

electioneering communications; providing an exception for

telephone calls; amending s. 106.147, F.S., relating to

telephone solicitation disclosure requirements; removing

requirements relating to electioneering communication, to

conform; revising the definition of the term "person" to

include an affiliated party committee; providing

penalties; amending s. 106.165, F.S.; adding affiliated

party committees to the entities that must use closed

captioning and descriptive narrative in all television

broadcasts; amending s. 106.17, F.S.; adding affiliated

party committees to those entities authorized to conduct

polls and surveys relating to candidacies; amending s.

106.23, F.S.; providing that an affiliated party committee

shall be provided an advisory opinion by the Division of

Elections when requested; amending s. 106.265, F.S.;

authorizing the imposition of civil penalties by the

Florida Elections Commission for certain violations by an

affiliated party committee; amending s. 106.27, F.S.;

adding affiliated party committees to those entities

subject to certain determinations and legal disposition by

the Florida Elections Commission; amending s. 106.29,

F.S.; requiring filing of certain reports by an affiliated

party committee; providing restrictions on certain

expenditures and contributions; providing penalties;

amending s. 11.045, F.S., relating to lobbying before the

Legislature; excluding contributions and expenditures by

an affiliated party committee from the definition of the

Page 4 of 59

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

113 term "expenditure"; amending s. 112.312, F.S.; providing

114 that certain activities pertaining to an affiliated party

115 committee are excluded from the definition of the term

116 "gift"; amending s. 112.3215, F.S., relating to lobbying

117 before the executive branch or the Constitution Revision

118 Commission; excluding contributions and expenditures by an

119 affiliated party committee from the definition of the term

120 "expenditure"; reenacting ss. 106.011 (1) (b), (3), (4),

121 (18), and (19), 106. 022 (1), 106. 03 (1) (b), 106. 04 (5) ,

122 106.0703, 106.0705 (2) (b), 106.071 (1), 106.08 (7), 106.1437,

123 106.1439, and 106.17, F.S., relating to definitions,

124 registered office and agent requirements, registration

125 requirements, prohibited activities for committees of

126 continuous existence, additional reporting requirements,

127 electronic filing requirements, expenditure reports,

128 penalties for violations pertaining to limitations on

129 contributions, miscellaneous advertisements,

130 electioneering communications disclaimers and penalties

131 for failure to include disclaimers, and polls and surveys

132 pertaining to candidacies, to cure and conform; providing

133 an effective date.

134

135 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the state of Florida:

136

137 Section 1. Subsection (4) is added to section 103.081,

138 Florida Statutes, to read:

139 103.081 Use of party name; political advertising.-

140 (4) Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the

Page 5of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

141 contrary, an affiliated party committee shall be entitled to use

142 the name, abbreviation, or sYmbol of the political party of its

143 leader as defined in s. 103.092.

144 Section 2. Section 103.092, Florida Statutes, is created

145 to read:

146 103.092 Affiliated party committees.-

147 (1) For purposes of this section, the term "leader" means

148 the President of the Senate, the Speaker of the House of

149 Representatives, or the minority leader of either house of the

150 Legislature, until a person is designated by a political party

151 conference of members of either house to succeed to any such

152 position, at which time the designee becomes the leader for

153 purposes of this section.

154 (2) The leader of each political party conference of the

155 House of Representatives and the Senate may establish a

156 separate, affiliated party committee to support the election of

157 candidates of the leader's political party. The affiliated party

158 committee is subject to the same provisions of chapter 106 as a

159 political party.

160 (3) Each affiliated party committee shall:

161 (a) Adopt bylaws to include, at a minimum, the designation

162 of a treasurer.

163 (b) Conduct campaigns for candidates who are members of

164 the leader's political party.

165 (c) Establish an account.

166 (d) Raise and expend funds. Such funds may not be expended

167 or committed to be expended except when authorized by the leader

168 of the affiliated party committee.

Page 6 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

169 Section 3. Paragraph (b) of subsection (1) of section

170 103.121, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

171 103.121 Powers and duties of executive committees.-

172 (1)

173 (b) The county executive committee shall receive payment

174 of assessments upon candidates to be voted for in a single

175 county except state senators, state and members of the House of

176 representativesL and representatives to the Congress of the

177 United States; an affiliated party committee controlled by a

178 leader of the Senate as defined in s. 103.092 shall receive

179 payment of assessments upon candidates for the office of state

180 senator and an affiliated party committee controlled by a leader

181 of the House of Representatives as defined in s. 103.092 shall

182 receive payment of assessments upon candidates for the office of

183 state representative; and the ,state executive committees shall

184 receive all other assessments authorized. All party assessments

185 shall be 2 percent of the annual salary of the office sought by

186 the respective candidate. All such committee assessments shall

187 be remitted to the state executive committee of the appropriate

188 party and distributed in accordance with subsection (5), except

189 that assessments for candidates for the office of state senator

190 or state representative shall be remitted to the appropriate

191 affiliated party committee.

192 Section 4. Paragraph (a) of subsection (1) of section of

193 section 106.011, Florida Statutes, is amended, paragraph (b) of

194 subsection (1) of that section is reenacted and amended,

195 subsections (3) and (4) of that section are reenacted,

196 subsections (5), (8), and (14) of that section are amended, and

Page 7of 59

CODING: Words stricKen are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

197 subsections (18) and (19) of that section are reenacted and

198 amended, to read:

199 106.011 Definitions.-As used in this chapter, the

200 following terms have the following meanings unless the context

201 clearly indicates otherwise:

202 (1) (a) "Political committee" means:

203 1. A combination of two or more individuals, or a person

204 other than an individual, that, in an aggregate amount in excess

205 of $500 during a single calendar year:

206 a. Accepts contributions for the purpose of making

207 contributions to any candidate, political committee, committee

208 of continuous existence, affiliated party committee, or

209 political party;

210 b. Accepts contributions for the purpose of expressly

211 advocating the election or defeat of a candidate or the passage

212 or defeat of an issue;

213 c. Makes expenditures that expressly advocate the election

214 or defeat of a candidate or the passage or defeat of an issue;

215 or

216 d. Makes contributions to a common fund, other than a

217 joint checking account between spouses, from which contributions

218 are made to any candidate, political committee, committee of

219 continuous existence, affiliated party committee, or political

220 party;

221 2. The sponsor of a proposed constitutional amendment by

222 initiative who intends to seek the signatures of registered

223 electors.

Page 8of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

224 (b) Notwithstanding paragraph (a), the following entities

225 are not considered political committees for purposes of this

226 chapter:

227 1. Organizations which are certified by the Department of

228 State as committees of continuous existence pursuant to s.

229 106.04, national political parties, ~ the state and county

230 executive committees of political parties, and affiliated party

231 committees regulated by chapter 103.

232 2. Corporations regulated by chapter 607 or chapter 617 or

233 other business entities formed for purposes other than to

234 support or oppose issues or candidates, if their political

235 activities are limited to contributions to candidates, political

236 parties, or political committees or expenditures in support of

237 or opposition to an issue from corporate or business funds and

238 if no contributions are received by such corporations or

239 business entities.

240 3. Electioneering communications organizations as defined

241 in subsection (19); however, such organizations shall be

242 required to register ',>'ith and report cJ<penditures and

243 contributions, including contributions received from cOffiffiittees

244 of continuous enistence, to the Division of Elections in the

245 same manner, at the saffle time, and subject to the same penalties

246 as a political eOfflfflittee supporting or opposing an issue or a

247 legislative candidate, eJwept as othenlise specifically provided

248 in this chapter.

249 (3) "Contribution" means:

250 (a) A gift, subscription, conveyance, deposit, loan,

251 payment, or distribution of money or anything of value,

Page 9of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

252 including contributions in kind having an attributable monetary

253 value in any form, made for the purpose of influencing the

254 results of an election or making an electioneering

255 communication.

256 (b) A transfer of funds between political committees,

257 between committees of continuous existence, between

258 electioneering communications organizations, or between any

259 combination of these groups.

260 (c) The payment, by any person other than a candidate or

261 political committee, of compensation for the personal services

262 of another person which are rendered to a candidate or political

263 committee without charge to the candidate or committee for such

264 services.

265 (d) The transfer of funds by a campaign treasurer or

266 deputy campaign treasurer between a primary depository and a

267 separate interest-bearing account or certificate of deposit, and

268 the term includes any interest earned on such account or

269 certificate.

270

271 Notwithstanding the foregoing meanings of "contribution," the

272 word shall not be construed to include services, including, but

273 not limited to, legal and accounting services, provided without

274 compensation by individuals volunteering a portion or all of

275 their time on behalf of a candidate or political committee. This

276 definition shall not be construed to include editorial

277 endorsements.

278 (4) (a) "Expenditure" means a purchase, payment,

279 distribution, loan, advance, transfer of funds by a campaign

Page 10 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

280 treasurer or deputy campaign treasurer between a primary

281 depository and a separate interest-bearing account or

282 certificate of deposit, or gift of money or anything of value

283 made for the purpose of influencing the results of an election

284 or making an electioneering communication. However,

285 "expenditure" does not include a purchase, payment,

286 distribution, loan, advance, or gift of money or anything of

287 value made for the purpose of influencing the results of an

288 election when made by an organization, in existence prior to the

289 time during which a candidate qualifies or an issue is placed on

290 the ballot for that election, for the purpose of printing or

291 distributing such organization's newsletter, containing a

292 statement by such organization in support of or opposition to a

293 candidate or issue, which newsletter is distributed only to

294 members of such organization.

295 (b) As used in this chapter, an "expenditure" for an

296 electioneering communication is made when the earliest of the

297 following occurs:

298 1. A person enters into a contract for applicable goods or

299 services;

300 2. A person makes payment, in whole or in part, for the

301 production or public dissemination of applicable goods or

302 services; or

303 3. The electioneering communication is publicly

304 disseminated.

305 (5) (a) "Independent expenditure" means an expenditure by a

306 person for the purpose of expressly advocating the election or

307 defeat of a candidate or the approval or rejection of an issue,

Page 11 of 59

CODING: Words striGken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

308 which expenditure is not controlled by, coordinated with, or

309 made upon consultation with, any candidate, political committee,

310 or agent of such candidate or committee. An expenditure for such

311 purpose by a person having a contract with the candidate,

312 political committee, or agent of such candidate or committee in

313 a given election period shall not be deemed an independent

314 expenditure.

315 (b) An expenditure for the purpose of expressly advocating

316 the election or defeat of a candidate which is made by the

317 national, state, or county executive committee of a political

318 party, including any subordinate committee of the a national,

319 state, or county cOffiffiittee of a political party, an affiliated

320 party committee, a or by any political committee~ er committee

321 of continuous existence, or any other personT shall not be

322 considered an independent expenditure if the committee or

323 person:

324 1. Communicates with the candidate, the candidate's

325 campaign, or an agent of the candidate acting on behalf of the

326 candidate, including any pollster, media consultant, advertising

327 agency, vendor, advisor, or staff member, concerning the

328 preparation of, use of, or payment for, the specific expenditure

329 or advertising campaign at issue; or

330 2. Makes a payment in cooperation, consultation, or

331 concert with, at the request or suggestion of, or pursuant to

332 any general or particular understanding with the candidate, the

333 candidate's campaign, a political committee supporting the

334 candidate, or an agent of the candidate relating to the specific

335 expenditure or advertising campaign at issue; or

Page 12 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

336 3. Makes a payment for the dissemination, distribution, or

337 republication, in whole or in part, of any broadcast or any

338 written, graphic, or other form of campaign material prepared by

339 the candidate, the candidate's campaign, or an agent of the

340 candidate, including any pollster, media consultant, advertising

341 agency, vendor, advisor, or staff member; or

342 4. Makes a payment based on information about the

343 candidate's plans, projects, or needs communicated to a member

344 of the committee or person by the candidate or an agent of the

345 candidate, provided the committee or person uses the information

346 in any way, in whole or in part, either directly or indirectly,

347 to design, prepare, or pay for the specific expenditure or

348 advertising campaign at issue; or

349 5. After the last day of qualifying for statewide or

350 legislative office, consults about the candidate's plans,

351 projects, or needs in connection with the candidate's pursuit of

352 election to office and the information is used in any way to

353 plan, create, design, or prepare an independent expenditure or

354 advertising campaign, with:

355 a. Any officer, director, employee, or agent of a

356 national, state, or county executive committee of a political

357 party or an affiliated party committee that has made or intends

358 to make expenditures in connection with or contributions to the

359 candidate; or

360 b. Any person whose professional services have been

361 retained by a national, state, or county executive committee of

362 a political party or an affiliated party committee that has made

363 or intends to make expenditures in connection with or

Page 13 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

364 contributions to the candidate; or

365 6. After the last day of qualifying for statewide or

366 legislative office, retains the professional services of any

367 person also providing those services to the candidate in

368 connection with the candidate's pursuit of election to office;

369 or

370 7. Arranges, coordinates, or directs the expenditure, in

371 any way, with the candidate or an agent of the candidate.

372 (8) "Person" means an individual or a corporation,

373 association, firm, partnership, joint venture, joint stock

374 company, club, organization, estate, trust, business trust,

375 syndicate, or other combination of individuals having collective

376 capacity. The term includes a political party, affiliated party

377 committee, political committee, or committee of continuous

378 existence.

379 (14) "Filing officer" means the person before whom a

380 candidate qualifies, the agency or officer with whom a political

381 committee or an electioneering communications organization

382 registers, or the agency by whom a committee of continuous

383 existence is certified.

384 (18) (a) "Electioneering communication" means any

385 communication publicly distributed by a television station,

386 radio station, cable television system, satellite system,

387 newspaper, magazine, direct mail, or telephone a paid eJcpression

388 in any cOffiffiunications media prescribed in subsection (13) by

389 means other than the spoken Hord in direct conversation that:

390 1. Refers to or depicts a clearly identified candidate for

391 office or contains a clear reference indicating that an issue is

Page 14 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

392 to be voted on at an election, without expressly advocating the

393 election or defeat of a candidate but that is susceptible of no

394 reasonable interpretation other than an appeal to vote for or

395 against a specific candidate; or the passage or defeat of an

396 issue.

397 2. Is made within 30 days before a primary or special

398 primary election or 60 days before any other election for the

399 office sought by the candidate; and

400 3. Is For communications referring to or depicting a

401 elearly identified candidate for office, is targeted to the

402 relevant electorate. ~ communication is considered targeted if

403 1,000 or more persons in the geographic area the candidate would

404 represent if elected T,.ill receive the communication.

405 3. For communications containing a clear reference

406 indicating that an issuc is to be voted on at an election, is

407 published after the issue is designated a 'ballot position or 120

408 days before the date of the election on the issue, Tilhichever

409 occurs first.

410 (b) The term "electioneering coinmunication" does not

411 include:

412 1. A communication disseminated through a means of

413 communication other than a television station, radio station,

414 cable television system, satellite system, newspaper, magazine,

415 direct mail, telephone, or statement or depiction by an

416 organization, in existence prior to the time during which a

417 candidate named or depicted qualifies or an issue identified is

418 placed on the ballot for that election, made in that

Page 15 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

419 organization's newsletter, which newsletter is distributed only

420 to members of that organization.

421 2. A communication in a news story, commentary, or

422 editorial distributed through the facilities of any radio

423 station, television station, cable television system, or

424 satellite system, unless the facilities are owned or controlled

425 by any political party, political committee, or candidate. A

426 news story distributed through the facilities owned or

427 controlled by any political party, political committee, or

428 candidate may nevertheless be exempt if it represents a bona

429 fide news account communicated through a licensed broadcasting

430 facility and the communication is part of a general pattern of

431 campaign-related news accounts that give reasonably equal

432 coverage to all opposing candidates in the area An editorial

433 endorsement, news story, cOFflfflentary, or editorial by any

434 newspaper, radio, television station, or other recognized news

435 medium.

436 3. A communication that constitutes a public debate or

437 forum that includes at least two opposing candidates for an

438 office or one advocate and one opponent of an issue, or that

439 solely promotes such a debate or forum and is made by or on

440 behalf of the person sponsoring the debate or forum, provided

441 that:

442 a. The staging organization is either:

443 (I) A charitable organization that does not make other

444 electioneering communications and does not otherwise support or

445 oppose any political candidate or political party; or

Page 16 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

446 (II) A newspaper, radio station, television station, or

447 other recognized news medium; and

448 b. The staging organization does not structure the debate

449 to promote or advance one candidate or issue position over

450 another.

451 (c) For purposes of this chapter, an expenditure made for,

452 or in furtherance of, an electioneering communication shall not

453 be considered a contribution to or·on behalf of any candidate.

454 (d) For purposes of this chapter, an electioneering

455 communication shall not constitute an independent expenditure

456 nor be subject to the limitations applicable to independent

457 expenditures.

458 (19) "Electioneering communications organization" means-

459 any group, other than a political party; affiliated party ­

460 committee, political committee, or Committee of continuous

461 existence, whose election-related activities are -limited to

462 making expenditures for electioneering communications or

463 accepting contributions for the purpose of making electioneering

4 64 communications and whose activities WQuld not otherwise require

465 the group to register as a political party, political committee,

466 or committee of continuous existence under this' chapter-.

467 Section 5. Subsection (3) of section 106.021, Florida

468 Statutes, is amended to read:

469 106.021 Campaign treasurers; deputies; primary and

470 secondary depositories.-

471 (3) No contribution or expenditure, including

472 contributions or expenditures of a candidate or of the

473 candidate's family, shall be directly or indirectly made or

Page 17 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

474 received in furtherance of the candidacy of any person for

475 nomination or election to political office in the state or on

476 behalf of any political committee except through the duly

477 appointed campaign treasurer of the candidate or political

478 committee, subject to the following exceptions:

479 (a) Independent expenditures;

480 (b) Reimbursements to a candidate or any other individual

481 for expenses incurred in connection with the campaign or

482 activities of the political committee by a check drawn upon the

483 campaign account and reported pursuant to s. 106.07(4). After

484 July 1, 2004, the full name and address of each person to whom

485 the candidate or other individual made payment for which

486 reimbursement was made by check drawn upon the campaign account

487 shall be reported pursuant to s. 106.07(4), together with the

488 purpose of such payment;

489 (c) Expenditures made indirectly through a treasurer for

490 goods or services, such as communications media placement or

491 procurement services, campaign signs, insurance, or other

492 expenditures that include multiple integral components as part

493 of the expenditure and reported pursuant to s. 106.07(4) (a)13.;

494 or

495 (d) Expenditures made directly by any political committeeL

496 affiliated party committee, or political party regulated by

497 chapter 103 for obtaining time, space, or services in or by any

498 communications medium for the purpose of jointly endorsing three

499 or more candidates, and any such expenditure shall not be

500 considered a contribution or expenditure to or on behalf of any

501 such candidates for the purposes of this chapter.

Page 18 of 59

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

502 Section 6. Subsection (1) of section 106.022, Florida

503 Statutes, is reenacted to read:

504 106.022 Appointment of a registered agent; duties.-

505 (1) Each political committee, committee of continuous

506 existence, or electioneering communications organization shall

507 have and continuously maintain in this state a registered office

508 and a registered agent and must file with the division a

509 statement of appointment for the registered office and

510 registered agent. The statement of appointment must:

511 (a) Provide the name of the registered agent and the

512 street address and phone number for the registered office;

513 (b) Identify the entity for whom the registered agent

514 serves;

515 (c) Designate the address the registered agent wishes to

516 use to receive mail;

517 (d) Include the entity's undertaking to inform the

518 division of any change in such designated address;

519 (e) Provide for the registered agent's acceptance of the

520 appointment, which must confirm that the registered agent is

521 familiar with and accepts the obligations of the position as set

522 forth in this section; and

523 (f) Contain the signature of the registered agent and the

524 entity engaging the registered agent.

525 Section 7. Subsection (2) of section 106.025, Florida

526 Statutes, is amended to read:

527 106.025 Campaign fund raisers.-

528 (2) This section shall not apply to any campaign fund

529 raiser held on behalf of a political party by the state or

Page 19 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

530 county executive committee or an affiliated party committee of

531 such party, provided that the proceeds of such campaign fund

532 raiser are reported pursuant to s. 106.29.

533 Section 8. Paragraph (b) of subsection (1) of section

534 106.03, Florida Statutes, is reenacted and amended, and

535 subsections (2), (4), and (7) of that section are amended, to

536 read:

537 106.03 Registration of political committees and

538 electioneering communications organizations.-

539 (1)

540 (b)~ Each electioneering communications organization that

541 receives anticipates receiving contributions or makes making

542 expenditures during a calendar year in an aggregate amount

543 exceeding $5,000 shall file a statement of organization as

544 provided in subparagraph 2. subsection (3) by expedited delivery

545 within 24 hours after its organization or, if later, within 24

546 hours after the date on which it receives has information that

547 causes the organization to anticipate that it 'dill receive

548 contributions or makes ma*e expenditures for an electioneering

549 communication in excess of $5,000.

550 2.a. In a statewide, legislative, or multicounty election,

551 an electioneering communications organization shall file a

552 statement of organization with the Division of Elections.

553 b. In a countywide election or any election held on less

554 than a countywide basis, except as described in sub-subparagraph

555 c., an electioneering communications organization shall file a

556 statement of organization with the supervisor of elections of

557 the county in which the election is being held.

Page 20 of 59

CODING: Words striaKon are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 9 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

558 c. In a municipal election, an electioneering

559 communications organization shall file a statement of

560 organization with the officer before whom municipal candidates

561 qualify.

562 d. If an electioneering communications organization is

563 required to file a statement of organization with two or more

564 locations in order to comply with the requirements of this

565 subparagraph, the electioneering communications organization

566 shall file a statement of organization only with the Division of

567 Elections.

568 (2) The statement of organization shall include:

569 (a) The name, mailing address, and street address of the

570 committee or electioneering communications organization;

571 (b) The names, street addresses, and relationships of

572 affiliated or connected organizations;

573 (c) The area, scope, or jurisdiction of the committee or

574 electioneering communications organization;

575 (d) The name, mailing address, street address, and

576 position of the custodian of books and accounts;

577 (e) The name, mailing address, street address, and

578 position of other principal officers, including the treasurer

579 and deputy treasurer including offieers and ffieffibero of the

580 finanee eOffifflittee, if any;

581 (f) The name, address, office sought, and party

582 affiliation of:

583 1. Each candidate whom the committee is supporting;

Page 21 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REP RESENTATIVES

2010

584 2. Any other individual, if any, whom the committee is

585 supporting for nomination for election, or election, to any

586 public office whatever;

587 (g) Any issue or issues the committee ouch organization is

588 supporting or opposing;

589 (h) If the committee is supporting the entire ticket of

590 any party, a statement to that effect and the name of the party;

591 (i) A statement of whether the committee is a continuing

592 one;

593 (j) Plans for the disposition of residual funds which will

594 be made in the event of dissolution;

595 (k) A listing of all banks, safe-deposit boxes, or other

596 depositories used for committee or electioneering communications

597 organization funds; an-El:

598 (1) A statement of the reports required to be filed by the

599 committee or the electioneering communications organization with

600 federal officials, if any, and the names, addresses, and

601 positions of such officials; and

602 (m) A statement of whether the electioneering

603 communications organization was formed as a newly created

604 organization during the current calendar quarter or was formed

605 from an organization existing prior to the current calendar

606 quarter. For purposes of this subsection, calendar quarters end

607 the last day of March, June, September, and December.

608 (4) Any change in information previously submitted in a

609 statement of organization shall be reported to the agency or

610 officer with whom such committee or electioneering

Page 22 of 59

CODING: Words striekeA are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

611 communications organization is required to register pursuant to

612 subseetion (3), within 10 days following the change.

613 (7) The Division of Elections shall adopt proffiUlgate rules

614 to prescribe the manner in which inactive committees and

615 electioneering communications organizations may be dissolved and

616 have their registration canceled. Such rules shall, at a

617 minimum, provide for:

618 (a) Notice which shall contain the facts and conduct which

619 warrant the intended action, including but not limited to

620 failure to file reports and limited activity.

621 (b) Adequate opportunity to respond.

622 (c) Appeal of the decision to the Florida Elections

623 Commission. Such appeals shall be exempt from the

624 confidentiality provisions of s. 106.25.

625 Section 9. Paragraph (c) of subsection (4) of section

626 106.04, Florida Statutes, is amended, and subsection (5) of that

627 section is reenacted, to read:

628 106.04 Committees of continuous existence.-

629 (4)

630 (c) All committees of continuous existence shall file

631 their reports with the Division of Elections. Reports shall be

632 filed in accordance with s. 106.0705 and shall contain the

633 following information:

634 1. The full name, address, and occupation of each person

635 who has made one or more contributions, including contributions

636 that represent the payment of membership dues, to the committee

637 during the reporting period, together with the amounts and dates

638 of such contributions. For corporations, the report must provide

Page 23 of 59

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

639 as clear a description as practicable of the principal type of

640 business conducted by the corporation. However, if the

641 contribution is $100 or less, the occupation of the contributor

642 or principal type of business need not be listed. However, for

643 any contributions that represent the payment of dues by members

644 in a fixed amount aggregating no more than $250 per calendar

645 year, pursuant to the schedule on file with the Division of

646 Elections, only the aggregate amount of such contributions need

647 be listed, together with the number of members paying such dues

648 and the amount of the membership dues.

649 2. The name and address of each political committee or

650 committee of continuous existence from which the reporting

651 committee received, or the name and address of each political

652 committee, committee of continuous existence, affiliated party

653 committee, or political party to which it made, any transfer of

654 funds, together with the amounts and dates of all transfers.

655 3. Any other receipt of funds not listed pursuant to

656 subparagraph 1. or subparagraph 2., including the sources and

657 amounts of all such funds.

658 4. The name and address of, and office sought by, each

659 candidate to whom the committee has made a contribution during

660 the reporting period, together with the amount and date of each

661 contribution.

662 5. The full name and address of each person to whom

663 expenditures have been made by or on behalf of the committee

664 within the reporting period; the amount, date, and purpose of

665 each such expenditure; and the name and address, and office

666 sought by, each candidate on whose behalf such expenditure was

Page 24 of 59

CODING: Words striGkon are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

667 made.

668 6. The full name and address of each person to whom an

669 expenditure for personal services, salary, or reimbursement for

670 authorized expenses has been made, including the full name and

671 address of each entity to whom the person made payment for which

672 reimbursement was made by check drawn upon the committee

673 account, together with the amount and purpose of such payment.

674 7. Transaction information from each credit card statement

675 that will be included in the next report following receipt

676 thereof by the committee. Receipts for each credit card purchase

677 shall be retained by the treasurer with the records for the

678 committee account.

679 8. The total sum of expenditures made by the committee

680 during the reporting period.

681 (5) No committee of continuous existence shall make an

682 electioneering communication, contribute to any candidate or

683 political committee an amount in excess of the limits contained

684 in s. 106.08(1), or participate in any activity which is

685 prohibited by this chapter. If any violation occurs, it shall be

686 punishable as provided in this chapter for the given offense. No

687 funds of a committee of continuous existence shall be expended

688 on behalf of a candidate, except by means of a contribution made

689 through the duly appointed campaign treasurer of a candidate. No

690 such committee shall make expenditures in support of, or in

691 opposition to, an issue unless such committee first registers as

692 a political committee pursuant to this chapter and undertakes

693 all the practices and procedures required thereof; provided such

694 committee may make contributions in a total amount not to exceed

Page 25 of 59

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

695 25 percent of its aggregate income, as reflected in the annual

696 report filed for the previous year, to one or more political

697 committees registered pursuant to s. 106.03 and formed to

698 support or oppose issues.

699 Section 10. Subsection (5) of section 106.0701, Florida

700 Statutes, is amended to read:

701 106.0701 Solicitation of contributions on behalf of s. 527

702 or s. 501(c) (4) organizations; reporting requirements; civil

703 penalty; exemption.-

704 (5) The filing requirements of subsection (1) do not apply

705 to an individual acting on behalf of his or her own campaignL ~

706 a political party, or an affiliated party committee of which the

707 individual is a member.

708 Section 11. Section 106.0703, Florida Statutes, is

709 reenacted and amended to read:

710 106.0703 Electioneering communications organizations;

711 additional reporting requirements; certification and filing;

712 penalties.-

713 (1) (a) Each electioneering communications organization

714 shall file regular reports of all contributions received and all

715 expenditures made by or on behalf of the organization. Reports

716 shall be filed on the 10th day following the end of each

717 calendar quarter from the time the organization is registered.

718 However, if the 10th day following the end of a calendar quarter

719 occurs on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, the report shall

720 be filed on the next following day that is not a Saturday,

721 Sunday, or legal holiday. Quarterly reports shall include all

722 contributions received and expenditures made during the calendar

Page 26 of 59

CODING: Words strisken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

723 quarter that have not otherwise been reported pursuant to this

724 section.

725 (b) Following the last day of candidates qualifying for

726 office, the reports shall be filed on the 32nd, 18th, and 4th

727 days immediately preceding the primary election and on the 46th,

728 32nd, 18th, and 4th days immediately preceding the general

729 election.

730 (c) When a special election is called to fill a vacancy in

731 office, all electioneering communications organizations making

732 contributions or expenditures to influence the results of the

733 special election shall file reports with the filing officer on

734 the dates set by the Department of State pursuant to s. 100.111.

735 (d) The filing officer shall provide each electioneering

736 communications organization with a schedule designating the

737 beginning and end of reporting periods as well as the

738 corresponding designated due dates.

739 (2) (a) Except as provided in s. 106.0705, the reports

740 required of an electioneering communications organization shall

741 be filed with the filing officer not later than 5 p.m. of the

742 day designated. However, any report postmarked by the United

743 States Postal Service no later than midnight of the day

744 designated shall be deemed to have been filed in a timely

745 manner. Any report received by the filing officer within 5 days

746 after the designated due date that was delivered by the United

747 States Postal Service shall be deemed timely filed unless it has

748 a postmark that indicates that the report was mailed after the

749 designated due date. A certificate of mailing obtained from and

750 dated by the United States Postal Service at the time of

Page 27 of 59

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

751 mailing, or a receipt from an established courier company, which

752 bears a date on or before the date on which the report is due,

753 shall be proof of mailing in a timely manner. Reports shall

754 contain information of all previously unreported contributions

755 received and expenditures made as of the preceding Friday,

756 except that the report filed on the Friday immediately preceding

757 the election shall contain information of all previously

758 unreported contributions received and expenditures made as of

759 the day preceding the designated due date. All such reports

760 shall be open to public inspection.

761 (b)l. Any report that is deemed to be incomplete by the

762 officer with whom the electioneering communications organization

763 files shall be accepted on a conditional basis. The treasurer of

764 the electioneering communications organization shall be

765 notified, by certified mail or other common carrier that can

766 establish proof of delivery for the notice, as to why the report

767 is incomplete. Within 7 days after receipt of such notice, the

768 treasurer must file an addendum to the report providing all

769 information necessary to complete the report in compliance with

770 this section. Failure to file a complete report after such

771 notice constitutes a violation of this chapter.

772 2. Notice is deemed sufficient upon proof of delivery of

773 written notice to the mailing or street address of the treasurer

774 of the electioneering communication organization on record with

775 the filing officer.

776 (3) (a) Each report required by this section must contain:

777 1. The full name, address, and occupation, if any, of each

778 person who has made one or more contributions to or for such

Page 28 of 59

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

779 electioneering communications organization within the reporting

780 period, together with the amount and date of such contributions.

781 For corporations, the report must provide as clear a description

782 as practicable of the principal type of business conducted by

783 the corporation. However, if the contribution is $100 or less,

784 the occupation of the contributor or the principal type of

785 business need not be listed.

786 2. The name and address of each political committee from

787 which or to which the reporting electioneering communications

788 organization made any transfer of funds, together with the

789 amounts and dates of all transfers.

790 3. Each loan for electioneering communication purposes to

791 or from any person or political committee within the reporting

792 period, together with the full names, addresses, and occupations

793 and principal places of business, if any, of the lender and

794 endorsers, if any, and the date and amount of such loans.

795 4. A statement of each contribution, rebate, refund, or

796 other receipt not otherwise listed under subparagraphs 1.-3.

797 5. The total sums of all loans, "in-kind contributions, and

798 other receipts by or for such electioneering communications

799 organization during the reporting period. The reporting forms

800 shall be designed to elicit separate totals for in-kind

801 contributions, loans, and other receipts.

802 6. The full name and address of each person to whom

803 expenditures have been made by or on behalf of the

804 electioneering communications organization within the reporting

805 period and the amount, date, and purpose of each expenditure.

Page 29 of 59

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

806 7. The full name and address of each person to whom an

807 expenditure for personal services, salary, or reimbursement for

808 expenses has been made and that is not otherwise reported,

809 including the amount, date, and purpose of the expenditure.

810 8. The total sum of expenditures made by the

811 electioneering communications organization during the reporting

812 period.

813 9. The amount and nature of debts and obligations owed by

814 or to the electioneering communications organization that relate

815 to the conduct of any electioneering communication.

816 10. Transaction information for each credit card purchase.

817 Receipts for each credit card purchase shall be retained by the

818 electioneering communications organization.

819 11. The amount and nature of any separate interest-bearing

820 accounts or certificates of deposit and identification of the

821 financial institution in which such accounts or certificates of

822 deposit are located.

823 12. The primary purposes of an expenditure made indirectly

824 through an electioneering communications organization for goods

825 and services, such as communications media placement or

826 procurement services and other expenditures that include

827 multiple components as part of the expenditure. The primary

828 purpose of an expenditure shall be that purpos~, including

829 integral and directly related components, that comprises 80

830 percent of such expenditure.

831 (b) The filing officer shall make available to any

832 electioneering communications organization a reporting form

833 which the electioneering communications organization may use to

Page 30 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REP RESENTATIVES

2010

834 indicate contributions received by the electioneering

835 communications organization but returned to the contributor

836 before deposit.

837 (4) The treasurer of the electioneering communications

838 organization shall certify as to the correctness of each report,

839 and each person so certifying shall bear the responsibility for

840 the accuracy and veracity of each report. Any treasurer who

841 willfully certifies the correctness of any report while knowing

842 that such report is incorrect, false, or incomplete commits a

843 misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s.

844 775.082 or s. 775.083.

845 (5) The electioneering communications organization

846 depository shall return all checks drawn on the account to the

847 treasurer, who shall retain the records pursuant to s. 106.06.

848 The records maintained by the depository with respect to the

849 account shall be subject to inspection by an agent of the

850 Division of Elections or the Florida Elections Commission at any

851 time during normal banking hours, and such depository shall

852 furnish certified copies of any such records to the Division of

853 Elections or the Florida Elections Commission upon request.

854 (6) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter,

855 in any reporting period during which an electioneering

856 communications organization has not received funds, made any

857 contributions, or expended any reportable funds, the filing of

858 the required report for that period is waived. However, the next

859 report filed must specify that the report covers the entire

860 period between the last submitted report and the report being

861 filed, and any electioneering communications organization not

Page 31 of 59

CODING: Words strioKon are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

862 reporting by virtue of this subsection on dates prescribed

863 elsewhere in this chapter shall notify the filing officer in

864 writing on the prescribed reporting date that no report is being

865 filed on that date.

866 (7) (a) Any electioneering communications organization

867 failing to file a report on the designated due date shall be

868 subject to a fine as provided in paragraph (b) for each late

869 day. The fine shall be assessed by the filing officer and the

870 moneys collected shall be deposited:

871 1. In the General Revenue Fund, in the case of an

872 electioneering communications organization that registers with

873 the Division of Elections; or

874 2. In the general revenue fund of the political

875 subdivision, in the case of an electioneering communications

876 organization that registers with an officer of a political

877 subdivision.

878

879 No separate fine shall be assessed for failure to file a copy of

880 any report required by this section.

881 (b) Upon determining that a report is late, the filing

882 officer shall immediately notify the electioneering

883 communications organization as to the failure to file a report

884 by the designated due date and that a fine is being assessed for

885 each late day. The fine shall be $50 per day for the first 3

886 days late and, thereafter, $500 per day for each late day, not

887 to exceed 25 percent of the total receipts or expenditures,

888 whichever is greater, for the period covered by the late report.

889 However, for the reports immediately preceding each primary and

Page 32 of 59

CODING: Words stricKen are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1207 2010

When the report is actually received by such officer.

When the report is postmarked.

When the certificate of mailing is dated .

When the receipt from an established courier company is

890 general election, the fine shall be $500 per day for each late

891 day, not to exceed 25 percent of the total receipts or

892 expenditures, whichever is greater, for the period covered by

893 the late report. Upon receipt of the report, the filing officer

894 shall determine the amount of the fine which is due and shall

895 notify the electioneering communications organization. The

896 filing officer shall determine the amount of the fine due based

897 upon the earliest of the following:

898 .::l....:..._..:..:..:..:=----=c=--=...=....:-=-=...::-=--=-=-=== ==.::....:...=-=- =....:::..=--=-=-=-=_=_~

899 2.___-'-_~__""""-..:....-_---:'---'Io......:.....:...c:..__......:....:....:..

900 3.
...:.....:---:......::..:..:...-~-"-:......::...::...::.-=-=---::....::.:...::..~..:...::_...:.;,.,::..=..:=""-------::---::..=..:.:....::...~

9 0 1 ...::4....:..._..:..:..:..:=----=c=--=-=-=..::.::~--==:.::.:.....=--=.=====--=.==_=_=-=---=-.::..:..:.:.~:..:...L__==

902 dated.

903 5. When the electronic receipt issued pursuant to s.

904 106.0705 or other electronic filing system authorized in this

905 section is dated.

906

907 Such fine shall be paid to the filing officer within 20 days

908 after receipt of the notice of payment due, unless appeal is

909 made to the Florida Elections Commission pursuant to paragraph

910 (c). Notice is deemed sufficient upon proof of delivery of

911 written notice to the mailing or street address on record with

912 the filing officer. An officer or member of an electioneering

913 communications organization shall not be personally liable for

914 such fine.

915 (c) The treasurer of an electioneering communications

916 organization may appeal or dispute the fine, based upon, but not

917 limited to, unusual circumstances surrounding the failure to

Page 33 of 59

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

commission shall investigate only those alleged late filing

violations specifically identified by the filing officer and as

set forth in the notification. Any other alleged violations must

918 file on the designated due date, and may request and shall be

919 entitled to a hearing before the Florida Elections Commission,

920 which shall have the authority to waive the fine in whole or in

921 part. The Florida Elections Commission must consider the

922 mitigating and aggravating circumstances contained in s.

923 106.265(1) when determining the amount of a fine, if any, to be

924 waived. Any such request shall be made within 20 days after

925 receipt of the notice of payment due. In such case, the

926 treasurer of the electioneering communications organization

927 shall, within the 20-day period, notify the filing officer in

928 writing of his or her intention to bring the matter before the

929 commission.

930 (d) The appropriate filing officer shall notify the

931 Florida Elections Commission of the repeated late filing by an

932 electioneering communications organization, the failure of an

933 electioneering communications organization to file a report

934 after notice, or the failure to pay the fine imposed. The

935

936

937

938 be stated separately and reported by the division to the

939 commission under s. 106.25(2).

940 ~ In addition to the reporting requirements in s.

941 106.07, An electioneering communications organization shall,

942 within 2 days after receiving its initial password or secure

943 sign-on from the Department of State allowing confidential

944 access to the department's electronic campaign finance filing

945 system, electronically file the periodic campaign finance

Page 34 of 59

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

946 reports that would have been required pursuant to this section

947 8. 106.07 for reportable activities that occurred since the date

948 of the last general election.

949 Section 12. Paragraph (b) of subsection (2) of section

950 106.0705, Florida Statutes, is reenacted and amended, and

951 subsections (3) and (4) of that section are amended, to read:

952 106.0705 Electronic filing of campaign treasurer's

953 reports.-

954 (2)

955 (b) Each political committee, committee of continuous

956 existence, electioneering communications organization,

957 affiliated party committee, or state executive committee that is

958 required to file reports with the division under s. 106.04, s.

959 106.07, s. 106.0703, or s. 106.29, as applicable, must file such

960 reports with the division by means of the division's electronic

961 filing system.

962 (3) Reports filed pursuant to this section shall be

963 completed and filed through the electronic filing system not

964 later than midnight of the day designated. Reports not filed by

965 midnight of the day designated are late filed and are subject to

966 the penalties under s. 106.04(8), s. 106.07(8), s. 106.0703(7),

967 or s. 106.29(3), as applicable.

968 (4) Each report filed pursuant to this section is

969 considered to be under oath by the candidate and treasurerL er

970 the chair and treasurer, or the leader and treasurer under s.

971 103.092, whichever is applicable, and such persons are subject

972 to the provisions of s. 106.04 (4) (d), s. 106.07 (5), ~

973 106.0703(4), or s. 106.29(2), as applicable. Persons given a

Page 35 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

974

975

976

977

978

979

980

981

982

983

984

985

986

987

988

989

990

991

992

993

994

995

996

997

998

999

1000

1001

secure sign-on to the electronic filing system are responsible

for protecting such from disclosure and are responsible for all

filings using such credentials, unless they have notified the

division that their credentials have been compromised.

Section 13. Subsection (1) of section 106.071, Florida

Statutes, is reenacted and amended to read:

106.071 Independent expenditures; electioneering

communications; reports; disclaimers.-

(1) Each person who makes an independent expenditure with

respect to any candidate or issue, and each individual who makes

an expenditure for an electioneering communication which is not

otherwise reported pursuant to this chapter, which expenditure,

in the aggregate, is in the amount of $5,000~ or more, shall

file periodic reports of such expenditures in the same manner,

at the same time, subject to the same penalties, and with the

same officer as a political committee supporting or opposing

such candidate or issue. The report shall contain the full name

and address of the person making the expenditure; the full name

and address of each person to whom and for whom each such

expenditure has been made; the amount, date, and purpose of each

such expenditure; a description of the services or goods

obtained by each such expenditure; the issue to which the

expenditure relates; and the name and address of, and office

sought by, each candidate on whose behalf such expenditure was

made.

Section 14. Subsections (1) , (2), (4), (5), and (6) of

section 106.08, Florida Statutes, are amended, and subsection

(7) of that section is reenacted and amended, to read:

Page 36 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1002

1003

1004

1005

1006

1007

1008

1009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

106.08 Contributions; limitations on.-

(1) (a) Except for political parties or affiliated party

committees, no person, political committee, or committee of

continuous existence may, in any election, make contributions in

excess of $500 to any candidate for election to or retention in

office or to any political committee supporting or opposing one

or more candidates. Candidates for the offices of Governor and

Lieutenant Governor on the same ticket are considered a single

candidate for the purpose of this section.

(b)l. The contribution limits provided in this subsection

do not apply to contributions made by a state or county

executive committee of a political party or affiliated party

committee regulated by chapter 103 or to amounts contributed by

a candidate to his or her own campaign.

2. Notwithstanding the limits provided in this subsection,

an unemancipated child under the age of 18 years of age may not

make a contribution in excess of $100 to any candidate or to any

political committee supporting one or more candidates.

(c) The contribution limits of this subsection apply to

each election. For purposes of this subsection, the primary

election and general election are separate elections so long as

the candidate is not an unopposed candidate as defined in s.

106.011(15). However, for the purpose of contribution limits

with respect to candidates for retention as a justice or judge,

there is only one election, which is the general election.

(2) (a) A candidate may not accept contributions from

national, state, or including any subordinate eommittee of a

national, state, or county committee of a political party, and

Page 37 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040

1041

1042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

1048

1049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057

county executive committees of a political party, including any

subordinate committee of such political party or affiliated

party committees, which contributions in the aggregate exceed

$50,000, no more than $25, 000 of ..,hieh may be accepted prior to

the 28 day period iffiffiediately preceding the date of the general

election.

(b) A candidate for statewide office may not accept

contributions from national, state, or county executive

committees of a political party, including any subordinate

committee of the a national, state, or county cOffiffiittee of a

political party, or affiliated party committees, which

contributions in the aggregate exceed $250,000, no more than

$125,000 of "hich may be accepted prior to the 28 day period

iffiffiediately preceding the date of the general election. Polling

services, research services, costs for campaign staff,

professional consulting services, and telephone calls are not

contributions to be counted toward the contribution limits of

paragraph (a) or this paragraph. Any item not expressly

identified in this paragraph as nonaliocable is a contribution

in an amount equal to the fair market value of the item and must

be counted as allocable toward the contribution limits of

paragraph (a) or this paragraph. Nonallocable, in-kind

contributions must be reported by the candidate under s. 106.07

and by the political party or affiliated party committee under

s. 106.29.

(4)~ Any contribution received by the chair, campaign

treasurer, or deputy campaign treasurer of a political committee

supporting or opposing a candidate with opposition in an

Page 38 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REP RESENTATIVES

2010

1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067

1068

1069

1070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

election or supporting or opposing an issue on the ballot in an

election on the day of that election or less than 5 days prior

to the day of that election may not be obligated or expended by

the committee until after the date of the election.

(b) Any contribution received by an electioneering

communications organization on the day of an election or less

than 5 days prior to the day of that election may not be

obligated or eupended by the organization until after the date

of the election and may not be e:l[pended to pay for any

obligation arising prior to the election.

(5) (a) A person may not make any contribution through or

in the name of another, directly or indirectly, in any election.

(b) Candidates, political committees, affiliated party

committees, and political parties may not solicit contributions

from any religious, charitable, civic, or other causes or

organizations established primarily for the public good.

(c) Candidates, political committees, affiliated party

committees, and political parties may not make contributions, in

exchange for political support, to any religious, charitable,

civic, or other cause or organization established primarily for

the public good. It is not a violation of this paragraph for:

1. A candidate, political committee, affiliated party

committee, or political party executive committee to make gifts

of money in lieu of flowers in memory of a deceased person;

2. A candidate to continue membership in, or make regular

donations from personal or business funds to, religious,

political party, affiliated party committee, civic, or

charitable groups of which the candidate is a member or to which

Page 39 of 59

CODING: Words striekon are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

1092

1093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

the candidate has been a regular donor for more than 6 months;

or

3. A candidate to purchase, with campaign funds, tickets,

admission to events, or advertisements from religious, civic,

political party, affiliated party committee, or charitable

groups.

(d) An electioneering communications organization may not

accept a contribution from an organization enempt from tmwtion

under s. 527 or s. 501(c) (4) of the Internal Revenue Code, other

than a political committee, committee of continuous eJfistence,

or political party, unless the contributing organization has

registered as if the organization Here an electioneering

eommunications organization pursuant to s. 106.03 and has filed

all campaign finance reports required of electioneering

communications organizations pursuant to ss. 106.07 and

106.0703.

(6) (a) A political party or affiliated party committee may

not accept any contribution that has been specifically

designated for the partial or exclusive use of a particular

candidate. Any contribution so designated must be returned to

the contributor and may not be used or expended by or on behalf

of the candidate. Funds contributed to an affiliated party

committee shall not be deemed as designated for the partial or

exclusive use of a leader as defined in s. 103.092.

(b)l. A political party or affiliated party committee may

not accept any in-kind contribution that fails to provide a

direct benefit to the political party or affiliated party

committee. A "direct benefit" includes, but is not limited to,

Page 40 of 59

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

1127

1128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

fundraising or furthering the objectives of the political party

or affiliated party committee.

2.a. An in-kind contribution to a state political party

may be accepted only by the chairperson of the state political

party or by the chairperson's designee or designees whose names

are on file with the division in a form acceptable to the

division prior to the date of the written notice required in

sub-subparagraph b. An in-kind contribution to a county

political party may be accepted only by the chairperson of the

county political party or by the county chairperson's designee

or designees whose names are on file with the supervisor of

elections of the respective county prior to the date of the

written notice required in sub-subparagraph b. An in-kind

contribution to an affiliated party committee may be accepted

only by the leader of the affiliated party committee as defined

in s. 103.092 or by the leader's designee or designees whose

names are on file with the division in a form acceptable to the

division prior to the date of the written notice required in

sub-subparagraph b.

b. A person making an in-kind contribution to a state

political party or county political party or affiliated party

committee must provide prior written notice of the contribution

to a person described in sub-subparagraph a. The prior written

notice must be signed and dated and may be provided by an

electronic or facsimile message. However, prior written notice

is not required for an in-kind contribution that consists of

food and beverage in an aggregate amount not exceeding $1,500

which is consumed at a single sitting or event if such in-kind

Page 41 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

1149

1150

1151

1152

1153

1154

1155

1156

1157

1158

1159

1160

1161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

contribution is accepted in advance by a person specified in

sub-subparagraph a.

c. A person described in sub-subparagraph a. may accept an

in-kind contribution requiring prior written notice only in a

writing that is signed and dated before the in-kind contribution

is made. Failure to obtain the required written acceptance of an

in-kind contribution to a state or county political party or

affiliated party committee constitutes a refusal of the

contribution.

d. A copy of each prior written acceptance required under

sub-subparagraph c. must be filed with the division at the time

the regular reports of contributions and expenditures required

under s. 106.29 are filed by the state executive committeeL ~

county executive committee, and affiliated party committee.

e. An in-kind contribution may not be given to a state or

county political party or affiliated party committee unless the

in-kind contribution is made as provided in this subparagraph.

(7) (a) Any person who knowingly and willfully makes or

accepts no more than one contribution" in violation of subsection

(1) or subsection (5), or any person who knowingly and willfully

fails or refuses to return any contribution as required in

subsection (3), commits a misdemeanor of the first degree,

punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. If any

corporation, partnership, or other business entity or any

political party, affiliated party committee, political

committee, committee of continuous existence, or electioneering

communications organization is convicted of knowingly and

willfully violating any provision punishable under this

Page 42 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1170

1171

1172

1173

1174

1175

1176

1177

1178

1179

1180

1181

1182

1183

1184

1185

1186

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

1193

1194

1195

1196

1197

paragraph, it shall be fined not less than $1,000 and not more

than $10,000. If it is a domestic entity, it may be ordered

dissolved by a court of competent jurisdiction; if it is a

foreign or nonresident business entity, its right to do business

in this state may be forfeited. Any officer, partner, agent,

attorney, or other representative of a corporation, partnership,

or other business entity, or of a political party, affiliated

party committee, political committee, committee of continuous

existence, electioneering communications organization, or

organization exempt from taxation under s. 527 or s. 501(c) (4)

of the Internal Revenue Code, who aids, abets, advises, or

participates in a violation of any provision punishable under

this paragraph commits a misdemeanor of the first degree,

punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083.

(b) Any person who knowingly and willfully makes or

accepts two or more contributions in violation of subsection (1)

or subsection (5) commits a felony of the third degree,

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084.

If any corporation, partnership, or other business entity or any

political party, affiliated party committee, political

committee, committee of continuous existence, or electioneering

communications organization is convicted of knowingly and

willfully violating any provision punishable under this

paragraph, it shall be fined not less than $10,000 and not more

than $50,000. If it is a domestic entity, it may be ordered

dissolved by a court of competent jurisdiction; if it is a

foreign or nonresident business entity, its right to do business

in this state may be forfeited. Any officer, partner, agent,

Page 43 of 59

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1198

1199

1200

1201

1202

1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

1209

1210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

attorney, or other representative of a corporation, partnership,

or other business entity, or of a political committee, committee

of continuous existence, political party, affiliated party

committee, or electioneering communications organization, or

organization exempt from taxation under s. 527 or s. 501(c) (4)

of the Internal Revenue Code, who aids, abets, advises, or

participates in a violation of any provision punishable under

this paragraph commits a felony of the third degree, punishable

as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084.

Section 15. Section 106.088, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

106.088 Independent expenditures; contribution limits;

restrictions on affiliated party committees.-

(1) As a condition of receiving a rebate of party

assessments under s. 103.121 (1) (b), the leader or treasurer of

an affiliated party committee as defined in s. 103.092 shall

take and subscribe to an oath or affirmation in writing. During

the qualifying period for state candidates and prior to

distribution of such funds, a printed coPy of the oath or

affirmation shall be filed with the Secretary of State and shall

be substantially in the following form:

State of Florida

County of

Before me, an officer authorized to administer oaths, personally

appeared ... (name) ... , to me well known, who, being sworn, says

that he or she is the ... (title) ... of the ... (name of

Page 44 of 59

CODING: Words striekeR are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

party) (name of chamber) affiliated party committee;

that the affiliated party committee has not made, either

directly or indirectly, an independent expenditure in support of

or opposition to a candidate or elected public official in the

prior 6 months; that the affiliated party committee will not

make, either directly or indirectly, an independent expenditure

in support of or opposition to a candidate or elected public

official, through and including the upcoming general election;

and that the affiliated party committee will not violate the

contribution limits applicable to candidates under s. 106.08(2),

Florida Statutes.

... (Signature of committee officer) .

... (Address) .

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of

... (year) ... , at County, Florida.

... (Signature and title of officer administering oath) ...

(2) (a) Any affiliated party committee found to have

violated the provisions of the oath or affirmation prior to

receiving funds shall be ineligible to· receive the rebate for

that general election year.

(b) Any affiliated party committee found to have violated

the provisions of the oath or affirmation after receiving funds

shall be ineligible to receive the rebate from candidates

qualifying for the following general election cycle.

(3) Any funds not distributed to the affiliated party

committee pursuant to this section shall be deposited into the

General Revenue Fund of the state.

Page 45 of 59

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1253

1254

1255

1256

1257

1258

1259

1260

1261

1262

1263

1264

1265

1266

1267

1268

1269

1270

1271

1272

1273

1274

1275

1276

1277

1278

1279

Section 16. Section 106.113, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

106.113 Expenditures by local governments.­

(1) As used in this section, the term+

-ta+ "local government" means:

~~ A county, municipality, school district, or other

political subdivision in this state; and

(b)~ Any department, agency, board, bureau, district,

commission, authority, or similar body of a county,

municipality, school district, or other political subdivision of

this state.

(bl "Public funds" means all moneys under the jurisdiction

or control of the local government.

(2) A local government or a person acting on behalf of

local government may not make a specific appropriation or

designated expenditure of moneys under the jurisdiction or

control of the local government el~end or authori~e the

eJEpenditure of, and a person or group may not accept such

moneys, public funds for the purpose of a political

advertisement or electioneering communication concerning an

issue, referendum, or amendment, including any state question,

that is subject to a vote of the electors. This subsection does

not apply to an electioneering communication from a local

government or a person acting on behalf of a local government

,[hich is lim:ited to factual information.

(3) With the exception of the prohibitions specified in

subsection (2), this section does not preclude an elected

Page 46 of 59

CODING: Words striokeA are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1280

1281

1282

1283

1284

1285

1286

1287

1288

1289

1290

1291

1292

1293

1294

1295

1296

1297

1298

1299

1300

1301

1302

1303

1304

1305

1306

1307

official of the local government from expressing an opinion on

any issue at any time.

Section 17. Section 106.1437, Florida Statutes, is

reenacted to read:

106.1437 Miscellaneous advertisements.-Any advertisement,

other than a political advertisement, independent expenditure,

or electioneering communication, on billboards, bumper stickers,

radio, or television, or in a newspaper, a magazine, or a

periodical, intended to influence public policy or the vote of a

public official, shall clearly designate the sponsor of such

advertisement by including a clearly readable statement of

sponsorship. If the advertisement is broadcast on television,

the advertisement shall also contain a verbal statement of

sponsorship. This section shall not apply to an editorial

endorsement.

Section 18. Section 106.1439, Florida Statutes, is

reenacted and amended to read:

106.1439 Electioneering communications; disclaimers.-

(1) Any electioneering communication, other than a

telephone call, shall prominently state: "Paid electioneering

communication paid for by ... (Name and address of person paying

for the communication) .... "

(2) Any electioneering communication telephone call shall

identify the persons or organizations sponsoring the call by

stating either: "Paid for by ... (insert name of persons or

organizations sponsoring the call) .... " or "Paid for on behalf

of (insert name of persons or organizations authorizing

call) " This subsection does not apply to any telephone call

Page 47 of 59

CODING: Words striokeA are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1308

1309

1310

1311

1312

1313

1314

1315

1316

1317

1318

1319

1320

1321

1322

1323

1324

1325

1326

1327

1328

1329

1330

1331

1332

1333

1334

1335

in which the individual making the call is not being paid and

the individuals participating in the call know each other prior

to the call.

J2l~ Any person who fails to include the disclaimer

prescribed in this section in any electioneering communication

that is required to contain such disclaimer commits a

misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s.

775.082 or s. 775.083.

Section 19. Paragraphs (a) and (e) of subsection (1) and

subsection (3) of section 106.147, Florida Statutes, are amended

to read:

106.147 Telephone solicitation; disclosure requirements;

prohibitions; exemptions; penalties.-

(1) (a) Any electioneering cOffiffiunication telephone call or

frftY telephone call supporting or opposing a candidate, elected

public official, or ballot proposal must identify the persons or

organizations sponsoring the call by stating either: "paid for

by " (insert name of persons or organizations sponsoring

the call) or "paid for on behalf of II (insert name of

persons or organizations authorizing call). This paragraph does

not apply to any telephone call in which both the individual

making the call is not being paid and the individuals

participating in the call know each other prior to the call.

(e) Any electioneering communication paid for \fith public

funds must include a disclaimer containing the words "paid for

by ... (Name of the government entity paying for the

communication) .... "

(3) (a) Any person who willfully violates any provision of

Page 48 of 59

CODING: Words striekeA are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

1336

1337

1338

1339

1340

1341

1342

1343

1344

1345

1346

1347

1348

1349

1350

1351

1352

1353

1354

1355

1356

1357

1358

1359

1360

1361

1362

1363

this section commits a misdemeanor of the first degree,

punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083.

(b) For purposes of paragraph (a), the term "person"

includes any candidate; any officer of any political committee,

committee of continuous existence, affiliated party committee,

or political party executive committee; any officer, partner,

attorney, or other representative of a corporation, partnership,

or other business entity; and any agent or other person acting

on behalf of any candidate, political committee, committee of

continuous existence, affiliated party committee, political

party executive committee, or corporation, partnership, or other

business entity.

Section 20. Section 106.165, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

106.165 Use of closed captioning and descriptive narrative

in all television broadcasts.-Each candidate, political party,

affiliated party committee, and political committee must use

closed captioning and descriptive narrative in all television

broadcasts regulated by the Federal Communications Commission

that are on behalf of, or sponsored by, a candidate, political

party, affiliated party committee, or political committee or

must file a written statement with the qualifying officer

setting forth the reasons for not doing so. Failure to file this

statement with the appropriate qualifying officer constitutes a

violation of the Florida Election Code and is under the

jurisdiction of the Florida Elections Commission. The Department

of State may adopt rules in accordance with s. 120.54 which are

necessary to administer this section.

Page 49 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

H81207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1364

1365

1366

1367

1368

1369

1370

1371

1372

1373

1374

1375

1376

1377

1378

1379

1380

1381

1382

1383

1384

1385

1386

1387

1388

1389

1390

1391

Section 21. Section 106.17, Florida Statutes, is reenacted

and amended to read:

106.17 Polls and surveys relating to candidacies.-Any

candidate, political committee, committee of continuous

existence, electioneering communication organization, affiliated

party committee, or state or county executive committee of a

political party may authorize or conduct a political poll,

survey, index, or measurement of any kind relating to candidacy

for public office so long as the candidate, political committee,

committee of continuous existence, electioneering communication

organization, affiliated party committee, or political party

maintains complete jurisdiction over the poll in all its

aspects.

Section 22. Subsection (2) of section 106.23, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

106.23 Powers of the Division of Elections.-

(2) The Division of Elections shall provide advisory

opinions when requested by any supervisor of elections,

candidate, local officer having election-related duties,

political party, affiliated party committee, political

committee, committee of continuous existence, or other person or

organization engaged in political activity, relating to any

provisions or possible violations of Florida election laws with

respect to actions such supervisor, candidate, local officer

having election-related duties, political party, affiliated

party committee, committee, person, or organization has taken or

proposes to take. Requests for advisory opinions must be

submitted in accordance with rules adopted by the Department of

Page 50 of 59

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

1392

1393

1394

1395

1396

1397

1398

1399

1400

1401

1402

1403

1404

1405

1406

1407

1408

1409

1410

1411

1412

1413

1414

1415

1416

1417

1418

1419

State. A written record of all such opinions issued by the

division, sequentially numbered, dated, and indexed by subject

matter, shall be retained. A copy shall be sent to said person

or organization upon request. Any such person or organization,

acting in good faith upon such an advisory opinion, shall not be

subject to any criminal penalty provided for in this chapter.

The opinion, until amended or revoked, shall be binding on any

person or organization who sought the opinion or with reference

to whom the opinion was sought, unless material facts were

omitted or misstated in the request for the advisory opinion.

Section 23. Subsections (1) and (2) of section 106.265,

Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

106.265 Civil penalties.-

(1) The commission is authorized upon the finding of a

violation of this chapter or chapter 104 to impose civil

penalties in the form of fines not to exceed $1,000 per count.

In determining the amount of such civil penalties, the

commission shall consider, among other mitigating and

aggravating circumstances:

(a) The gravity of the act or omission;

(b) Any previous history of similar acts or omissions;

(c) The appropriateness of such penalty to the financial

resources of the person, political committee, committee of

continuous existence, affiliated party committee, or political

party; and

(d) Whether the person, political committee, committee of

continuous existence, affiliated party committee, or political

party has shown good faith in attempting to comply with the

Page 51 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1420

1421

1422

1423

1424

1425

1426

1427

1428

1429

1430

1431

1432

1433

1434

1435

1436

1437

1438

1439

1440

1441

1442

1443

1444

1445

1446

1447

provisions of this chapter or chapter 104.

(2) If any person, political committee, committee of

continuous existence, affiliated party committee, or political

party fails or refuses to pay to the commission any civil

penalties assessed pursuant to the provisions of this section,

the commission shall be responsible for collecting the civil

penalties resulting from such action.

Section 24. Subsection (2) of section 106.27, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

106.27 Determinations by commission; legal disposition.­

(2) Civil actions may be brought by the commission for

relief, including permanent or temporary injunctions,

restraining orders, or any other appropriate order for the

imposition of civil penalties provided by this chapter. Such

civil actions shall be brought by the commission in the

appropriate court of competent jurisdiction, and the venue shall

be in the county in which the alleged violation occurred or in

which the alleged violator or violators are found, reside, or

transact business. Upon a proper showing that such person,

political committee, committee of continuous existence,

affiliated party committee, or political party has engaged, or

is about to engage, in prohibited acts or practices, a permanent

or temporary injunction, restraining order, or other order shall

be granted without bond by such court, and the civil fines

provided by this chapter may be imposed.

Section 25. Section 106.29, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

106.29 Reports by political parties and affiliated party

Page 52 of 59

CODING: Words striekon are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1448

1449

1450

1451

1452

1453

1454

1455

1456

1457

1458

1459

1460

1461

1462

1463

1464

1465

1466

1467

1468

1469

1470

1471

1472

1473

1474

1475

committees; restrictions on contributions and expenditures;

penalties.-

(1) The state executive committee and each county

executive committee of each political party and any affiliated

party committee regulated by chapter 103 shall file regular

reports of all contributions received and all expenditures made

by such committee. Such reports shall contain the same

information as do reports required of candidates by s. 106.07

and shall be filed on the 10th day following the end of each

calendar quarter, except that, during the period from the last

day for candidate qualifying until the general election, such

reports shall be filed on the Friday immediately preceding both

the primary election and the general election. In addition to

the reports filed under this section, the state executive

committeeL frftff each county executive committee, and each

affiliated party committee shall file a copy of each prior

written acceptance of an in-kind contribution given by the

committee during the preceding calendar quarter as required

under s. 106.08(6). Each state executive committee and

affiliated party committee shall file the original and one copy

of its reports with the Division of Elections. Each county

executive committee shall file its reports with the supervisor

of elections in the county in which such committee exists. Any

state or county executive committee or affiliated party

committee failing to file a report on the designated due date

shall be subject to a fine as provided in subsection (3). No

separate fine shall be assessed for failure to file a copy of

any report required by this section.

Page 53 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1476

1477

1478

1479

1480

1481

1482

1483

1484

1485

1486

1487

1488

1489

1490

1491

1492

1493

1494

1495

1496

1497

1498

1499

1500

1501

1502

1503

(2) The chair and treasurer of each state or county

executive committee shall certify as to the correctness of each

report filed by them on behalf of such committee. The leader and

treasurer of each affiliated party committee under s. 103.092

shall certify as to the correctness of each report filed by them

on behalf of such committee. Any committee chair, leader, or

treasurer who certifies the correctness of any report while

knowing that such report is incorrect, false, or incomplete

commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in

s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084.

(3) (a) Any state or county executive committee or

affiliated party committee failing to file a report on the

designated due date shall be subject to a fine as provided in

paragraph (b) for each late day. The fine shall be assessed by

the filing officer, and the moneys collected shall be deposited

in the General Revenue Fund.

(b) Upon determining that a report is late, the filing

officer shall immediately notify the chair of the executive

committee or the leader of the affiliated party committee as

defined in s. 103.092 as to the failure to file a report by the

designated due date and that a fine is being assessed for each

late day. The fine shall be $1,000 for a state executive

committee, $1,000 for an affiliated party committee, and $50 for

a county executive committee, per day for each late day, not to

exceed 25 percent of the total receipts or expenditures,

whichever is greater, for the period covered by the late report.

However, if an executive committee or an affiliated party

committee fails to file a report on the Friday immediately

Page 54 of 59

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1504

1505

1506

1507

1508

1509

1510

1511

1512

1513

1514

1515

1516

1517

1518

1519

1520

1521

1522

1523

1524

1525

1526

1527

1528

1529

1530

1531

preceding the general election, the fine shall be $10,000 per

day for each day a state executive committee is late, $10,000

per day for each day an affiliated party committee is late, and

$500 per day for each day a county executive committee is late.

Upon receipt of the report, the filing officer shall determine

the amount of the fine which is due and shall notify the chair

or leader as defined in s. 103.092. The filing officer shall

determine the amount of the fine due based upon the earliest of

the following:

1. When the report is actually received by such officer.

2. When the report is postmarked.

3. When the certificate of mailing is dated.

4. When the receipt from an established courier company is

dated.

5. When the electronic receipt issued pursuant to s.

106.0705 is dated.

Such fine shall be paid to the filing officer within 20 days

after receipt of the notice of payment due, unless appeal is

made to the Florida Elections Commission pursuant to paragraph

(c). An officer or member of an executive committee shall not be

personally liable for such fine.

(c) The chair of an executive committee or the leader of

an affiliated party committee as defined in s. 103.092 may

appeal or dispute the fine, based upon unusual circumstances

surrounding the failure to file on the designated due date, and

may request and shall be entitled to a hearing before the

Florida Elections Commission, which shall have the authority to

Page 55 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1532

1533

1534

1535

1536

1537

1538

1539

1540

1541

1542

1543

1544

1545

1546

1547

1548

1549

1550

1551

1552

1553

1554

1555

1556

1557

1558

1559

waive the fine in whole or in part. Any such request shall be

made within 20 days after receipt of the notice of payment due.

In such case, the chair of the executive committee or the leader

of the affiliated party committee as defined in s. 103.092

shall, within the 20-day period, notify the filing officer in

writing of his or her intention to bring the matter before the

commission.

(d) The appropriate filing officer shall notify the

Florida Elections Commission of the repeated late filing by an

executive committee or affiliated party committee, the failure

of an executive committee or affiliated party committee to file

a report after notice, or the failure to pay the fine imposed.

(4) Any contribution received by a state or county

executive committee or affiliated party committee less than 5

days before an election shall not be used or expended in behalf

of any candidate, issue, affiliated party committee, or

political party participating in such election.

(5) No state or county executive committee or affiliated

party committee, in the furtherance of any candidate or

political party, directly or indirectly, shall give, pay, or

expend any money, give or pay anything of value, authorize any

expenditure, or become pecuniarily liable for any expenditure

prohibited by this chapter. However, the contribution of funds

by one executive committee to another or to established party

organizations for legitimate party or campaign purposes is not

prohibited, but all such contributions shall be recorded and

accounted for in the reports of the contributor and recipient.

(6) (a) The national, state, and county executive

Page 56 of 59

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1560

1561

1562

1563

1564

1565

1566

1567

1568

1569

1570

1571

1572

1573

1574

1575

1576

1577

1578

1579

1580

1581

1582

1583

1584

1585

1586

1587

committees of a political party and affiliated party committees

may not contribute to any candidate any amount in excess of the

limits contained in s. 106.08(2), and all contributions required

to be reported under s. 106.08(2) by the national executive

committee of a political party shall be reported by the state

executive committee of that political party.

(b) A violation of the contribution limits contained in s.

106.08(2) is a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as

provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. A civil penalty equal to

three times the amount in excess of the limits contained in s.

106.08(2) shall be assessed against any executive committee

found in violation thereof.

Section 26. Paragraph (d) of subsection (1) of section

11.045, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

11.045 Lobbying before the Legislature; registration and

reporting; exemptions; penalties.-

(1) As used in this section, unless the context otherwise

requires:

(d) "Expenditure" means a payment, distribution, loan,

advance, reimbursement, deposit, or anything of value made by a

lobbyist or principal for the purpose of lobbying. The term

"expenditure" does not include contributions or expenditures

reported pursuant to chapter 106 or federal election law,

campaign-related personal services provided without compensation

by individuals volunteering their time, any other contribution

or expenditure made by or to a political party or affiliated

party committee, or any other contribution or expenditure made

by an organization that is exempt from taxation under 26 U.S.C.

Page 57 of 59

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1588

1589

1590

1591

1592

1593

1594

1595

1596

1597

1598

1599

1600

1601

1602

1603

1604

1605

1606

1607

1608

1609

1610

1611

1612

1613

1614

1615

s. 527 or s. 501(c)(4).

Section 27. Paragraph (b) of subsection (12) of section

112.312, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

112.312 Definitions.-As used in this part and for purposes

of the provisions of s. 8, Art. II of the State Constitution,

unless the context otherwise requires:

(12)

(b) "Gift" does not include:

1. Salary, benefits, services, fees, commissions, gifts,

or expenses associated primarily with the donee's employment,

business, or service as an officer or director of a corporation

or organization.

2. Contributions or expenditures reported pursuant to

chapter 106, campaign-related personal services provided without

compensation by individuals volunteering their time, or any

other contribution or expenditure by a political party or

affiliated party committee.

3. An honorarium or an expense related to an honorarium

event paid to a person or the person's spouse.

4. An award, plaque, certificate, or similar personalized

item given in recognition of the donee's public, civic,

charitable, or professional service.

5. An honorary membership in a service or fraternal

organization presented merely as a courtesy by such

organization.

6. The use of a public facility or public property, made

available by a governmental agency, for a public purpose.

7. Transportation provided to a public officer or employee

Page 58 of 59

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



FLORIDA

HB 1207

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1616

1617

1618

1619

1620

1621

1622

1623

1624

1625

1626

1627

1628

1629

1630

1631

1632

1633

1634

1635

1636

1637

1638

1639

1640

1641

1642

by an agency in relation to officially approved governmental

business.

8. Gifts provided directly or indirectly by a state,

regional, or national organization which promotes the exchange

of ideas between, or the professional development of,

governmental officials or employees, and whose membership is

primarily composed of elected or appointed public officials or

staff, to members of that organization or officials or staff of

a governmental agency that is a member of that organization.

Section 28. Paragraph (d) of subsection (1) of section

112.3215, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

112.3215 Lobbying before the executive branch or the

Constitution Revision Commission; registration and reporting;

investigation by commission.-

(1) For the purposes of this section:

(d) "Expenditure" means a payment, distribution, loan,

advance, reimbursement, deposit, or anything of value made by a

lobbyist or principal for the purpose of lobbying. The term

"expenditure" does not include contributions or expenditures

reported pursuant to chapter 106 or federal election law,

campaign-related personal services provided without compensation

by individuals volunteering their time, any other contribution

or expenditure made by or to a political party or an affiliated

party committee, or any other contribution or expenditure made

by an organization that is exempt from taxation under 26 U.S.C.

s. 527 or s. 501(c) (4).

Section 29. This act shall take effect July 1, 2010.

Page 59 of 59

CODING: Words striskon are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1207-00



COUNCIL/COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. HB 1207 (2010)

Amendment No.

COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED (Y/N)

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION (Y/N)

FAILED TO ADOPT (Y/N)

WITHDRAWN (Y/N)

OTHER

1 Council/Committee hearing bill: Governmental Affairs Policy

2 Committee

3 Representative McKeel offered the following:

4

5 Amendment

6 Remove lines 562-566 and insert:

7 d. Any electioneering communications organization that

8 would be required to file a statement of organization in two or

9 more locations by reason of the organization's intention to

10 support or oppose candidates at state or multicounty and local

11 levels of government need only file a statement of organization

12 with the Division of

Page 1 of 1
Amendment 1 HB 1207.docx



COUNCIL/COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. HB 1207 (2010)

Amendment No.

COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED (Y/N)

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION (Y/N)

FAILED TO ADOPT (Y /N)

WITHDRAWN (Y/N)

OTHER

1 Council/Committee hearing bill: Governmental Affairs Policy

2 Committee

3 Representative McKeel offered the following:

4

5 Amendment

6 Remove line 735 and insert:

7 (d) In addition to the reports required by paragraph (a),

8 an electioneering communications organization that is registered

9 with the Department of State and that makes a contribution or

10 expenditure to influence the results o£ a county or municipal

11 election that is not being held at the same time as a state or

12 federal election must file reports with the county or municipal

13 filing officer on the same dates as county or municipal

14 candidates or committees for that election. The electioneering

15 communications organization must also include the expenditure in

16 the next report filed with the Division of Elections pursuant to

17 this section following the county or municipal election.

18 (e) The filing officer shall make available to each

19 electioneering

Page 1 of 1
Amendment 2 HB 1207.docx



COUNCIL/COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. HB 1207 (2010)

Amendment No.

COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (YiN)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED (YiN)

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION (YiN)

FAILED TO ADOPT (YiN)

WITHDRAWN (YiN)

OTHER

1 Council/Committee hearing bill: Governmental Affairs Policy

2 Committee

3 Representative McKeel offered the following:

4

5 Amendment

6 Remove line 773 and insert:

7 written notice to the mailing or street address of the treasurer

8 or registered agent

Page 1 of 1
Amendment 3 HB 1207.docx



COUNCIL/COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. HB 1207 (2010)

Amendment No.

COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED (Y/N)

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION (Y/N)

FAILED TO ADOPT (Y/N)

WITHDRAWN (Y/N)

OTHER

1 Council/Committee hearing bill: Governmental Affairs Policy

2 Committee

3 Representative McKeel offered the following:

4

5 Amendment

6 Remove lines 846-865 and insert:

7 depository shall provide statements reflecting deposits and

8 expenditures from the account to the treasurer, who shall retain

9 the records pursuant to s. 106.06. The records maintained by the

10 depository with respect to the accoun~ shall be subject to

11 inspection by an agent of the Division of Elections or the

12 Florida Elections Commission at any time during normal banking

13 hours, and such depository shall furnish certified copies of any

14 such records to the Division of Elections or the Florida

15 Elections Commission upon request.

16 (6) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter,

17 in any reporting period during which an electioneering

18 communications organization has not received funds, made any

19 contributions, or expended any reportable funds, the treasurer

Page 1 of 2
Amendment 4 HB 1207.docx



COUNCIL/COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. HB 1207 (2010)

Amendment No.
20 shall file a written report with the filing officer by the

21 prescribed reporting date that no reportable contributions or

22 expenditures were made during the reporting period.

Page 2 of 2
Amendment 4 HB 1207.docx



...&.

o
I

o
eN



BILL#:
SPONSOR(S}:
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCB GAP 10-03 Public Record Exemption for E911 Recordings
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN.lSIM. BILLS:

Orig. Comm.:

REFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ACTION ANALYST /\ STAFF DIREC;rO,R

Williamso'k{luT williamsort'iLUr

1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

Since 1973, Florida's state and local governments have been building and updating technology to support a
911 system that serves its citizens and visitors in emergency situations. In May 1997, the system achieved
statewide implementation. The system was upgraded to.Enhanced 911 (E911) services, which identifies
callers' telephone numbers and addresses to local dispatchers, for wireline and landline calls in September
2005. In March 2008, the system was upgraded to E911 services for wireless calls. E911 service currently is
available in all 67 counties.

Current law provides a public record exemption for the name, address, telephone number or personal
information about, or information that may identify any person requesting emergency services or reporting an
emergency. The exemption applies to such information in any record or recording, or portions thereof,
obtained by a public agency or a public safety agency for the purpose of providing services in an emergency.
The confidential and exempt information may be shared only with another public safety agency.

The bill expands the current public record exemption to include any recording of a request for emergency
services or report of an emergency using an emergency communications E911 system. Sixty days after the
date of a request for emergency services or a report of an emergency, a transcript of the recording may be
made available pursuant to a public records request; however, the name, address, telephone number, or other
personal information remains confidential and exempt and must be redacted from the transcript. The person
requesting the transcript is responsible for paying the actual cost of transcribing the recording.

The confidential and exempt E911 recording may be disclosed to a public safety agency.

The bill provides for repeal of the exemption on October 2, 2015, unless reviewed and saved from repeal by
the Legislature. It provides a public necessity statement as required by the State Constitution and it provides
for retroactive application of the exemption.

The bill requires a two-thirds vote of the members present and voting for passage.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb03.GAP.doc
DATE: 2/18/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Background

Public Records Law
Article I, s. 24(a) of the State Constitution, sets forth the state's public policy regarding access to
government records. The section guarantees every person a right to inspect or copy any public record
of the legislative, executive, and judicial branches of government. The Legislature, however, may
provide by general law for the exemption of records from the requirements of Article I, s. 24(a) of the
Florida Constitution. The general law must state with specificity the public necessity justifying the
exemption (public necessity statement) and must be no broader than necessary to accomplish its
purpose.1

Public policy regarding access to government records is addressed further in the Florida Statutes.
Section 119.07(1), F.S., guarantees every person a right to inspect and copy any state, county, or
municipal record. Furthermore, the Open Government Sunset Review Ace provides that a public
record or public meeting exemption may be created or maintained only if it serves an identifiable public
purpose. In addition, it may be no broader than is necessary to meet one of the following purposes:

• Allows the state or its political subdivisions to effectively and efficiently administer a
governmental program, which administration would be significantly impaired without the
exemption.

• Protects sensitive personal information that, if released, would be defamatory or would
jeopardize an individual's safety; however, only the identity of an individual may be exempted
under this provision.

• Protects trade or business secrets.

E911 System
Since 1973, Florida's state and local governments have been building and updating technology to
support a 911 system that serves its citizens and visitors in emergency situations.3 In May 1997, the
system achieved statewide implementation. The system was upgraded to Enhanced 911 (E911)

1 Article I, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution.
2 Section 119.15, F.5.
3 Section 365.171, F.S., also known as the Florida Emergency Communications Number E911 State Plan Act, required the Technology
program within the Department of management Services to develop, maintain, and implement appropriate modifications for a
statewide emergency communications E911 system plan.
STORAGE NAME: pcb03.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 2118/2010



services, which identifies callers' telephone numbers and addresses to local dispatchers, for wireline
and landline calls in September 2005. In March 2008, the system was upgraded to E911 services for
wireless calls. E911 service is available currently in all 67 counties.4

Florida currently has 235 public safety answering points, also known as call centers, which receive
emergency 911 calls. Staff in these call centers include call-takers, dispatchers, and dual call­
taker/dispatchers. Call-takers answer calls and record necessary information such as the caller's name
and the nature of the emergency, and relay this information to dispatchers who assess the information,
determine the type of emergency response needed, and direct appropriate emergency services to
respond to the call. In some call centers, call-taking and dispatch functions are performed by the same
individual (dual call-taker/dispatcher).5

State, county, and local government entities administer Florida's E911 system.

The Department of Management Services coordinates the statewide system but has no authority to
monitor emergency services. The department provides technical assistance to counties on technology
standards and operational capabilities, helps design and implement new communications and data
systems, and assists with staff training. The department also develops and updates a statewide
emergency communications E911 system plan, which provides guidance to counties but permits them
to design and maintain their own 911 systems and plans.6 The department's statewide 911 coordinator
reviews county plans and inspects call centers for compliance with the state plan.

E911 Board
The E911 Board was established by the Legislature in 2007 to administer the Emergency
Communications Number E911 System Fund (E911 Trust Fund),? which is the main funding source for
911 communications in the state.8 The board consists of nine members, including the Department of
Management Services' E911 system director, who is designated by the Secretary of the Department of
Management Services and serves as chair.9 With oversight by the department, the board administers
the fund and disburses revenues to the department, wireless providers, and counties for specific
authorized expenses.

Boards of County Commissioners
Boards of County Commissioners are the responsible fiscal agent and ultimate authority for 911
services in each county. Each board designates a county 911 coordinator who serves as a point of
contact for local call centers, reports on system status, and submits the county 911 plan to the
department. These plans describe county 911 system infrastructure and staffing for each call center.
Call centers are operated typically by city police departments and county sheriffs' offices. Call centers
may establish their own training protocols and quality assurance measures.10

Public Record Exemption for the E911 System
Current law provides that

4 Office of Program Policy Analysis & Government Accountability Report No. 10-12,911 Call Center Training in Florida Varies; Options
Existfor Creating Minimum Standards, January 2010, at 1 and 2.
sid. at 2.
6 Section 365.171(4), F.S.
7 Section 365.172(5)(a), F.S.
s The E911 Trust Fund is derived from a monthly fee (not to exceed SO cents) on each wireless and non-wireless voice
communication subscriber with a Florida billing address. The E911 Board makes disbursements from the E911 Trust Fund for
wireless service provider E911 deployment and services, county E911 funding for equipment and services, rural county grants, E911
state grants, and E911 Board administration and operations.
9 Pursuant to s. 365.172(5)(b), F.S., the Governor appoints the remaining eight members: four county coordinators from a large,
medium, and rural county and an at-large representative recommended by the Florida Association of Counties, two local exchange
carrier members, and two members from the wireless telecommunications industry.
10 Office of Program Policy Analysis & Government Accountability Report No. 10-12, 911 Call Center Training in Florida Varies;
Options Existfor Creating Minimum Standards, January 2010, at 2.
STORAGE NAME: pcb03.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 2118/2010



[a]ny record, recording, or information, or portions thereof, obtained by a public
agency11 or a public safety agency12 for the purpose of providing services in an
emergency and which reveals the name, address, telephone number, or personal
information about, or information which may identify any person requesting
emergency service or reporting an emergency by accessing an emergency
communications E911 system is confidential and exempt13 from the provisions of
s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution...14

In short, the name, address, telephone number or personal information about, or information that may
identify any person requesting emergency services or reporting an emergency is confidential and
exempt from public records requirements. Such information may be released only to a public safety
agency.15

Due to technological advances, more and more E911 recordings are accessible to the public via the
Internet, radio, and television. E911 recordings provide the listener with an eyewitness account of the
emergency at hand. The emergency often times is a very personal and traumatizing event. As such,
states have begun prohibiting the release of E911 recordings.

Protections in Other States
In Maine, the audio recording of a call placed to a 911 system for the purpose of requesting service
from a law enforcement, fire, or medical agency is deemed private data on individuals with respect to
the individual making the call. However, a written transcript of the audio recording is considered public
except for certain circumstances. A transcript is prepared upon request and the person requesting the
transcript is required to pay the actual cost of transcribing the call, in addition to any other applicable
costS.16

Mississippi provides that all emergency telephone calls and telephone call transmissions and all
recordings of such calls are confidential. The recordings may be used only for the purposes as may be
needed for law enforcement, fire, medical rescue, or other emergency services.17

In Pennsylvania, "[r]ecords or parts of records ... pertaining to audio recordings, telephone or radio
transmissions received by emergency dispatch personnel, including 911 recordings" are not a public
record. However, an agency or a court may release 911 recordings if it determines the public interest
in disclosure outweighs the interest in nondisclosure.18 South Dakota has similar protections and
release standards as those in Pennsylvania. 19

Rhode Island provides that all 911 telephone calls and telephone call transmissions and all tapes
containing records of 911 telephone calls are confidential.20

11 Section 365.171(3)(c), F.S., defines "public agency" to mean the state and any city, county, city and county, municipal corporation,
chartered organization, public district, or public authority located in whole or in part within this state which provides, or has
authority to provide, firefighting, law enforcement, ambulance, medical, or other emergency services.
12 Section 365.171(3)(d), F.S., defines "public safety agency" to mean a functional division of a public agency which provides
firefighting, law enforcement, medical, or other emergency services.
13 There is a difference between records the Legislature designates as exempt from public record requirements and those the
Legislature deems confidential and exempt. A record classified as exempt from public disclosure may be disclosed under certain
circumstances. (See WFT\(, Inc. v. The School Board ofSeminole, 874 So.2d 48, 53 (Fla. 5th DCA 2004), review denied 892 So.2d 1015
(Fla. 2004); City ofRiviera Beach v. Barfield, 642 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994); Williams v. City ofMinneola, 575 So.2d 687 (Fla. 5th
DCA 1991) If the Legislature designates a record as confidential and exempt from public disclosure, such record may not be
released, by the custodian of public records, to anyone other than the persons or entities specifically designated in the statutory
exemption. (See Attorney General Opinion 85-62, August 1, 1985).
14 Section 365.171(12), F.S.
1S ld.

16 Minn. Stat. s. 13.82.
17 Miss. Code s. 19-5-319.
18 65 P.5. s. 67.708.

19 S.D. Cod. Laws s. 1-27-1.5.
20 R.1. Gen. Laws s. 39-21.1-17.
STORAGE NAME: pcb03.GAP.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 2118/2010



Effect of Bill

The bill expands the current public record exemption to include any recording of a request for
emergency services or report of an emergency using an emergency communications E911 system.
Sixty days after the date of a request for emergency services or a report of an emergency, a transcript
of the recording may be made available pursuant to a public records request; however, the name,
address, telephone number, or other personal information remains confidential and exempt and must
be redacted from the transcript. The person requesting the transcript is responsible for paying the
actual cost of transcribing the recording.

The confidential and exempt E911 recording may be disclosed to a public safety agency.

The bill provides for retroactive application of the public record exemption.21 It also provides a public
necessity statement as required by the State Constitution.22

In accordance with the Open Government Sunset Review Act,23 the exemption will sunset on
October 2, 2015, unless reviewed and saved from repeal through reenactment by the Legislature.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 365.171, F.S., to expand the current public record exemption to include the
recording of an E911 call.

Section 2 provides a public necessity statement.

Section 3 provides an effective date of upon becoming a law.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

See FISCAL COMMENTS section.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

See FISCAL COMMENTS section.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

The private sector will incur costs associated with this bill if a public records request is made for a
transcript of a recording of a request for emergency services or report of an emergency through the

21 In 2001, the Supreme Court of Florida ruled that a public record exemption does not apply retroactively unless the legislation
clearly expresses such intent. See Memorial Hospital-West Volusia, Inc. v. News-Journal Corporation, 729 So.2d. 373 (Fla. 2001).
22 Section 24(c), Art. I of the State Constitution.
23 Section 119.15, F.S.
STORAGE NAME: pcb03.GAP.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 2118/2010



E911 system. The requestor will be responsible for paying the actual cost of transcribing the recording
in addition to any other costs associated with the redaction of confidential and exempt information from
the transcript.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

The bill likely could create a minimal fiscal impact on public agencies and public safety agencies,
because staff responsible for complying with public records requests could require training related to
the changes made to the current public record exemption. In addition, such agencies could incur costs
associated with redacting the confidential and exempt information prior to releasing a record. The
costs, however, would be absorbed, as they are part of the day-to-day responsibilities of public
agencies and public safety agencies.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

2. Other:

Vote Requirement
Article I, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution, requires a two-thirds vote of the members present and
voting for passage of a newly created public record or public meeting exemption. The bill expands
the current exemption under review; thus, it requires a two-thirds vote for passage.

Public Necessity Statement
Article I, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution, requires a public necessity statement for a newly created
or expanded public record or public meeting exemption. The bill expands the current exemption
under review; thus, it includes a public necessity statement.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb03.GAP.doc
2118/2010

PAGE: 6



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to a public record exemption for E911

recordings; amending s. 365.171, F.S.; expanding the

public record exemption for certain identification

information of a person reporting or requesting emergency

services to include the recording of such report or

request; authorizing the release of a transcript of such

recording 60 days after the date of a request for

emergency services or a report of an emergency; requiring

the requestor to pay the actual cost of transcribing the

recording; authorizing the release of such recording to a

public safety agency; providing for retroactive

application of the public record exemption; providing for

future legislative review and repeal of the exemption

under the Open Government Sunset Review Act; providing a

statement of public necessity; providing an effective

date.

19 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

20

21 Section 1. Subsection (12) of section 365.171, Florida

22 Statutes, is amended to read:

23

24

25

365.171 Emergency communications number E911 state plan.­

(12) CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS.-

(a)l. Any recording of a request for emergency services or

26 report of an emergency using an emergency communications E911

27 system held by a public agency or a public safety agency is

28 confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I

Page 1of4
PCB GAP 10-03
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

29 of the State Constitution.

30 2. Upon receipt of a public records request, a transcript

31 of the confidential and exempt recording may be made available

32 by a public agency or a public safety agency 60 days after the

33 date of a request for emergency services or a report of an

34 emergency using such system; however, Any record, recording, or

35 information, or portions thereof, obtained by a public agency or

36 a public safety agency for the purpose of providing services in

37 an emergency and ..[hich reveals the name, address, telephone

38 number, or personal information about, or information which may

39 identify any person requesting emergency service or reporting an

40 emergency by accessing an emergency communications E911 system

41 shall be redacted from the transcript. The person requesting the

42 transcript shall pay the actual cost of transcribing the

43 recording, in addition to any other applicable costs provided

44 under s. 119.07. is confidential and mwmpt from the provisions

45 of s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution,

46 mwept that

47 3. Such recording and record or -information may be

48 disclosed to a public safety agency. The exemption applies only

49 to the name, address, telephone number or personal information

50 about, or information ..,Thich may identify any person requesting

51 emergency services or reporting an emergency ..[hile such

52 information is in the custody of the public agency or public

53 safety agency providing emergency services.

54 4. This exemption is remedial in nature and it is the

55 intent of the Legislature that the exemption be applied to

56 requests for recordings received before, on, or after the

Page 2of4
PCB GAP 10-03
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

57 effective date of this paragraph.

58 5. This paragraph is subject to the Open Government Sunset

59 Review Act in accordance with s. 119.15 and shall stand repealed

60 on October 2, 2015, unless reviewed and saved from repeal

61 through reenactment by the Legislature.

62 (b) A telecommunications company or commercial mobile

63 radio service provider shall not be liable for damages to any

64 person resulting from or in connection with such telephone

65 company's or commercial mobile radio service provider's

66 provision of any lawful assistance to any investigative or law

67 enforcement officer of the State of Florida or political

68 subdivisions thereof, of the United States, or of any other

69 state or political subdivision thereof, in connection with any

70 lawful investigation or other law enforcement activity by such

71 law enforcement officer unless the telecommunications company or

72 commercial mobile radio service provider acted in a wanton and

73 willful manner.

74 Section 2. The Legislature finds that it is a public

75 necessity that any recording of a request for emergency services

76 or report of an emergency using an emergency communications E911

77 system held by a public agency or a public safety agency be made

78 confidential and exempt from public records requirements. The

79 need for emergency services bespeaks a very personal and often

80 traumatizing event. To have the recordings made publicly

81 available is an invasion of privacy that could result in trauma,

82 sorrow, humiliation, or emotional injury to the person reporting

83 the emergency or requiring emergency services, or to the

84 immediate family of those persons. Additionally, to have such

Page 3of4
PCB GAP 10-03
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

85 recordings publicly available could jeopardize the health and

86 safety of those needing emergency services in that people, other

87 than emergency service providers, could actually gain access to

88 the scene of the emergency and thereby impede the effective and

89 efficient provision of emergency services. Furthermore, there

90 are those persons, who, for personal, private gain or for

91 business purposes, would seek to capitalize on individuals in

92 their time of need. Those reporting or needing emergency

93 services should not be subjected to this type of possible

94 harassment. Furthermore, to allow such recording to become

95 public could chill the reporting of emergency situations to the

96 detriment of public health and safety. Finally, the public

97 record exemption still provides for public oversight by

98 authorizing the release, upon request, of a transcript of such

99 recordings 60 days after the report while maintaining

100 protections for the individuals involved in the report or

101 receipt of emergency services.

102 Section 3. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

Page 4of4
PCB GAP 10-03
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



~

o
I

o
Q'\



BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCB GAP 10-06 OGSR Voter Information
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 2188

Orig. Comm.:

REFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ACTION ANALYST i) STAFF D1RECiF?R

Williamso~l~CUV WiliiamsonHuA!

1) _

2) _---'- _

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The Open Government Sunset Review Act requires the Legislature to review each public record and each
public meeting exemption five years after enactment. If the Legislature does not reenact the exemption, it
automatically repeals on October 2nd of the fifth year after enactment.

Florida residents can register to vote by mailing or hand delivering a voter registration application to various
locations~ In addition to the applicant's name, the voter application requests, in part, the following: date of
birth, name and address where last registered to vote, last four digits of the social security number, Florida
driver's license number or identification number from a Florida issued 10 card, and signature of the applicant.

Current law provides a public record exemption for the following information held by an agency:
• All declinations to register to vote at a voter registration agency or driver license office.
• Information relating to the place where a person registered to vote or updated a voter registration.
• The social security number, driver's license number, and Florida ID number of a voter registration

applicant or voter.

Further, the law provides that the signature of a voter or voter registration applicant is exempt from the copying
requirements found in the public records laws.

The bill reenacts the public record exemptions, which will repeal on October 2, 2010, if this bill does not
become law. It also makes clarifying changes.

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb06.GAP.doc
DATE: 2/27/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

BACKGROUND

Open Government Sunset Review Act
The Open Government Sunset Review Act1 sets forth a legislative review process for newly created or
substantially amended public record or public meeting exemptions. It requires an automatic repeal of
the exemption on October 2nd of the fifth year after creation or substantial amendment, unless the
Legislature reenacts the exemption.

The Act provides that a public record or public meeting exemption may be created or maintained only if
it serves an identifiable public purpose. In addition, it may be no broader than is necessary to meet one
of the following purposes:

• Allows the state or its political subdivisions to effectively and efficiently administer a
governmental program, which administration would be significantly impaired without the
exemption.

• Protects sensitive personal information that, if released, would be defamatory or would
jeopardize an individual's safety; however, only the identity of an individual may be exempted
under this provision.

• Protects trade or business secrets.

If, and only if, in reenacting an exemption that will repeal, the exemption is expanded (essentially
creating a new exemption), then a public necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are
required. 2 If the exemption is reenacted with grammatical or stylistic changes that do not expand the
exemption, if the exemption is narrowed, or if an exception to the exemption is created3 then a public
necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are not required.

Voter Registration in Florida
Florida residents can register to vote by mailing or hand delivering a voter registration application to
various locations, including the office of the voter's supervisor of elections, the Division of Elections

1 Section 119.15, F.S.
2 Section 24(c), Art. I ofthe State Constitution.
3 An example of an exception to a public record exemption would be allowing another agency access to confidential or exempt
records.
STORAGE NAME: pcb06.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 2/27/2010



within the Department of State, a driver license office, a voter registration agencY,4 or an armed forces
recruitment office.5 In addition to the applicant's name, the voter application requests, in part, the
following: date of birth, address and county of legal residence, mailing address if different, race or
ethnicity, state or country of birth, sex, party affiliation, whether the applicant needs assistance in
voting, name and address where last registered, last four digits of the social security number, Florida
driver's license number or identification number from a Florida issued ID card, and signature of the
applicant.6

Florida Voter Registration System
The Florida Voter Registration System (FVRS) contains the official registration information of every
legally registered voter in the State. There are at least 11.2 million active registered voters. Since its
implementation in January 2006, the FVRS is considered one of the most comprehensive statewide
databases. It includes, but is not limited to, the voter's name, date of birth, former and maiden names,
addresses, social security number, driver's license number or state identification number, signature,
and information as to where a person registered to vote or updated his or her registration record.
Under Florida's public records laws, all of this electronic information is a public record with the
exception of that information made confidential and exempt.7

Public Record Exemptions under Review
Prior to 2005, current law provided a public record exemption for declinations to register to vote at a
voter registration agency and the location where a person registered or updated a voter registration. 8

Use of the declination was limited to voter registration purposes, as required by federal law.

The exemption also provided that a voter's signature, social security number, and telephone number
were exempt from the copying requirements of the Public Records Act9 and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State
Constitution; however, such information was subject to public inspection.10

In 2005, the public record exemption was amended and, as such, currently provides that the following
information held by an agency11 is confidential and exempt12 from public records requirements and may
be used only for voter registration purposes:

• All declinations to register to vote at a voter registration agency or driver license office.
• Information relating to the place where a person registered to vote or updated a voter

registration.
• The social security number, driver's license number, and Florida 10 number of a voter

registration applicant or voter. 13

4 Section 97.021(40), F.S., defines "voter registration agency" to mean "any office that provides public assistance, any office that
serves persons with disabilities, any center for independent living, or any public library."
5 Section 97.053(1), F.S.
6 See s. 97.052(2)(a) - (t), F.S.
7 Email from Maria Matthews, Assistant General Counsel for the Department of State, August 11, 2009 (on file with the
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee).
8 Section 97.0585, F.s. (2004)
9 Chapter 119, F.S., often is referred to as the Public Records Act.
10 Section 97.0585, F.S. (2004)

11 Section 119.011(2), F.S., defines "agency" to mean "any state, county, district, authority, or municipal officer, department,
division, board, bureau, commission, or other separate unit of government created or established by law including, for the purposes
of this chapter, the Commission on Ethics, the Public Service Commission, and the Office of Public Counsel, and any other public or
private agency, person, partnership, corporation, or business entity acting on behalf of any public agency."
12 There is a difference between records the Legislature designates as exempt from public record requirements and those the
Legislature deems confidential and exempt. A record classified as exempt from public disclosure may be disclosed under certain
circumstances. (See WHY- Inc. v. The School Board ofSeminole, 874 So.2d 48, 53 (Fla. 5th DCA 2004), review denied 892 So.2d 1015
(Fla. 2004); City ofRiviera Beach v. Barfield, 642 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994); Williams v. City ofMinneola, 575 So.2d 687 (Fla. 5th
DCA 1991) If the Legislature designates a record as confidential and exempt from public disclosure, such record may not be
released, by the custodian of public records, to anyone other than the persons or entities specifically designated in the statutory
exemption. (See Attorney General Opinion 85-62, August 1, 1985).
13 Section 97.0585(1)(a) - (c), F.s.
STORAGE NAME: pcb06.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 2/27/2010



Further, the section provides that the signature of a voter or voter registration applicant is exempt from
the copying requirements found in the public records laws. 14

Pursuant to the Open Government Sunset Review Act, the exemptions will repeal on October 2,2010,
unless reenacted by the Legislature.15

EFFECT OF BILL

The bill removes the repeal date, thereby reenacting the public record exemptions. It also makes
clarifying changes.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 97.0585, F.S., to reenact the public record exemptions for information regarding
voters and voter applicants.

Section 2 repeals s. 3 of chapter 2005-279, L.O.F., which provides for repeal of the exemptions.

Section 3 provides an effective date of October 1,2010.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

14 Section 97.0585(2), F.S.
15 Section 3 of chapter 2005-279, L.G.F.
STORAGE NAME: pcb06.GAP.doc
DATE: 2/27/2010

PAGE: 4



2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

Comments by the Department of State16

Declinations to Register to Vote and Information Relating to the Place of Registration
The public record exemption for declinations to register to vote flows from the National Voter
Registration Act of 1993 (NVRA). One of the primary goals of the NVRA was to make it easier to
register and to maintain one's registration record. This was accomplished in part by designating the
driver license examiner offices and other governmental agencies or offices as voter registration
agencies. That means those agencies have to provide simultaneous voter registration services in
conjunction with their own agency services. Consequently, a person was no longer limited to
submitting his or her registration application to a supervisor of elections office.

Some of the offices designated included offices that served persons with disabilities or offices that
provided public assistance. In order to encourage registration and minimize any disincentive to
registering at these sites, the federal law prohibited the disclosure of the location where someone
registered or updated his or her registration information so as not to reveal whether someone was
applying for or receiving public assistance.

Congress also wanted to monitor the effectiveness of the NVRA without revealing whether or not
someone decided to register or update his or her voter record. Once again, the objective was to
remove any disincentives from registering.

The reasons for the public record exemption for declinations to register to vote and location of
registration, under federal law, still apply and, as such, protection should be continued at the state
level.

Social Security Number, Driver's License Number, and Florida ID number
The public record exemption for the social security, driver's license, or Florida identification number of a
voter registration applicant or voter flows from a requirement in the Help America Vote Act and under
section 97.053(5), F.S., in which a person must provide a personal identifying number in order to
register to vote. The personal identifying number is then confirmed or verified against databases at the
Florida Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles (DHSMV) or the Social Security
Administration for identification purposes.17

The Department of State believes disclosure of such numbers in conjunction with other readily
available and easily accessible public information, including information contained in the FVRS, could
be used to facilitate identity theft, serve illegitimate uses, and pose economic and personal harm.

The Department believes the exemption under review affords greater protection of an applicant's or
voter's social security number than is afforded under the Federal Privacy Act and the general
exemption for social security numbers18 found in the Public Records Act. Unlike the general public
record exemption found in the Public Records Act, the public record exemption specific to the social

16 Comments were provided by email from Maria Matthews, Assistant General Counsel for the Department of State, August 11, 2009
(on file with the Governmental Affairs Policy Committee).
17 Such as verifying that the person signing the application is who he or she says he or she is on the application.
18 See s. 119.071(S)(a), F.S., providing a public record exemption for social security numbers held by an agency. Access is provided to
certain agencies and individuals, including a business with a legitimate business purpose.
STORAGE NAME: pcb06.GAP.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 2/27/2010



security number of an applicant or voter denies access to any requestor. No exceptions apply. The
information may only be used for voter registration purposes.

In addition, both federal and state laws limit the disclosure of driver's license numbers in a "motor
vehicle record.,,19 However, the voter registration application is not a part of the motor vehicle record
even though the DHSMV transfers information regarding the driver's license or state identification card
number and other data from the license application to the voter registration application as part of its
simultaneous electronic intake for voter registration. Therefore, the protections in federal law and the
Public Records Act would not protect those numbers from disclosure.

As such, the Department of State would like to maintain those protections provided in s. 97.0585, F.S.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

19 See s. 119.0712, F.5., which provides that a driver's license number is confidential as provided in the Federal Driver's Privacy
Protection Act (DPPA).
STORAGE NAME: pcb06.GAP.doc PAGE: 6
DATE: 2/27/2010



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to a review under the Open Government

Sunset Review Act; amending s. 97.0585, F.S., which

provides an exemption from public records requirements for

certain information regarding voters and voter

registration and which provides an exemption from the

copying requirements for signatures of voters and voter

registrants; making clarifying changes; repealing s. 3,

ch. 2005-279, Laws of Florida, which provides for repeal

of the exemptions; providing an effective date.

12 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

13

14 Section 1. Section 97.0585, Florida Statutes, is amended

15 to read:

16 97.0585 Public records exemption; information regarding

17 voters and voter registration; confidentiality.--

18 (1) The following information concerning voters and voter

19 registration held by an agency as defined in s. 119.011 is

20 confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I

21 of the State Constitution and may be used only for purposes of

22 voter registration:

23 (a) All declinations to register to vote made pursuant to

24 ss. 97.057 and 97.058.

25 (b) Information relating to the place where a person

26 registered to vote or where a person updated a voter

27 registration.

Page 1of 2
PCB GAP 10-06
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

28 (c) The social security number, driver's license number,

29 and Florida identification number of a voter registration

30 applicant or voter.

31 (2) The signature of a voter registration applicant or a

32 voter is exempt from the copying requirements may not be copied

33 and is mwmpt for that purpose from the provisions of s.

34 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution.

35 (3) This section applies to information held by an agency

36 before, on, or after the effective date of this exemption.

37 Section 2. Section 3 of chapter 2005-279, Laws of Florida,

38 is repealed.

39 Section 3. This act shall take effect October 1, 2010.

Page 2of2
PCB GAP 10-06
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



...10.

o
I

o
'"



BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCB GAP 10-07 OGSR Commission on Ethics
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 2170

Orig. Comm.:

REFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIREC;r \ R
I '

\.1 ) f
Williamson(fitLLl Williamso (\~

1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The Open Government Sunset Review Act requires the Legislature to review each public record and each
public meeting exemption five years after enactment. If the Legislature does not reenact the exemption, it
automatically repeals on October 2nd of the fifth year after enactment.

Current law provides a public record exemption for a complaint or any records relating to the complaint or to
any preliminary investigation by the Commission on Ethics or a Commission on Ethics and Public Trust
established by a county or a municipality. In addition, any proceedings regarding a complaint or preliminary
investigation are exempt from public meetings requirements.

The bill reenacts the public record and public meeting exemptions, which will repeal on October 2, 2010, if this
bill does not become law. It also reorganizes the exemption for clarity.

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb07.GAP.doc
DATE: 2/26/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

BACKGROUND

Open Government Sunset Review Act
The Open Government Sunset Review Act1 sets forth a legislative review process for newly created or
substantially amended public record or public meeting exemptions. It requires an automatic repeal of
the exemption on October 2nd of the fifth year after creation or substantial amendment, unless the
Legislature reenacts the exemption.

The Act provides that a public record or public meeting exemption may be created or maintained only if
it serves an identifiable public purpose. In addition, it may be no broader than is necessary to meet one
of the following purposes:

• Allows the state or its political subdivisions to effectively and efficiently administer a
governmental program, which administration would be significantly impaired without the
exemption.

• Protects sensitive personal information that, if released, would be defamatory or would
jeopardize an individual's safety; however, only the identity of an individual may be exempted
under this provision.

• Protects trade or business secrets.

If, and only if, in reenacting an exemption that will repeal, the exemption is expanded (essentially
creating a new exemption), then a public necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are
required.2 If the exemption is reenacted with grammatical or stylistic changes that do not expand the
exemption, if the exemption is narrowed, or if an exception to the exemption is created3 then a public
necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are not required.

1 Section 119.15, F.S.
2 Section 24(c), Art. I ofthe State Constitution.
3 An example of an exception to a public record exemption would be allowing another agency access to confidential or exempt
records.
STORAGE NAME: pcb07.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 2/26/2010



Commission on Ethics
The Commission on Ethics (Commission) is a non-paid, appointed body consisting of nine members.4

The Commission serves as guardian of the standards of conduct for officers and employees of the
state and of a county, city, or other political subdivision of the state.5

Current law establishes the duties and powers of the Commission.6 Chief among these responsibilities
is the duty to receive and investigate sworn complaints of violation of the code of ethics and of any
other breach of the public trust,? including investigation of all facts and parties materially related to the
complaint.

A county or municipality also has the authority to create a Commission on Ethics and Public Trust.

Exemptions under Review
Current law provides a public record exemption for a complaint or any records relating to the complaint
or to any preliminary investigation by the Commission or a Commission on Ethics and Public Trust
established by a county or a municipality. The complaint and associated records are confidential and
exempt from public records requirements.8 In addition, any proceedings regarding a complaint or
preliminary investigation are exempt from public meetings requirements. Such exemptions no longer
apply when the:

• Complaint is dismissed as legally insufficient;
• Alleged violator requests in writing that the records and proceedings be made public; or
• Commission or Commission on Ethics and Public Trust determines whether probable cause

exists to believe that a violation has occurred.9

In 2005, the Legislature applied the public record and public meeting exemptions to a Commission on
Ethics and Public Trust established by a municipality.10 As such, pursuant to the Open Government
Sunset Review Act, the exemptions will repeal on October 2, 2010, unless reenacted by the
Legislature.

EFFECT OF BILL

The bill removes the repeal date, thereby reenacting the public record and public meeting exemptions.
It also reorganizes the exemptions for clarity.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 112.324, F.S., to reenact the public record and public meeting exemptions for the
Commission or a Commission on Ethics and Public Trust established by a county or a municipality.

Section 2 provides an effective date of October 1, 2010.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

4 Section 112.321(1), F.S.
s Section 112.320, F.5.
6 See s. 112.322, F.S.
7 As provided in s. 8(f), Art. II of the State Constitution.
S There is a difference between records the Legislature designates as exempt from public record requirements and those the
Legislature deems confidential and exempt. A record classified as exempt from public disclosure may be disclosed under certain
circumstances. (See WFTV; Inc. v. The School Board ofSeminole, 874 So.2d 48, 53 (Fla. 5th DCA 2004), review denied 892 So.2d 1015
(Fla. 2004); City ofRiviera Beach v. Barfield, 642 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994); Williams v. City ofMinneola, 575 So.2d 687 (Fla. 5th
DCA 1991) If the Legislature designates a record as confidential and exempt from public disclosure, such record may not be
released, by the custodian of public records, to anyone other than the persons or entities specifically designated in the statutory
exemption. (See Attorney General Opinion 85-62, August 1, 1985).
9 Section 112.324(2)(a), F.S.
10 Chapter 2005-185, L.O.F.
STORAGE NAME: pcb07.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 2/26/2010



A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb07.GAP.doc
2/26/2010

PAGE: 4



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to a review under the Open Government

Sunset Review Act; amending s. 112.324, F.S., which

provides an exemption from public records and public

meetings requirements for complaints and related records

in the custody of and proceedings conducted by the

Commission on Ethics or a Commission on Ethics and Public

Trust established by a county or municipality;

reorganizing the exemption; removing the scheduled repeal

of the exemption; providing an effective date.

12 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

13

14 Section 1. Subsection (2) of section 112.324, Florida

15 Statutes, is amended to read:

16 112.324 Procedures on complaints of violations; public

17 records and meeting exemptions.--

18 (2) (a) The complaint and records relating to the complaint

19 or to any preliminary investigation held by the commission or

20 its agents or by a Commission on Ethics and Public Trust

21 established by any county defined in s. 125.011(1) or by any

22 municipality defined in s. 165.031 are confidential and exempt

23 from the provisions of s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the

24 State Constitution., and

25 (b) Any proceeding conducted by the commission or a

26 Commission on Ethics and Public Trust, pursuant to a complaint

27 or preliminary investigation, is exempt from the provisions of

Page 1of 2
PCB GAP 10-07
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

28 s. 286.011, s. 24(b), Art. I of the State Constitution, and s.

29 120.525. T

30 (c) The exemptions apply until the complaint is dismissed

31 as legally insufficient, until the alleged violator requests in

32 writing that such records and proceedings be made public, or

33 until the commission or a Commission on Ethics and Public Trust

34 determines, based on such investigation, whether probable cause

35 exists to believe that a violation has occurred. In no event

36 shall a complaint under this part against a candidate in any

37 general, special, or primary election be filed or any intention

38 of filing such a complaint be disclosed on the day of any such

39 election or within the 5 days immediately preceding the date of

40 the election.

41 (b) Paragraph (a) is subject to the Open Government Sunset

42 Reviml Act in accordance \lith s. 119.15 and shall stand repealed

43 on October 2, 2010, unless reviewed and saved from repeal

44 through reenactment by the Legislature.

45 Section 2. This act shall take effect October 1, 2010.

Page 2 of2
PCB GAP 10-07
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



.....
o

I

o
CO



BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCB GAP 10-08 OGSR GAL Identification and Location Information
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN.lSIM. BILLS: SB 1200

Orig. Comm.:

REFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ACTION ANALYST ,_ STAFF DIRECT;O\R

Wi"iamso~MJ Williamson~aAif
1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The Open Government Sunset Review Act requires the Legislature to review each public record and each
public meeting exemption five years after enactment. If the Legislature does not reenact the exemption, it
automatically repeals on October 2nd of the fifth year after enactment.

The Florida Guardian ad Litem (GAL) Program is a partnership of community advocates and professional staff
acting on behalf of Florida's abused and neglected children. As of December 14, 2009, approximately 23,000
children were represented by close to 7,000 volunteers in the GAL program.

Current law provides several public record exemptions for identification and location information of certain
public employees and their spouse and children. In 2005, the Legislature added guardians ad litem to the
public record exemption. The following information was made exempt from public records requirements:

• Home addresses, telephone numbers, places of employment, and photographs of current or former
GALs; and

• Names, home addresses, telephone numbers, and places of employment of the spouses and children
of such GALs.

The exemption applies only if the GAL provides a written statement that he or she has made reasonable efforts
to protect such information from being accessible through other means available to the public.

The bill reenacts the public record exemption for identification and location information of guardians ad litem
and their spouse and children. It expands the exemption to also protect the names and locations of school and
daycare facilities attend by the children of GALs. Other similar exemptions provide protections for school and
daycare information. As such, this expansion provides GALs with the same protections afforded other public
employees with the same type of public record exemption.

The bill extends the repeal date from October 2,2010, to October 2,2015. In addition, it provides a public
necessity statement.

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

The bill requires a two-thirds vote of the members present and voting for passage.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb08.GAP.doc
DATE: 2127/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

BACKGROUND

Open Government Sunset Review Act
The Open Government Sunset Review Act1 sets forth a legislative review process for newly created or
substantially amended public record or public meeting exemptions. It requires an automatic repeal of
the exemption on October 2nd of the fifth year after creation or substantial amendment, unless the
Legislature reenacts the exemption.

The Act provides that a public record or public meeting exemption may be created or maintained only if
it serves an identifiable public purpose. In addition, it may be no broader than is necessary to meet one
of the following purposes:

• Allows the state or its political subdivisions to effectively and efficiently administer a
governmental program, which administration would be significantly impaired without the
exemption.

• Protects sensitive personal information that, if released, would be defamatory or would
jeopardize an individual's safety; however, only the identity of an individual may be exempted
under this provision.

• Protects trade or business secrets.

If, and only if, in reenacting an exemption that will repeal, the exemption is expanded (essentially
creating a new exemption), then a public necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are
required.2 If the exemption is reenacted with grammatical or stylistic changes that do not expand the
exemption, if the exemption is narrowed, or if an exception to the exemption is created3 then a public
necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are not required.

Guardian ad Litem Program
The Florida Guardian ad Litem (GAL) Program is a partnership of community advocates and
professional staff acting on behalf of Florida's abused and neglected children. As of December 14,

1 Section 119.15, F.5.
2 Section 24(c), Art. I ofthe State Constitution.
3 An example of an exception to a public record exemption would be allowing another agency access to confidential or exempt
records.
STORAGE NAME: pcb08.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 2127/2010



2009, approximately 23,000 children were represented by close to 7,000 volunteers in the GAL
program.4

Guardians ad Litem5 are responsible for making independent recommendations to the court based on
the best interests of a child. In order to accomplish this goal, some of the responsibilities of a GAL
include:

• Visiting the child and keeping the child informed about the court proceedings;
• Gathering and assessing independent information on a consistent basis about the child in order

to recommend a resolution that is in the child's best interest;
• Reviewing records;
• Interviewing appropriate parties involved in the case, including the child;
• Determining whether a permanent plan, which establishes the placement intended to serve as

the child's permanent home, has been created for the child in accordance with federal and state
laws and whether appropriate services are being provided to the child and family;

• Submitting a signed written report with recommendations to the court on what placement,
visitation plan, services, and permanent plan are in the best interest of the child;

• Attending and participating in court hearings and other related meetings to advocate for a
permanent plan that serves the child's best interest; and

• Maintaining complete records about the case, including appointments scheduled, interviews
held, and information gathered about the child and the child's life circumstances.6

Public Record Exemptions for Identification and Location Information
Current law provides several public record exemptions for identification and location information of
certain public employees and their spouse and children? Examples of protected information include
home addresses, telephone numbers, and photographs of law enforcement personnel, firefighters,
investigators for the Department of Children and Family Services, state attorneys, and code
enforcement officers. Similar information concerning the spouse and children of such employees also
is protected.

Exemption under Review
In 2005, the Legislature added guardians ad litem to the public record exemption.8 The following
information was made exempt9 from public records requirements:

• Home addresses, telephone numbers, places of employment, and photographs of current or
former GALs; and

• Names, home addresses, telephone numbers, and places of employment of the spouses and
children of such GALs.

4 Bill analysis by the Statewide Guardian ad Litem Office, December 15, 2009, at 1. (on file with the Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee).
5 Section 39.820(1), F.S., defines "guardian ad litem" to mean: as referred to in any civil or criminal proceeding includes the
following: a certified guardian ad litem program, a duly certified volunteer, a staff attorney, contract attorney, or certified pro bono
attorney working on behalf of a guardian ad litem or the program; staff members of a program office; a court-appointed attorney; or
a responsible adult who is appointed by the court to represent the best interests of a child in a proceeding as provided for by law,
including, but not limited to, this chapter, who is a party to any judicial proceeding as a representative of the child, and who serves
until discharged by the court.
6 Bill analysis by the Statewide Guardian ad Litem Office, December 15, 2009, at 1. (on file with the Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee).
7 See s. 119.071(4)(d), F.S.
sSection 4 of chapter 2005-213, L.O.F., codified at s. 119.071(4)(d)1.h., F.S.
9 There is a difference between records the Legislature designates as exempt from public record requirements and those the
Legislature deems confidential and exempt. A record classified as exempt from public disclosure may be disclosed under certain
circumstances. (See WFTV. Inc. v. The School Board ofSeminole, 874 So.2d 48, 53 (Fla. 5th DCA 2004), review denied 892 So.2d 1015
(Fla. 2004); City ofRiviera Beach v. Barfield, 642 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994); Williams v. City ofMinneola, 575 So.2d 687 (Fla. 5th
DCA 1991) If the Legislature designates a record as confidential and exempt from public disclosure, such record may not be
released, by the custodian of public records, to anyone other than the persons or entities specifically designated in the statutory
exemption. (See Attorney General Opinion 85-62, August 1, 1985).
STORAGE NAME: pcb08.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 2/27/2010



The exemption applies only if the GAL provides to his or her GAL office a written statement that he or
she has made reasonable efforts to protect such information from being accessible through other
means available to the public.10 The GAL also may protect such identification and location information
held by any other agency11 if he or she provides written notification to that custodial agency that he or
she is a GAL who receives protection under s. 119.071(4)(d)h.1., F.S.

Pursuant to the Open Government Sunset Review Act, the exemption will repeal on October 2, 2010,
unless reenacted by the Legislature.12

EFFECT OF BILL

The bill reenacts the public record exemption for identification and location information of GALs and
their spouse and children. It expands the exemption to also protect the names and locations of school
and daycare facilities attend by the children of GALs, if the GAL provides a written statement that he or
she has made reasonable efforts to protect such information from being accessible through other
means available to the public. Other similar exemptions provide protections for school and daycare
information. As such, this expansion provides GALs with the same protections afforded other public
employees with the same type of public record exemption.

The bill extends the repeal date from October 2,2010, to October 2,2015. In addition, it provides a
public necessity statement.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 119.071, F.S., to reenact and expand the public record exemption for identification
and location information of GALs and their spouse and children.

Section 2 provides a public necessity statement.

Section 3 provides an effective date of upon becoming a law.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

10 Section 119.071(4)(d)1.h., F.S.
11 Section 119.011(2), F.S., defines "agency" to mean any state, county, district, authority, or municipal officer, department, division,
board, bureau, commission, or other separate unit of government created or established by law including, for the purposes of this
chapter, the Commission on Ethics, the Public Service Commission, and the Office of Public Counsel, and any other public or private
agency, person, partnership, corporation, or business entity acting on behalf of any public agency.
12 Section 119.071(4)(d)1.h., F.5.
STORAGE NAME: pcb08.GAP.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 2/27/2010



C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

2. Other:

Vote Requirement
Article I, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution, requires a two-thirds vote of the members present and
voting for passage of a newly created public record or public meeting exemption. The bill expands
the current exemption under review; thus, it requires a two-thirds vote for passage.

Public Necessity Statement
Article I, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution, requires a public necessity statement for a newly created
or expanded public record or public meeting exemption. The bill expands the current exemption
under review; thus, it includes a public necessity statement.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb08.GAP.doc
2/27/2010

PAGE: 5



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to a review under the Open Government

Sunset Review Act; amending s. 119.071, F.S., which

provides an exemption from public records requirements for

identification and location information of guardians ad

litem and the spouse and children of guardians ad litem;

expanding the public record exemption to include the names

and locations of schools or daycare facilities attended by

children of guardians ad litem; providing for future

legislative review and repeal of the exemption under the

Open Government Sunset Review Act; providing a statement

of public necessity; providing an effective date.

14 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

15

16 Section 1. Paragraph (d) of subsection (4) of section

17 119.071, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

18 119.071 General exemptions from inspection or copying of

19 public records.--

20

21

(4) AGENCY PERSONNEL INFORMATION.--

(d)l.a. The home addresses, telephone numbers, social

22 security numbers, and photographs of active or former law

23 enforcement personnel, including correctional and correctional

24 probation officers, personnel of the Department of Children and

25 Family Services whose duties include the investigation of abuse,

26 neglect, exploitation, fraud, theft, or other criminal

27 activities, personnel of the Department of Health whose duties

Page 1of?
PCB GAP 10-08
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

28 are to support the investigation of child abuse or neglect, and

29 personnel of the Department of Revenue or local governments

30 whose responsibilities include revenue collection and

31 enforcement or child support enforcement; the home addresses,

32 telephone numbers, social security numbers, photographs, and

33 places of employment of the spouses and children of such

34 personnel; and the names and locations of schools and day care

35 facilities attended by the children of such personnel are exempt

3 6 from s. 119. 07 (1) .

37 b. The home addresses, telephone numbers, and photographs

38 of firefighters certified in compliance with s. 633.35; the home

39 addresses, telephone numbers, photographs, and places of

40 employment of the spouses and children of such firefighters; and

41 the names and locations of schools and day care facilities

42 attended by the children of such firefighters are exempt from s.

43 119.07(1).

44 c. The home addresses and telephone numbers of justices of

45 the Supreme Court, district court of appeal judges, circuit

46 court judges, and county court judges; the home addresses,

47 telephone numbers, and places of employment of the spouses and

48 children of justices and judges; and the names and locations of

49 schools and day care facilities attended by the children of

50 justices and judges are exempt from s. 119.07(1).

51 d. The home addresses, telephone numbers, social security

52 numbers, and photographs of current or former state attorneys,

53 assistant state attorneys, statewide prosecutors, or assistant

54 statewide prosecutors; the home addresses, telephone numbers,

Page 2of?
PCB GAP 10-08
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

55 social security numbers, photographs, and places of employment

56 of the spouses and children of current or former state

57 attorneys, assistant state attorneys, statewide prosecutors, or

58 assistant statewide prosecutors; and the names and locations of

59 schools and day care facilities attended by the children of

60 current or former state attorneys, assistant state attorneys,

61 statewide prosecutors, or assistant statewide prosecutors are

62 exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State

63 Constitution.

64 e. The horne addresses and telephone numbers of general

65 magistrates, special magistrates, judges of compensation claims,

66 administrative law judges of the Division of Administrative

67 Hearings, and child support enforcement hearing officers; the

68 horne addresses, telephone numbers, and places of employment of

69 the spouses and children of general magistrates, special

70 magistrates, judges of compensation claims, administrative law

71 judges of the Division of Administrative Hearings, and child

72 support enforcement hearing officers; and the names and

73 locations of schools and day care facilities attended by the

74 children of general magistrates, special magistrates, judges of

75 compensation claims, administrative law judges of the Division

76 of Administrative Hearings, and child support enforcement

77 hearing officers are exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art.

78 I of the State Constitution if the general magistrate, special

79 magistrate, judge of compensation claims, administrative law

80 judge of the Division of Administrative Hearings, or child

81 support hearing officer provides a written statement that the

Page 3 of?
PCB GAP 10-08
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

82 general magistrate, special magistrate, judge of compensation

83 claims, administrative law judge of the Division of

84 Administrative Hearings, or child support hearing officer has

85 made reasonable efforts to protect such information from being

86 accessible through other means available to the public. This

87 sub-subparagraph is subject to the Open Government Sunset Review

88 Act in accordance with s. 119.15, and shall stand repealed on

89 October 2, 2013, unless reviewed and saved from repeal through

90 reenactment by the Legislature.

91 f. The home addresses, telephone numbers, and photographs

92 of current or former human resource, labor relations, or

93 employee relations directors, assistant directors, managers, or

94 assistant managers of any local government agency or water

95 management district whose duties include hiring and firing

96 employees, labor contract negotiation, administration, or other

97 personnel-related duties; the names, home addresses, telephone

98 numbers, and places of employment of the spouses and children of

99 such personnel; and the names and locations of schools and day

100 care facilities attended by the children of such personnel are

101 exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State

102 Constitution.

103 g. The home addresses, telephone numbers, and photographs

104 of current or former code enforcement officers; the names, home

105 addresses, telephone numbers, and places of employment of the

106 spouses and children of such personnel; and the names and

107 locations of schools and day care facilities attended by the

Page 4 of?
PCB GAP 10-08
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

108 children of such personnel are exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s.

109 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution.

110 h. The home addresses, telephone numbers, places of

111 employment, and photographs of current or former guardians ad

112 litem, as defined in s. 39.820~, and the names, home addresses,

113 telephone numbers, and places of employment of the spouses and

114 children of such persons; and the names and locations of schools

115 and day care facilities attended by the children of such

116 personsr are exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of

117 the State Constitution, if the guardian ad litem provides a

118 written statement that the guardian ad litem has made reasonable

119 efforts to protect such information from being accessible

120 through other means available to the public. This sub-

121 subparagraph is subject to the Open Government Sunset Review Act

122 in accordance with s. 119.15 and shall stand repealed on October

123 2, 2015 ~, unless reviewed and saved from repeal through

124 reenactment by the Legislature.

125 i. The home addresses, telephone numbers, and photographs

126 of current or former juvenile probation officers, juvenile

127 probation supervisors, detention superintendents, assistant

128 detention superintendents, senior juvenile detention officers,

129 juvenile detention officer supervisors, juvenile detention

130 officers, house parents I and II, house parent supervisors,

131 group treatment leaders, group treatment leader supervisors,

132 rehabilitation therapists, and social services counselors of the

133 Department of Juvenile Justice; the names, home addresses,

134 telephone numbers, and places of employment of spouses and

Page 5 of?
PCB GAP 10-08
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

135 children of such personnel; and the names and locations of

136 schools and day care facilities attended by the children of such

137 personnel are exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of

138 the State Constitution. This sub-subparagraph is subject to the

139 Open Government Sunset Review Act in accordance with s. 119.15

140 and shall stand repealed on October 2, 2011, unless reviewed and

141 saved from repeal through reenactment by the Legislature.

142 2. An agency that is the custodian of the information

143 specified in subparagraph 1. and that is not the employer of the

144 officer, employee, justice, judge, or other person specified in

145 subparagraph 1. shall maintain the exempt status of that

146 information only if the officer, employee, justice, judge, other

147 person, or employing agency of the designated employee submits a

148 written request for maintenance of the exemption to the

149 custodial agency.

150 Section 2. The Legislature finds that it is a public

151 necessity that the names and locations of schools and day care

152 facilities attended by the children of current or former

153 guardians ad litem be made exempt from public records

154 requirements. Guardians ad litem provide a valuable service to

155 the community. They interact with victims of child abuse and

156 neglect and, at times, the perpetrators of that abuse or

157 neglect. The capacity in which they work or volunteer their time

158 does not always create good will. Different persons may be

159 disgruntled with the testimony, report, or recommendation made

160 by guardians ad litem. The testimony of guardians ad litem could

161 create a safety risk. Thus, the children of guardians ad litem

Page 6 of?
PCB GAP 10-08
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

162 could become a potential target for acts of revenge. If the name

163 and location of schools or daycare facilities attended by the

164 children of such persons were made available, the safety and

165 welfare of the children of the guardians ad litem could be

166 seriously jeopardized. Accordingly, it is a public necessity

167 that such information be made exempt from public disclosure.

168 Section 3. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

Page 7of7
PCB GAP 10-08
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



-""
o

I
-""
o



BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCB GAP 10-10 OGSR Identification of a Minor
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 1198

ACTION

Orig. Comm.:

REFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ANALYST() STAFF DIRE

________ William~.a.ill Williamso

1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The Open Government Sunset Review Act requires the Legislature to review each public record and each
public meeting exemption five years after enactment. If the Legislature does not reenact the exemption, it
automatically repeals on October 2nd of the fifth year after enactment.

In 2005, the Legislature enacted the Parental Notice of Abortion Act (Act). The Act requires a treating
physician to provide actual notice, in person or by telephone, to a parent or other legal guardian of a minor
seeking to have an abortion at least 48 hours before the performance of the abortion on the minor. The Act
provides exceptions to the notice requirement. Under the Act, a minor may petition any circuit court in a
judicial circuit within the jurisdiction of the District Court of Appeal, in which she resides, for a waiver of the
notice requirements under the Act.

In conjunction with the enactment of the Florida Parental Notice of Abortion Act (Act), the Legislature created a
public record exemption for judicial records related to parental notification bypass proceedings. Any
information in a court record that could be used to identify a minor in a proceeding to bypass parental
notification under the Act is confidential and exempt from public records requirements.

The bill reenacts the public record exemption for information in judicial records that would identify a minor
participating in a parental notification bypass proceeding. It expands the exemption to also include such
information when held by the Office of Criminal Conflict and Civil Regional Counselor the Justice
Administrative Commission. During representation of minors in judicial-waiver cases under the Act, the Office
of Criminal Conflict and Civil Regional Counsel may obtain identifying information from the minors. Similarly,
the Justice Administrative Commission may receive identifying information of minors that is related to the
processing of attorney billing and payment requests for representation in such cases.

The bill extends the repeal date from October 2,2010, to October 2,2015. In addition, it provides a public
necessity statement.

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

The bill requires a two-thirds vote of the members present and voting for passage.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb10.GAP.doc
DATE: 2/27/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

BACKGROUND

Open Government Sunset Review Act
The Open Government Sunset Review Act1 sets forth a legislative review process for newly created or
substantially amended public record or public meeting exemptions. It requires an automatic repeal of
the exemption on October 2nd of the fifth year after creation or substantial amendment, unless the
Legislature reenacts the exemption.

The Act provides that a public record or public meeting exemption may be created or maintained only if
it serves an identifiable public purpose. In addition, it may be no broader than is necessary to meet one
of the following purposes:

• Allows the state or its political subdivisions to effectively and efficiently administer a
governmental program, which administration would be significantly impaired without the
exemption.

• Protects sensitive personal information that, if released, would be defamatory or would
jeopardize an individual's safety; however, only the identity of an individual may be exempted
under this provision.

• Protects trade or business secrets.

If, and only if, in reenacting an exemption that will repeal, the exemption is expanded (essentially
creating a new exemption), then a public necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are
required.2 If the exemption is reenacted with grammatical or stylistic changes that do not expand the
exemption, if the exemption is narrowed, or if an exception to the exemption is created3 then a public
necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are not required.

Public Access to Court Records
Although Florida courts have consistently held that the judiciary is not considered an "agency" for
purposes of the Public Records Act,4,5 the Florida Supreme Court has found that "both civil and criminal

1 Section 119.15, F.S.
2 Section 24(c), Art. I ofthe State Constitution.
3 An example of an exception to a public record exemption would be allowing another agency access to confidential or exempt
records.
4 Chapter 119, F.S., is known as the Public Records Act.
STORAGE NAME: pcb10.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 2/27/2010



proceedings in Florida are public events" and that it will "adhere to the well established common law
right of access to court proceedings and records.,,6 Furthermore, there is a constitutional guarantee of
access to judicial records.? This constitutional provision provides for public access to judicial records,
except for those records expressly exempted by the Florida Constitution, Florida law in effect on July 1,
1993, court rules in effect on November 3, 1992, or by future acts of the Legislature in accordance with
the Constitution.8

Parental Notice of Abortion Act
In 1999, the Legislature enacted a law requiring parents of minors to be notified prior to the minor's
termination of her pregnancy. This law was constitutionally challenged on grounds that the act violated
a person's right to privacy under the Florida Constitution. The Florida Supreme Court concluded that
the act violated Florida's constitutional right to privacy9 because the minor was not afforded a
mechanism by which to bypass parental notification if certain exigent circumstances existed.10 In
response to the court's decision, the Legislature proposed a constitutional amendment authorizing the
Florida Legislature, notwithstanding a minor's right to privacy under the Florida Constitution, to require
a physician to notify a minor's parent or guardian prior to termination of the minor's pregnancy, which
was subsequently ratified by Florida voters. The amendment provides:

The Legislature shall not limit or deny the privacy right guaranteed to a minor
under the United States Constitution as interpreted by the United States
Supreme Court. Notwithstanding a minor's right of privacy provided in Section 23
of Article I, the Legislature is authorized to require by general law for notification
to a parent or guardian of a minor before the termination of the minor's
pregnancy. The Legislature shall provide exceptions to such requirement for
notification and shall create a process for judicial waiver of the notification.11

The Legislature responded to this authorization by enacting the Parental Notice of Abortion Act (Act).12
The Act requires a treating physician to provide actual notice, in person or by telephone, to a parent or
other legal guardian of a minor seeking to have an abortion at least 48 hours before the performance of
the abortion on the minor. 13. 14 Notice under the Act is not required if:

• In the physician's good faith clinical judgment, a medical emergency exists and there is
insufficient time for the attending physician to comply with the notification requirements;

• Notice is waived in writing by the person who is entitled to notice;
• Notice is waived by a minor who is or has been married or has had the disability of nonage

removed under statute;
• Notice is waived by the patient because the patient has a minor child dependent on her; or
• A court waives the parental notification process via a bypass proceeding.15

Parental Notification Judicial-Bypass Proceeding
Under the Act, a minor may petition any circuit court in a judicial circuit within the jurisdiction of the
District Court of Appeal, in which she resides, for a waiver of the notice requirements under the Act.16

5 Times Publishing Co. v. Ake, 660 So. 2d 255 (Fla. 1995) (holding that the judiciary, as a coequal branch of government, is not an
"agency" subject to control by another coequal branch of government).
6 Barron v. Florida Freedom Newspapers, 531 So. 2d 113, 116 (Fla. 1988).
7 Section 24(a), Art. I ofthe State Constitution.
8 Section 24, Art. I of the State Constitution.
9 Section 23, Art. I of the State Constitution.
10 North Florida Women's Health and Counseling Services v. State, 866 So. 2d 612 (Fla. 2003).
11 Section 22, Art. X of the State Constitution.
12 Section 2 of chapter 2005-52, L.O.F.
13 Section 390.01114(2)(a) and (3)(a), F.S.
14 Constructive notice may be provided after a physician has made reasonable efforts to contact the parents. To accomplish legally
valid constructive notice, the physician must provide written notice, signed by the physician, and mailed at least 72 hours before the
inducement or performance of the termination of pregnancy, to the last known address of the parent or legal guardian of the minor,
by certified mail, return receipt requested, and delivery restricted to the parent or legal guardian. After 72 hours, delivery is
deemed to have occurred. (Section 390.01114(2)(c), F.S.)
15 Section 390.01114(3)(b), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: pcb10.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 2127/2010



To initiate the proceeding, a minor must file a petition with the court under a pseudonym or through the
use of initials.17

,18 The court must advise the minor that she is entitled to court-appointed counsel upon
her request at no charge. 19

After a petition is filed, the court must rule and issue written findings of fact and conclusions of law
within 48 hours.2o In order to the grant the petition, the court must find:

• By clear and convincing evidence, that the minor is sufficiently mature to decide whether to
terminate her pregnancy;

• By a preponderance of the evidence, that there is evidence of child abuse or sexual abuse of
the minor by one or both of her parents or her guardian; or

• By a preponderance of the evidence that the notification of a parent or guardian is not in the
best interest of the minor.21

If the court fails to issue a ruling within the 48-hour period and an extension of time has not been
requested by the minor, the petition is granted and the notice requirement is waived. 22

Exemption under Review
In conjunction with the enactment of the Florida Parental Notice of Abortion Act (Act), the Legislature
created a public record exemption for judicial records related to parental notification bypass
proceedings. Any information in a court record that could be used to identify a minor in a proceeding to
bypass parental notification under the Act is confidential and exempf3 from public records
requirements. 24

Pursuant to the Open Government Sunset Review Act, the exemption will repeal on October 2,2010,
unless reenacted by the Legislature.25

EFFECT OF BILL

The bill reenacts the public record exemption for information in judicial records that would identify a
minor participating in a parental notification bypass proceeding. It expands the exemption to also
include such information when held by the Office of Criminal Conflict and Civil Regional Counselor the
Justice Administrative Commission. During representation of minors in judicial-waiver cases under the
Act, the Office of Criminal Conflict and Civil Regional Counsel may obtain identifying information from
the minors. Similarly, the Justice Administrative Commission may receive identifying information of
minors that is related to the processing of attorney billing and payment requests for representation in
such cases.

16 Section 390.01114(4)(a), F.5.
17 1d.

18 No filing fees or court costs are required of any pregnant minor who petitions a court for a waiver of parental notification under
the Act. (Section 390.01114(4)(g), F.S.)
19 Section 390.01114(4)(a), F.S.
20 The 48-hour period may be extended only upon the request of the minor. (Section 390.01114(4)(b), F.S.)
21 Section 390.01114(4)(c) and (d), F.S.
22 Section 390.01114(4)(b), F.S.
23 There is a difference between records the Legislature designates as exempt from public record requirements and those the
Legislature deems confidential and exempt. A record classified as exempt from public disclosure may be disclosed under certain
circumstances. (See WFT\0 Inc. v. The School Board ofSeminole, 874 So.2d 48, 53 (Fla. 5th DCA 2004), review denied 892 So.2d 1015
(Fla. 2004); City ofRiviera Beach v. Barfield, 642 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994); Williams v. City ofMinneola, 575 So.2d 687 (Fla. 5th
DCA 1991) If the Legislature designates a record as confidential and exempt from public disclosure, such record may not be
released, by the custodian of public records, to anyone other than the persons or entities specifically designated in the statutory
exemption. (See Attorney General Opinion 85-62, August 1, 1985).
24 Section 390.01116, F.S. This exemption is not the first public-records exemption related to juveniles and domestic cases. All
dependency court records, including cases related to the termination of parental rights, are closed to the public except to those
demonstrating a proper interest. See ss. 39.0132(3) and 39.814(3), F.S.
2S Section 2 of Chapter 2005-104, L.O.F.
STORAGE NAME: pcb10.GAP.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 2/27/2010



The bill extends the repeal date from October 2, 2010, to October 2, 2015. In addition, it provides a
public necessity statement.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 390.01116, F.S., to reenact and expand the public record exemption for
information used to identify a minor petitioning a circuit court for a judicial waiver of the notice
requirements under the Parental Notice of Abortion Act.

Section 2 provides a public necessity statement.

Section 3 repeals s. 2 of chapter 2005-104, L.O.F., which provides for repeal of the exemption.

Section 4 provides an effective date of upon becoming a law.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

2. Other:

Vote Requirement
Article I, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution, requires a two-thirds vote of the members present and
voting for passage of a newly created public record or public meeting exemption. The bill expands
the current exemption under review; thus, it requires a two-thirds vote for passage.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb10.GAP.doc
2/27/2010

PAGE: 5



Public Necessity Statement
Article I, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution, requires a public necessity statement for a newly created
or expanded public record or public meeting exemption. The bill expands the current exemption
under review; thus, it includes a public necessity statement.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb10.GAP.doc
2/27/2010

PAGE: 6



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to a review under the Open Government

Sunset Review Act; amending s. 390.01116, F.S., which

provides an exemption from public records requirements for

information that could identify a minor which is contained

in a record relating to a minor's petition to waive notice

requirements when terminating a pregnancy; expanding the

exemption to include such information held by the Office

of Criminal Conflict and Civil Regional Counselor the

Justice Administrative Commission; making editorial

changes; providing for future legislative review and

repeal of the exemption under the Open Government Sunset

Review Act; providing a statement of public necessity;

repealing s. 2, ch. 2005-104, Laws of Florida, which

provides for repeal of the exemption; providing an

effective date.

18 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

19

20 Section 1. Section 390.01116, Florida Statutes, is amended

21 to read:

22 390.01116 Public record exemptions; minors seeking waiver

23 of notice requirements petition; confidentiality.-

24 (1) Any information that can be used to identify WfleR a

25 minor petitioning petitions a circuit court for a judicial

26 waiver, as provided in s. 390.01114, of the notice requirements

27 under the Parental Notice of Abortion Act pertaining to a minor

Page 1of 4
PCB GAP 10-10
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

28 seeking to terminate her pregnancy, any information in a record

29 held by the circuit court or an appellate court \Jhich could be

30 used to identify the minor is:

31 (a) Confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s.

32 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution if held by a circuit

33 court or an appellate court.

34 (b) Confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s.

35 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution if held by the Office of

36 Criminal Conflict and Civil Regional Counselor the Justice

37 Administrative Commission.

38 (2) Paragraph (1) (b) is subject to the Open Government

39 Sunset Review Act in accordance with section 119.15, Florida

40 Statutes, and shall stand repealed on October 2, 2015, unless

41 reviewed and saved from repeal through reenactment by the

42 Legislature.

43 Section 2. The Legislature finds that it is a public

44 necessity to make confidential and exempt from public records

45 requirements any information that can be used to identify a

46 minor petitioning a circuit court for a judicial waiver from the

47 statutory requirement that a parent or legal guardian be

48 notified when that minor seeks to terminate her pregnancy when

49 such information is held by the Office of Criminal Conflict and

50 Civil Regional Counselor the Justice Administrative Commission.

51 The information contained in these records is of a sensitive,

52 personal nature regarding a minor petitioner, release of which

53 could harm the reputation of the minor, as well as jeopardize

54 her safety. Disclosure of this information could jeopardize the

Page 2 of 4
PCB GAP 10-10
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

55 safety of the minor in instances when child abuse or child

56 sexual abuse against her is present by exposing her to further

57 acts of abuse from an abuser who, without the public record

58 exemption, could learn of the minor's pregnancy, her plans to

59 terminate the pregnancy, and her petition to the court. The

60 Legislature further finds that it is a public necessity to keep

61 this identifying information in records held by the Office of

62 Criminal Conflict and Civil Regional Counselor the Justice

63 Administrative Commission confidential and exempt in order to

64 protect the privacy of the minor. The State Constitution

65 contains an express right of privacy in Section 23 of Article I.

66 Further, the United States Supreme Court has repeatedly required

67 parental-notification laws to contain judicial-bypass procedures

68 and to preserve confidentiality at every level of court

69 proceedings in order to protect the privacy rights of the minor.

70 Without the public record exemption provided in this act, the

71 disclosure of personal identifying information would violate the

72 right of privacy of the minor. Further, without the confidential

73 and exempt status for this information, the constitutionality of

74 the state's program providing for notification of a minor's

75 termination of pregnancy, and the judicial-bypass procedure in

76 particular, would be in question. Thus, the public record

77 exemption provided in this act is necessary for the effective

78 administration of the state's program, which administration

79 would be impaired without the exemption.

80 Section 3. Section 2 of chapter 2005-104, Laws of Florida,

81 is repealed.

Page 30f4
PCB GAP 10-10
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

82 Section 4. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

Page 4 of4
PCB GAP 10-10
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



.....
o

I..........



BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCB GAP 10-11 OGSR Florida Self-Insurers Guaranty Association
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN.lSIM. BILLS: SB 1662

Orig. Comm.:

REFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ACTION ANALYST /\ STAFF DIRE OR

Williamso~a..W Williams 0~
1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The Open Government Sunset Review Act requires the Legislature to review each public record and each
public meeting exemption five years after enactment. If the Legislature does not reenact the exemption, it
automatically repeals on October 2nd of the fifth year after enactment.

The Florida Legislature created the Florida Self-Insurers Guaranty Association (association) as a nonprofit
corporation. The purpose of the association is to provide a mechanism to fund covered workers' compensation
claims of individual insolvent self-insurers other than public utilities or governmental entities.

Current law provides a public record and public meeting exemption for the association. Claims files and
medical information relating to a claimant are confidential and exempt from public records requirements. The
public record exemption for claims files expires upon termination of all litigation and settlement of all claims
arising out of the accident.

Current law also provides a public meeting exemption for those portions of association meetings wherein
confidential and exempt claims files or medical information is discussed. All closed portions of meetings must
be recorded and transcribed. Minutes of closed portions of association meetings are confidential and exempt
from public records requirements; however, such exemption expires upon termination of all litigation and
settlement of all claims.

The bill reenacts the public record and public meeting exemptions, which will repeal on October 2, 2010, if this
bill does not become law. It also reorganizes the section for clarity.

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb11.GAP.doc
DATE: 2/27/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

BACKGROUND

Open Government Sunset Review Act
The Open Government Sunset Review Act1 sets forth a legislative review process for newly created or
substantially amended public record or public meeting exemptions. It requires an automatic repeal of
the exemption on October 2nd of the fifth year after creation or substantial amendment, unless the
Legislature reenacts the exemption.

The Act provides that a public record or public meeting exemption may be created or maintained only if
it serves an identifiable public purpose. In addition, it may be no broader than is necessary to meet one
of the following purposes:

• Allows the state or its political subdivisions to effectively and efficiently administer a
governmental program, which administration would be significantly impaired without the
exemption.

• Protects sensitive personal information that, if released, would be defamatory or would
jeopardize an individual's safety; however, only the identity of an individual may be exempted
under this provision.

• Protects trade or business secrets.

If, and only if, in reenacting an exemption that will repeal, the exemption is expanded (essentially
creating a new exemption), then a public necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are
required. 2 If the exemption is reenacted with grammatical or stylistic changes that do not expand the
exemption, if the exemption is narrowed, or if an exception to the exemption is created3 then a public
necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are not required.

Florida Self-Insurers Guaranty Association
The Florida Legislature created the Florida Self-Insurers Guaranty Association (association) as a
nonprofit corporation.4 The purpose of the association is to provide a mechanism to fund covered

1 Section 119.15, F.S.
2 Section 24(cl, Art. I ofthe State Constitution.
3 An example of an exception to a public record exemption would be allowing another agency access to confidential or exempt
records.
4 Section 440.385(1)(al, F.S.
STORAGE NAME: pcb11.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 2127/2010



workers' compensation claims of individual insolvent self-insurers other than public utilities or
governmental entities. The association is under the general oversight of the Department of Financial
Services, which also regulates individual self-insurers for purposes of workers' compensation
coverage.5

Exemptions under Review
Current law provides a public record exemption for the association. Claims files and medical records
and information relating to the medical condition or medical status, of a claimant, are confidential and
exempt6 from public records requirements? The public record exemption for claims files expires upon
termination of all litigation and settlement of all claims arising out of the accident.8

Upon written request, confidential and exempt claims files and medical records and other medical
information, of a claimant, may be released to another agency in the performance of that agency's
official duties and responsibilities. The receiving agency must maintain the confidential and exempt
status of such files, records, and information.9

Current law also provides a public meeting exemption for those portions of association meetings
wherein confidential and exempt claims files or other medical information about a claimant is
discussed. All closed portions of meetings must be recorded and transcribed, including:

• The times of commencement and termination of the meeting;
• All discussion and proceedings;
• The names of all persons present at any time; and
• The names of all persons speaking.10

Minutes of closed portions of association meetings are confidential and exempt from public records
requirements; however, such exemption expires upon termination of all litigation and settlement of all
c1aims. 11

The court reporter's notes of any exempt portion of a meeting must be retained by the association for a
minimum of five years.12

Pursuant to the Open Government Sunset Review Act, the exemptions will repeal on October 2,2010,
unless reenacted by the Legislature.13

EFFECT OF BILL

The bill removes the repeal date, thereby reenacting the public record and public meeting exemptions.
It also reorganizes the section for clarity.

SId.

6 There is a difference between records the Legislature designates as exempt from public record requirements and those the
Legislature deems confidential and exempt. A record classified as exempt from public disclosure may be disclosed under certain
circumstances. (See WFT\0 Inc. v. The School Board ofSeminole, 874 So.2d 48, 53 (Fla. 5th DCA 2004), review denied 892 So.2d 1015
(Fla. 2004); City ofRiviera Beach v. Barfield, 642 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994); Williams v. City ofMinneola, 575 So.2d 687 (Fla. 5th
DCA 1991) If the Legislature designates a record as confidential and exempt from public disclosure, such record may not be
released, by the custodian of public records, to anyone other than the persons or entities specifically designated in the statutory
exemption. (See Attorney General Opinion 85-62, August 1, 1985).
7 Section 440.3851(1)(a) and (b), F.S.
8 Section 440.3851(1)(a), F.S.
9 Section 440.3851(2), F.S.
10 Section 440.3851(3), F.S.
11 Section 440.3851(1)(c) and (3), F.S.
12 Section 440.3851(3), F.5.
13 Section 440.3851(4), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: pcb11.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 2/27/2010



B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 440.3851, F.S., to reenact the public record and public meeting exemptions for the
Florida Association of Self-Insurers Guaranty Association.

Section 2 provides an effective date of October 1, 2010.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb11.GAP.doc
2/27/2010

PAGE: 4



IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb11.GAP.doc
2/27/2010

PAGE: 5



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to a review under the Open Government

Sunset Review Act; amending s. 440.3851, F.S., which

provides an exemption from public records and public

meetings requirements for the Florida Self-Insurers

Guaranty Association, Incorporated; reorganizing the

section; removing the scheduled repeal of the exemptions;

providing an effective date.

10 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

11

12 Section 1. Section 440.3851, Florida Statutes, is amended

13 to read:

14

15

440.3851 Public records and public meetings exemptions.­

(1) The following records of the Florida Self-Insurers

16 Guaranty Association, Incorporated, are confidential and exempt

17 from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State

18 Constitution:

19 (a) Claims files, until termination of all litigation and

20 settlement of all claims arising out of the same accident.

21 (b) Medical records that are part of a claims file and

22 other information relating to the medical condition or medical

23 status of a claimant.

24 (c) Minutes of exempt portions of meetings, as provided in

25 subsection (3), until termination of all litigation and

26 settlement of all claims with regard to that claim.

27 (2 ) Records or portions of records made confidential and

28 exempt by this section may be released, upon written request, to

Page 1of2
PCB GAP 10-11
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

29 another agency in the performance of that agency's official

30 duties and responsibilities. The receiving agency shall maintain

31 the confidential and exempt status of such record or portion of

32 a record.

33 (3) (a) That portion of a meeting of the association's

34 board of directors or any subcommittee of the association's

35 board at which records made confidential and exempt by this

36 section are discussed is exempt from s. 286.011 and s. 24(b),

37 Art. I of the State Constitution.

38 (b) All exempt portions of meetings shall be recorded and

39 transcribed. The board shall record the times of commencement

40 and termination of the meeting, all discussion and proceedings,

41 the names of all persons present at any time, and the names of

42 all persons speaking. An exempt portion of any meeting may not

43 be off the record.

44 (c) Subject to this section and s. 119.021(2), the court

45 reporter's notes of any exempt portion of a meeting shall be

46 retained by the association for a minimum of 5 years.

47 (d) A copy of the transcript of any exempt portion of a

48 meeting in which claims files are discussed shall become public

49 as to individual claims after settlement of the claim with any

50 confidential and exempt information redacted.

51 (4) This section is subject to the Open Government Sunset

52 Reviml Act in accordance '.lith s. 119.15 and shall stand repealed

53 on October 2, 2010, unless revimlCd and saved from repeal

54 through reenactment by the Legislature.

55 Section 2. This act shall take effect October 1, 2010.

Page 2of2
PCB GAP 10-11
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



-o
I-N



BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCB GAP 10-12 OGSR Insurance Claim Data Exchange Information
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN.lSIM. BILLS: SB 886

ACTION

Orig. Comm.:

REFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ANALYS~ /) STAFF D1REUR

_______ williamscl':tUAf Williamsol\l\UA,V

1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The Open Government Sunset Review Act requires the Legislature to review each public record and each
public meeting exemption five years after enactment. If the Legislature does not reenact the exemption, it
automatically repeals on October 2nd of the fifth year after enactment.

In 2004, the Legislature directed the Department of Revenue to develop and operate a data match system that
would identify noncustodial parents who owe past-due child support and who also have a claim with an insurer.
This process allows insurers to voluntarily provide the Department with the name, address, and if known, date
of birth and social security number or other taxpayer identification number for each noncustodial parent
identified as having a claim. The data provided can be used only for purposes of child support enforcement.

The Department did not immediately begin matching data files with insurance companies using the insurance
claim data exchange statute. In February 2006, the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 was enacted by Congress.
The Act amended federal law to authorize the Federal Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) to
compare information concerning individuals owing past-due child support with information maintained by
insurers concerning insurance claims, settlements, awards, and payments. The Act further allowed HHS to
furnish information resulting from the data matches to state agencies responsible for child support
enforcement.

The Department began participating in the federal program in the fall of 2008. The Department reports it
needs additional time to determine the success of the federal program.

Current law provides that information obtained by the Department pursuant to the insurance claim data
exchange is confidential and exempt from public records requirements until the Department determines if a
match exists. If a match does exist, the match data is no longer confidential and exempt and is available for
public disclosure. If a match is not made, then the nonmatch information must be destroyed.

At the request of the Department, the bill extends the repeal date from October 2, 2010, to October 2, 2012,
thereby reenacting the public record exemption for information obtained by the Department pursuant to the
insurance claim data exchange. This extension should provide the Department with ample time to determine
the success of the federal program.

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb12.GAP.doc
DATE: 2/26/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

BACKGROUND

Open Government Sunset Review Act
The Open Government Sunset Review Act1 sets forth a legislative review process for newly created or
substantially amended public record or public meeting exemptions. It requires an automatic repeal of
the exemption on October 2nd of the fifth year after creation or substantial amendment, unless the
Legislature reenacts the exemption.

The Act provides that a public record or public meeting exemption may be created or maintained only if
it serves an identifiable public purpose. In addition, it may be no broader than is necessary to meet one
of the following purposes:

• Allows the state or its political subdivisions to effectively and efficiently administer a
governmental program, which administration would be significantly impaired without the
exemption.

• Protects sensitive personal information that, if released, would be defamatory or would
jeopardize an individual's safety; however, only the identity of an individual may be exempted
under this provision.

• Protects trade or business secrets.

If, and only if, in reenacting an exemption that will repeal, the exemption is expanded (essentially
creating a new exemption), then a public necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are
required.2 If the exemption is reenacted with grammatical or stylistic changes that do not expand the
exemption, if the exemption is narrowed, or if an exception to the exemption is created3 then a public
necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are not required.

Insurance Claim Data Exchange
As of July 2009,468,596 noncustodial parents in Florida owed past-due child support.4

1 Section 119.15, F.S.
2 Section 24(c), Art. I ofthe State Constitution.
3 An example of an exception to a public record exemption would be allowing another agency access to confidential or exempt
records.
4 Senate Bill Analysis and Fiscal Impact Statement for SB 886 by the Committee on Children, Families, and Elder Affairs, February 8,
2010, at 3.
STORAGE NAME: pcb12.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 2/26/2010



The Department of Revenue is authorized to levy any credit or personal property of an obligor for any
past-due child support.s This includes bank accounts, vehicles, and insurance claim payments.

The Legislature directed the Department to develop and operate a data match system that would
identify noncustodial parents who owe past-due child support and who also have a claim with an
insurer.6 This process allows insurers to voluntarily provide the Department with the name, address,
and if known, date of birth and social security number or other taxpayer identification number for each
noncustodial parent identified as having a claim.? The data provided can be used only for purposes of
child support enforcement.8

An insurer may provide the Department with the needed information in one of the following ways:
• An insurer may provide the required data for each claim directly to the Department electronically

so it can conduct a data match;
• An insurer may receive or access data from the Department and conduct a data match of all

noncustodial parents who have a claim with the insurer and who owe past-due child support,
and submit the match data regarding each noncustodial parent to the Department; or

• An insurer may authorize an insurance claim data collection organization to complete either of
the two options.9

Due to the variety of data submission methods provided within the system, it is possible for the
Department to receive information on individuals who have a claim with an insurer and who do not owe
child support.

Public Record Exemption under Review
Current law provides that information obtained by the Department pursuant to the insurance claim data
exchange is confidential and exempt1° from public records requirements until the Department
determines if a match exists. 11 If a match does exist, the match data is no longer confidential and
exempt and is available for public disclosure. If a match is not made, then the nonmatch information
must be destroyed. 12

Pursuant to the Open Government Sunset Review Act (OGSR), the exemption was scheduled to repeal
on October 2, 2009; however, as a result of the OGSR review during the 2008 interim the repeal date
was delayed until October 2, 2010.

Implementation of the Insurance Claim Data Exchange
The Department did not immediately begin matching data files with insurance companies using the
insurance claim data exchange statute. According to the Department, it took steps to implement the
statute by contacting most of the top 25 insurers in the State. During this time, insurers were
responding to claims resulting from damage caused during the 2004 hurricane season. Therefore, the
Department decided to postpone working on the insurance claim data exchange initiative at the request
of those insurers. The Department did not re-initiate contact with the insurers and attempt to resume
implementation activities due to its resources being otherwise dedicated to the statewide

5 Section 409.25656, F.S.
6 Chapter 2004-334, L.O.F.; codified as s. 409.25659, F.S.
7 Section 409.25659(2), F.s.
sSection 409.25659(5), F.S.
9 Section 409.25659(2)(a) - (c), F.S.
10 There is a difference between records the Legislature designates as exempt from public record requirements and those the
Legislature deems confidential and exempt. A record classified as exempt from public disclosure may be disclosed under certain
circumstances. (See WF7V, Inc. v. The School Board ofSeminole, 874 So.2d 48, 53 (Fla. 5th DCA 2004), review denied 892 So.2d 1015
(Fla. 2004); City ofRiviera Beach v. Barfield, 642 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994); Williams v. City ofMinneola, 575 So.2d 687 (Fla. 5th
DCA 1991) If the Legislature designates a record as confidential and exempt from public disclosure, such record may not be
released, by the custodian of public records, to anyone other than the persons or entities specifically designated in the statutory
exemption. (See Attorney General Opinion 85-62, August 1, 1985).
11 Section 409.25661(1), F.S.
12 1d.
STORAGE NAME: pcb12.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 2/26/2010



implementation of Phase I of the Child Support Enforcement Automated Management System
(CAMS).13

In February 2006, the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 was enacted by Congress. The Act amended
federal law to authorize the Federal Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) to compare
information concerning individuals owing past-due child support with information maintained by insurers
concerning insurance claims, settlements, awards, and payments. The Act further allowed HHS to
furnish information resulting from the data matches to state agencies responsible for child support
enforcement.14

Rather than re-engage insurers in the implementation of insurance claim data exchange, the
Department chose to monitor the results of a federal workgroup charged with implementing the
nationwide insurance data match program in other states before implementing the federal program in
Florida.15 The Department submitted the participation form to the Federal Office of Child Support
Enforcement on September 8, 2008 and began receiving matches on October 10, 2008.

Between October 10 and December 4, 2008, the Department had received 530 matches from the new
program. Approximately 47 percent of these matches already had been received by the Department
through other means.16 For the period of November 2008 through October 2009, the Department had
received 2,996 data matches from the federal program. Of those matches, the Department reports 422
already had been made by the Department through other means.17

The Department has requested additional time in order to determine the success of the federal
program. As such, it has requested delay of repeal of the exemption until October 2, 2012. 18

EFFECT OF BILL

The bill extends the repeal date from October 2,2010, to October 2,2012, thereby reenacting the
public record exemption for information obtained by the Department pursuant to the insurance claim
data exchange. This extension provides the Department with additional time to determine the success
of the federal program.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 409.25661, F.S., to extend the repeal date from October 2,2010, to October 2,
2012.

Section 2 provides an effective date of October 1, 2010.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

13 Email from Debbie Thomas, Staff, Department of Revenue, (Aug. 25, 2008)(on file with the Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee); follow-up telephone call with Debbie Thomas (March 9, 2009).
14/d.
is/d.

lG Senate Bill Analysis and Fiscal Impact Statement for SB 750 by the Committee on Children, Families, and Elder Affairs, February 12,
2009, at 5.
17 Senate Bill Analysis and Fiscal Impact Statement for SB 886 by the Committee on Children, Families, and Elder Affairs, February 8,
2010, at 5.
18 Memorandum from Debra Thomas, Office of Legislative and Cabinet Services for the Department of Revenue, (December 30,
2009) (on file with the Governmental Affairs Policy Committee).
STORAGE NAME: pcb12.GAP.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 2/26/2010



2. Expenditures:

None.

8. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb12.GAP.doc
2/26/2010

PAGE: 5



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to a review under the Open Government

Sunset Review Act; amending s. 409.25661, F.S., which

provides an exemption from public records requirements for

certain records obtained by the Department of Revenue

under an insurance claim data exchange system; saving the

exemption from repeal under the Open Government Sunset

Review Act; extending the repeal date; providing an

effective date.

11 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

12

13 Section 1. Section 409.25661, Florida Statutes, is amended

14 to read:

15 409.25661 Public records exemption for insurance claim

16 data exchange information.-

17 (1) Information obtained by the Department of Revenue

18 pursuant to s. 409.25659 is confidential and exempt from s.

19 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution until

20 such time as the department determines whether a match exists.

21 If a match exists, such information becomes available for public

22 disclosure. If a match does not exist, the nonmatch information

23 shall be destroyed as provided in s. 409.25659.

24 (2) This section is subject to the Open Government Sunset

25 Review Act in accordance with s. 119.15 and shall stand repealed

26 on October 2, 2012 ~, unless reviewed and saved from repeal

27 through reenactment by the Legislature.

28 Section 2. This act shall take effect October 1, 2010.

Page 1of 1
PCB GAP 10-12.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v





BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCB GAP 10-18 OGSR Domestic Security Oversight Council
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN.lSIM. BILLS: SB 618

Orig. Comm.:

REFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ACTION ANALYST /\ STAFF DIRECfPR

Wllliamso~HJ Wllliamso~
1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The Open Government Sunset Review Act requires the Legislature to review each public record and each
public meeting exemption five years after enactment. If the Legislature does not reenact the exemption, it
automatically repeals on October 2nd of the fifth year after enactment.

The Domestic Security Oversight Council (council) was created to serve as an advisory council to provide
guidance to the state's regional domestic security task forces and other domestic security working groups. It
also was created to make recommendations to the Governor and the Legislature regarding the expenditure of
funds and allocation of resources related to counterterrorism and domestic security efforts. The council must
meet at least semiannually.

Current law provides a public meeting exemption for those portions of council meetings wherein the council
hears or discusses active criminal investigative information or active criminal intelligence information. The
exemption applies only if: the chair of the council announces at a public meeting that, in connection with the
performance of the council's duties, it is necessary that such information be discussed; the chair declares the
specific reasons it is necessary to close the meeting, or portion thereof, in a document that is a public record
and filed with the official records of the council; and the entire closed meeting is recorded.

An audio or video recording of, and any minutes and notes generated during, a closed portion of a council
meeting is exempt from public records requirements. However, the public record exemption expires at such
time as the criminal investigative information or criminal intelligence information discussed therein is no longer
active.

The bill reenacts the public record and public meeting exemptions, which will repeal on October 2, 2010, if this
bill does not become law.

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb18.GAP.doc
DATE: 2/26/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A.. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

BACKGROUND

Open Government Sunset Review Act
The Open Government Sunset Review Act1 sets forth a legislative review process for newly created or
substantially amended public record or public meeting exemptions. It requires an automatic repeal of
the exemption on October 2nd of the fifth year after creation or substantial amendment, unless the
Legislature reenacts the exemption.

The Act provides that a public record or public meeting exemption may be created or maintained only if
it serves an identifiable public purpose. In addition, it may be no broader than is necessary to meet one
of the following purposes:

• Allows the state or its political subdivisions to effectively and efficiently administer a
governmental program, which administration would be significantly impaired without the
exemption.

• Protects sensitive personal information that, if released, would be defamatory or would
jeopardize an individual's safety; however, only the identity of an individual may be exempted
under this provision.

• Protects trade or business secrets.

If, and only if, in reenacting an exemption that will repeal, the exemption is expanded (essentially
creating a new exemption), then a public necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are
required.2 If the exemption is reenacted with grammatical or stylistic changes that do not expand the
exemption, if the exemption is narrowed, or if an exception to the exemption is created3 then a public
necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are not required.

Domestic Security Oversight Council
The Domestic Security Oversight Council (council) was created to serve as an advisory council to
provide guidance to the state's regional domestic security task forces and other domestic security
working groups. It also was created to make recommendations to the Governor and the Legislature

1 Section 119.15, F.S.
2 Section 24(c), Art. I ofthe State Constitution.
3 An example of an exception to a public record exemption would be allowing another agency access to confidential or exempt
records.
STORAGE NAME: pcb18.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 2126/2010



regarding the expenditure of funds and allocation of resources related to counterterrorism and domestic
securityefforts.4 The council must meet at least semiannually.5 Its duties include, in part, reviewing:

• The development, maintenance, and operation of a comprehensive multidisciplinary domestic
security strategy that will guide the state's prevention, preparedness, protection, response, and
recovery efforts against terrorist attacks and make appropriate recommendations to ensure the
implementation of that strategy.

• The development of integrated funding plans to support specific projects, goals, and objectives
necessary to the state's domestic security strategy and make appropriate recommendations to
implement those plans.

• The overall statewide effectiveness of domestic security and counter-terrorism efforts in order to
provide suggestions to improve or enhance those efforts.

• The efforts of any agency or entity involved in state or local domestic security and counter­
terrorism efforts that requests assistance or that appears to need such review in order to
provide suggestions to improve or enhance those efforts.

• Efforts within the state to better secure state and local infrastructure against terrorist attack and
make recommendations to enhance the effectiveness of such efforts.

• Statewide or multiagency mobilizations and responses to major domestic security incidents and
recommend suggestions for training, improvement of response efforts, or improvement of
coordination or for other strategies that may be derived as necessary from such reviews. 6

Exemptions under Review
Current law provides a public meeting exemption for those portions of council meetings wherein the
council hears or discusses active criminal investigative information or active criminal intelligence
information. 7 The exemption applies only if:

• The chair of the council announces at a public meeting that, in connection with the performance
of the council's duties, it is necessary that active criminal investigative information or active
criminal intelligence information be discussed.

• The chair declares the specific reasons that it is necessary to close the meeting, or portion
thereof, in a document that is a public record and filed with the official records of the council.

• The entire closed meeting is recorded. The recording must include the times of commencement
and termination of the closed meeting or portion thereof, all discussion and proceedings, and
the names of the persons present. No portion of the closed meeting may be off the record. The
recording must be maintained by the council.8

An audio or video recording of, and any minutes and notes generated during, a closed council meeting
are exempt from public records requirements. However, the public record exemption expires at such
time as the criminal investigative information or criminal intelligence information discussed therein is no
longer active.9

Only members of the council, staff supporting the council, and other persons whose presence has been
authorized by the chair are allowed to attend closed portions of council meetings.10

4 Section 943.0313, F.5.
sSection 943.0313(3), F.S.
6 Section 943.0313(S)(a), F.S.
7 Section 119.011(3), F.S., defines "criminal intelligence information," "criminal investigative information," and "active." Criminal
intelligence information means "information with respect to an identifiable person or group of persons collected by a criminal
justice agency in an effort to anticipate, prevent, or monitor possible criminal activity." It is considered "active" as long as it is
related to intelligence gathering conducted with a reasonable, good faith belief that it will lead to detection of ongoing or reasonably
anticipated criminal activities. Criminal investigative information means "information with respect to an identifiable person or group
of persons compiled by a criminal justice agency in the course of conducting a criminal investigation of a specific act or omission,
including, but not limited to, information derived from laboratory tests, reports of investigators or informants, or any type of
surveillance." Criminal investigative information is considered "active" as long as it is related to an ongoing investigation which is
continuing with a reasonable, good faith anticipation of securing an arrest or prosecution in the foreseeable future.
sSection 943.0314(1)(a), F.S.
9 Section 943.0314(1)(b), F.S.
10 Section 943.0314(2), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: pcb18.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 2/26/2010



Pursuant to the Open Government Sunset Review Act, the exemptions will repeal on October 2, 2010,
unless reenacted by the Legislature.

EFFECT OF BILL

The bill removes the repeal date, thereby reenacting the public record and public meeting exemptions.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 943.0314, F.S., to reenact the public record and public meeting exemptions for the
Domestic Security Oversight Council.

Section 2 provides an effective date of October 1, 2010.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

2. Other:

None.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb18.GAP.doc
2/26/2010

PAGE: 4



B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb18.GAP.doc
2/26/2010

PAGE: 5



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to a review under the Open Government

Sunset Review Act; amending s. 943.0314, F.S., which

provides an exemption from public records and public

meetings requirements for the Domestic Security Oversight

Council; removing the scheduled repeal of the exemption;

providing an effective date.

9 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

10

11 Section 1. Subsection (3) of Section 943.0314, Florida

12 Statutes, is repealed.

13 Section 2. This act shall take effect October 1, 2010.

Page 1of 1
PCB GAP 10-18
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



.....
o

I

N
N



BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCB GAP 10-22 Fire Sprinklers
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN.lSIM. BILLS: SB 846

Orig. Comm.:

REFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIREC

Haug~ Williamso

1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The Florida Building Code was authorized by the 1998 Legislature to be the sole document incorporating all
building standards adopted by all enforcement agencies and state agencies that license different types of
facilities. This unified code was created in response to a multiplicity of complex and confusing building codes
and administrative processes that resulted in weak and inadequate compliance with local building codes
across Florida.

The Florida Building Commission was created and tasked with preparing the first Florida Building Code and
continues to be responsible for the amendment of the code on a triennial basis. The primary resource used by
the commission in formulating the Florida Building Code is the International Residential Code (IRC).

The IRC is a comprehensive, stand-alone residential building code that creates minimum regulations for one­
and two-family dwellings of three stories or less. A recent amendment to the IRC adds a requirement to install
fire sprinklers in all newly constructed one- and two-family residential dwellings and townhouses effective
January 1, 2011. As a result, there is an expectation that the Florida Building Commission will adopt similar
standards in the 2010 edition of the Florida Building Code.

This bill amends the Florida Building Code to prohibit inclusion of the provisions of the International Residential
Code mandating fire sprinklers in one- and two-family residences and townhouses either by adoption by the
Florida Building Commission or local amendment.

The bill has an effective date of July 1, 2010.

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb22.GAP.doc
DATE: 2118/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state bUdget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Background

The Florida Building Code1 (Florida Building Code or code) was authorized by the 1998 Legislature2 to
be the sole document incorporating all building standards adopted by all enforcement agencies and
state agencies that license different types of facilities. This unified code was created in response to a
multiplicity of complex and confusing building codes and administrative processes that resulted in weak
and inadequate compliance with local building codes across Florida.3 It also was created to provide
uniform predictability and accountability.4 The code has created consistency of building throughout
Florida and only allows for local variation of the code when there are compelling differences in local
physical conditions.5

The Florida Building Commission (Florida Building Commission or commission) was created and
tasked with preparing the first Florida Building Code published in 2001, and continues to be responsible
for the amendment of the code on a triennial basis. The commission is comprised of 25 members who
serve four year terms representing, in part, engineers, architects, contractors, building owners and
insurers, state and local governments and persons with disabilities. Members are appointed by the
Governor and confirmed by the Senate.6

In addition to the triennial republishing of the Florida Building Code, the commission may amend the
code once each year to incorporate interpretations and update standards if it finds that such
amendment:

1. Is needed in order to accommodate the specific needs of this state.
2. Has a reasonable and substantial connection with the health, safety and welfare of the

general public.
3. Strengthens or improves the Florida Building Code or, in the case of innovation or new

technology, will provide equivalent or better products or methods or systems of construction.

1 Section 553.73, F.S.

2 CS/CS/HB 4181, Enrolled (1998).
3 1d. at 7.
4 1d. at 8.
s Section 553.73(4)(b), F.S.
6 Section 553.74, F.5.
STORAGE NAME: pcb22.GAP.doc
DATE: 2118/2010

PAGE: 2



4. Does not discriminate against materials, products, methods or systems of construction of
demonstrated capabilities.

5. Does not degrade the effectiveness of the Florida Building Code.7

Local governments also may amend the code for their jurisdiction no more than once each six months.
Any local amendment must address a unique local condition and be more stringent than the Florida
Building Code. To ensure the criteria are met, issues of whether the amendment addresses a unique
condition and is more stringent are appealable to the Florida Building Commission. Adopted local
amendments are repealed or incorporated into the code every three years, upon the updating of the
Florida Building Code.8

The last triennial edition of the Florida Building Code was published in 2007 and work is now underway
on the 2010 code.9 The scope of the commission's work includes the following:

The commission shall select from available national or international model building
codes, or other available building codes and standards currently recognized by the laws
of this state, to form the foundation for the Florida Building Code. The commission may
modify the selected model codes and standards as needed to accommodate the specific
needs of this state. Standards or criteria referenced by the selected model codes shall
be similarly incorporated by reference. 1o

The primary resource used by the commission in formulating the Florida Building Code is the
International Residential Code (IRC). The IRC is a comprehensive, stand-alone residential building
code that creates minimum regulations for one- and two-family dwellings of three stories or less. This
code contains all building, plumbing, mechanical, fuel gas, energy and electrical provisions for one- and
two-family residences. The IRC includes both a prescriptive approach (Le., measures) and a
performance approach (Le., energy modeling) for determining compliance.

A recent amendment to the IRC adds a requirement to install fire sprinklers in all newly constructed
one- and two-family residential dwellings and townhouses effective January 1, 2011.11 As a result,
there is an expectation that the Florida Building Commission will adopt similar standards in the 2010
edition of the Florida Building Code.

The need for fire sprinklers in one- and two-family residences and townhouses is widely debated.
Those supporting residential fire sprinklers emphasize increased safety both to life and property and
those opposing residential fire sprinklers emphasize the effectiveness of smoke detectors and the costs
associated with requiring residential fire sprinklers.

The following graph illustrates that both the total number of deaths and the rate of deaths associated
with residential fires has decreased during the most recently documented period (1977-2008).12

7 Section SS3.73(8)(a), F.S.
sSection SS3.73(4)(b), F.S.
9 Scheduled meetings to work on revisions for 2010 are noticed on the commission's website. See

http://www.dca.state.f1.us/fbc/meetings/2_meetings.htm
10 Section 553.73(3), F.S.
11 Amendment RB64-07/08 to the International Residential Code by the International Code Council, September 21, 2008, in
Minneapolis, MN.
12 Fire Loss In The United States 2008, Michael J. Karter, Jr., National Fire Protection Association, August 2009 (Revised January
2010).
STORAGE NAME: pcb22.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 2118/2010



Figure 3.
Civilian Home Fire Deaths and Rates per 1000 Fires, 1977-2008

7000

6000

.. 5000
.=
'lij
OJ

4000Q

l!!u::
OJ 3000E
0
:x:

2000

1000

0

T 12

T 10
if!u::
OJ
E, 0

i :x:
<:.>

--L 6
<:.>
<:.>, ...
~

OJ
Q...

2,755 ~a::
-5

2
...,
OJ
C

0

,o,"~"~""'...o,'b~'b'...o,'b~'b~~~'b~'b":,.o,'b~'b~'b"'...o,o,~o,'...o,o,"-,o,o,~o,"',o,o,~o,~o,:"'o,o,':..o,o,~"""'n"',!;"'~""";,c§>"'n.""~"-""""~""~",,;,,,,,,,,,,,'b

Year

Source: NFPA SUTVey of Fire Departments (1977-2008)

The National Home Builders Research Center collected information on sprinkler costs in a nationwide
survey completed by 102 builders who built 5,527 homes with fire sprinklers in 2006. The survey
results show the median cost of installing fire sprinklers in the 5,527 homes (median size 2,271 square
feet) was approximately $5,573.13 The average cost allocation was as follows:

Category Median Cost
Fire Sprinkler Permit Fee $ 198
Fire Sprinkler Design Fee $ 593
Water Service Pipe Changes $ 866
Water Meter Changes $ 172
Installation Cost $1,829
Total Median Cost to Builder $5,573

Another recent report by the Fire Protection Research Foundation, which used a smaller (30) sample of
homes built in different regions of the United States, showed a similar average builder cost of $5,127
per single family home.14

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill amends the Florida Building Code to prohibit inclusion of the provisions of the International
Residential Code mandating fire sprinklers in one- and two-family residences and townhouses either by
adoption by the commission or local amendment. The specifically named IRC section is R313.15

13 Fire Sprinklers and Homeowner Insurance, Lanlan Xu, National Association of Home Builders, September 14,2007.
14 Home Fire Sprinkler Cost Assessment, Final Report, Fire Protection Research Foundation, September 10, 2008.
15 IRC 2009 Edition Code, Section R313 - Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems

Townhouses
R313.1 Townhouse automatic fire sprinkler systems. An automatic residential fire sprinkler system shall be installed in
townhouses.
Exception: An automatic residential fire sprinkler system shall not be required when additions or alterations are made to existing
townhouses that do not have an automatic residential fire sprinkler system installed.
R313.1.1 Design and installation. Automatic residential fire sprinkler systems for townhouses shall be designed and installed in
accordance with Section P2904.
One- and Two-Family Dwellings
R313.2 One- and two-family dwellings automatic fire systems. Effective January 1, 2011, an automatic residential fire sprinkler
system shall be installed in one- and two- family dwellings.
Exception: An automatic residential fire sprinkler system shall not be required for additions or alterations to existing buildings that
are not already prOVided with an automatic residential sprinkler system.

STORAGE NAME: pcb22.GAP.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 2/18/2010



B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Adds subsection (14) to section 553.73, F.S., to exclude specified sections relating to fire
sprinklers in the IRC from inclusion in the Florida Building Code.

Section 2. Provides an effective date of July 1, 2010.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

The bill would prevent the addition of a provision to the Florida Building Code that, if adopted, would
add costs to the construction and final retail price of one- and two-family homes and townhouses.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

The bill does not appear to: require cities or counties to spend funds or take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds; reduce the authority that cities or counties have to raise revenues in the
aggregate; or reduce the percentage of a shared state tax or premium sales tax received by cities or
counties.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

R313.2.1 Design and installation. Automatic residential fire sprinkler systems shall be designed and installed in accordance with
Section P2904 or NFPA 13D.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb22.GAP.doc
2/18/2010

PAGE: 5



C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb22.GAP.doc
2118/2010

PAGE: 6



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

BILL YEAR

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to the fire sprinklers; amending s.

3 553.73, F.S.; prohibiting inclusion within the Florida

4 Building Code of certain mandatory fire sprinkler

5 provisions of the International Residential Code;

6 providing an effective date.

7

8 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

9

10 Section 1. Subsection (14) is added to section 553.73,

11 Florida Statutes, to read:

12

13

553.73 Florida Building Code.-

(14) The provisions of section R313 of the most current

14 version of the International Residential Code relating to

15 mandated fire sprinklers shall not be included within the

16 Florida Building Code as adopted by the Florida Building

17 Commission or available as a local amendment to the Florida

18 Building Code.

19 Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2010.

Page 1of 1
PCB GAP 10-22
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v





BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCB GAP 10-23 Voter Interface Device Requirements
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN./SIM. BILLS:

1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

Orig. Comm.:

REFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR

McDon~ Wiliiamso~W

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

Current Florida law allows persons with disabilities to vote on a voter interface device that meets the voting
system accessibility requirements for individuals with disabilities under section 301 of the federal Help America
Vote Act (HAVA) of 2002 and that meets the standards for accessible voting contained in s. 101.56062, F.S.
The law also requires that, in 2012, persons with disabilities vote on a voter interface device that not only
meets these requirements but also uses a paper ballot. At this time there is only one optical scan (paper)
system certified in the state as meeting the requirement for the 2012 deadline.

Sixty-three counties use touch screens, the majority of which are with audio ballots, to comply with HAVA
requirements. Only four counties, Duval, Hillsborough, Pinellas, and Sarasota, have a system for disabled
voters that meets the 2012 requirements.

The bill extends the 2012 paper ballot requirement for the voter interface device to 2016.

The bill takes effect upon becoming a law.

According to the Florida State Association of Supervisors of Elections, the cost of replacing touch screens in
order to implement the change for the 2012 election is more than $45 million that will have to borne by the
counties.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb23.GAP.doc
DATE: 2/27/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation

The Help America Vote Act of 2002 requires that a state's voting system be accessible for individuals
with disabilities, including accessibility for the blind and visually impaired, in a way that provides the
same opportunity for access and participation as is provided for other voters. In order to accomplish
this, each polling place must be equipped with at least one direct recording electronic voting system
(ORE) or other system equipped for individuals with disabilities.1

In 2007, the Florida Legislature changed the voting systems requirements for all voters, except
disabled voters, to cast a marksense ballot on an optical scan system. Each county was still required
to have one voter interface device in each polling place that met the accessibility requirement for
individuals with disabilities, which could be a ORE. By 2012, however, the changes in the law required
that disabled voters be provided a means to cast an independent, marksense ballot; Le., a paper-based
ballot system.2

Sixty-three counties meet the HAVA requirements for disabled voters through the use of touch screens
with audio ballots. Only four counties, Duval, Hillsborough, Pinellas, and Sarasota, meet the 2012
requirement through their purchase of AutoMark which, at this time, is the only state certified optical
scan (paper) system that meets the requirements of the law for 2012.3

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill extends the 2012 paper ballot requirement for disabled voters to 2016.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Amends s. 101.56075, F.S., to delay from 2012 to 2016 the implementation of the
requirement that persons with disabilities must vote on a voter interface device that uses a paper ballot.

1 Sec. 301 ofP.L. 107-252.
2 Ch. 2007-30, L.O.F., required many changes to the elections laws, including these. Section 101.56075, F.S., was created in section 6
of the chapter law.
3 Information provided by the Florida State Association of Supervisors ofElections in the "2010 FSASE Voting Equipment Survey
Cost of Replacing Touch Screens" and other documentation presented to the Governmental Affairs Policy Committee at its February
17, 20 I0 meeting.
STORAGE NAME: pcb23.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 2/27/2010



Section 2. Provides an effective date of upon becoming a law.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

See "Fiscal Comments."

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

According to a survey of all Supervisors of Elections by the Florida State Association of Supervisors of
Elections on February 11, 2010, the approximate current fiscal impact is estimated to be $45,014,556
for counties to purchase the equipment needed to be compliant with the 2012 statutory requirement.
The per county cost estimates range from a low of $50,000 to almost $7 million.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

The bill is exempt from the mandate requirements because it is amending the elections laws.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

In information provided to the Governmental Affairs Policy Committee at its meeting on February 17,
2010, was a list of boards of county commissioners that have voted in support of delaying the
implementation date to 2016. Sixty-five of the 67 boards of county commissioners voted in support of
the delay in implementation. This number includes Pinellas and Sarasota Counties which are currently
in compliance with the 2012 requirement.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb23.GAP.doc
2/27/2010

PAGE: 3



IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb23.GAP.doc
2/27/2010

PAGE: 4



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to voter interface device requirements;

amending s. 101.56075, F.S.; extending the timeframe

requiring that persons with disabilities vote on voter

interface devices meeting specified requirements;

providing an effective date.

8 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

9

10 Section 1. Subsection (3) of section 101.56075, Florida

11 Statutes, is amended to read:

12

13

101.56075 Voting methods.-

(3) By 2016 ~, persons with disabilities shall vote on

14 a voter interface device that meets the voter accessibility

15 requirements for individuals with disabilities under s. 301 of

16 the federal Help America Vote Act of 2002 and s. 101.56062 which

17 are consistent with subsection (1) of this section.

18 Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2010.

Page 1of 1
PCB GAP 10-23.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v





CHI\RLIE CRIST
Governor

LEO DIBENIGNO

Secretarg

FL· nRl·DA rnTTFRY)... v.r _ ~J ..... _.LJ _

February 17, 2010

The Honorable D. Alan Hays
Chairman
Government Operations Appropriations Committee
The Capitol, Room 221
402 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1300

The Honorable Robert C. Schenck
Chairman
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee
209 House Office Building
402 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1300

RE: The Florida Lottery's Headquarters Facility

Dear Chairman Hays and Chairman Schenck:

As the Florida Lottery's Chief Administrative Officer with executive leadership responsibility for
our facilities operations, Secretary Leo DiBenigno asked that I respond to your letter from
February 11, 2010. You requested a consolidation plan for the Florida lottery's leased
headquarters facility, and a written response addressing facility security concerns, the tenant
improvement allowance, and the rationale for using Lottery rule(s) for the lease procurement.

Space Consolidation Plan

Goal: Reduce excess office space in the Lottery's headquarters facility.

Strategies:
1. Free-up office space through consolidation and reconfiguration.
2. Secure new tenants.

The initial strategy is to reduce excess office space by first consolidating related Lottery work
units and reconfiguring work areas, as economically as possible, based on current space
standards. Emphasis will be placed on providing economies and efficiencies through shared
resources (e.g., business center equipment, file storage, etc.). Excess office space is not
located in large contiguous areas; instead, excess space is created incrementally due to
individual offices and common areas that exceed current standards.

250 VL.A.RRIOTT DRIVE • TALLA.HA.sSEE, FLORIDA" 32301 • (850) 487-7777
>v,\\'W.flalottery.com



Chairman Hays and Chairman Schenck
February 17,2010
Page 2

With the consotidation of Lottery work units and the resulting creation of contiguous available
space, the second strategy wiif be pursued to secure new tenants. To implement these two
strategies, the Florida Lottery wi!! engage an architectural engineering firm, utilize the services
of our tenant broker (Cushman & Wakefield), and consult with the Oepartment of Management
Services (OMS).

As background, OMS was recently consulted in regards to maximizing space utilization at the
most economical cost. At that time, OMS recommended that the services of a professional
architectural engineering firm be engaged. Such a firm would have the tools necessary to
provide recommendations for the most economical and effective space utilization, thereby
enhancing the "marketability" of space available for sublease.

The action plan described below will be completed by the architectural engineering firm and
Cushman & Wakefield in concert with OMS:

Action Plan

1. Develop a timetable for completion of the Action Plan.
2. Interview work unit managers and review work flow functions.
3. Analyze the security evaluation and operational study on file.
4. Analyze the Multi-State Lottery Association (MUSL) rules applicable to the Florida

Lottery for POWERBALL.
5. Conduct preliminary assessment of potentia! new tenants (both public and private).
6. Conduct a space needs analysis for program areas.
7. Apply space management principles using the most-recent OMS space utilization

standards.
8. Identify reconfiguration and consolidation opportunities taking into account, for example:

Existing hard wall offices, meeting rooms and hallways that were built in
compliance with standards that are now more than 22 years old;
Unique requirements associated with the presence of two data centers, draw
production activities, law enforcement activities, player access, etc.;
Utilities infrastructure to include electrical, plumbing, HVAC, security, fiber optics;
and,
Alternative ingress/egress options.

9, Identify necessary tenant improvements in anticipation of occupancy until at least July,
2018.

10. Identify potential new tenants (public and private) with space needs requirements and
prospective occupancy dates.

11. Prepare and submit to Lottery Executive Management:
- An executive summary of the analysis and recommendations that wiH result in the

greatest long-term value to the State of Florida by consolidating excess office
space and acquiring new tenants. (architectura! engineering firm);
A detailed work plan with an estimation of costs associated with the demolition
and reconfiguration of the facility, along with a proposed construction time table.
(architectural engineering firm); and
An executive summary listing potential new tenants that have been identified,
subject to space requirements, building renovation(s), adequate ingress/egress,
etc. (Cushman & Wakefield).



Chairman Hays and Chairman Schenck
February 17,2010
Page 3

While the emphasis in the action plan focuses on excess office space primarHy, available
warehouse space will also be taken into consideration with regards to securing tenants for
subleasing.

Security Concerns

Protecting the security and integrity of Lottery operations is paramount to public confidence and,
therefore, to the success of the department. To this end, section 24.1 08(7)(a) , Florida Statutes,
requires that the department undergo a periodic comprehensive study and evaluation of aU
aspects of operational security.

The principal security concerns for subleasing Lottery space have induded:

• live tickets in various areas throughout the building;

• The Lottery's gaming and financial computer systems, communication and network
structures, including the gaming system's host servers;

• Confidential data on retailers, vendors, employees and prize claimants;

• Game drawing equipment; and

• Division of Security's advanced forensic testing equipment.

The current physical layout of the headquarters building has not allowed the department to
isolate these areas from access or potential access by sub-tenants, their employees, vendors,
and clientele. The Lottery has a history of receiving high marks for its security controls for both
physical and technological assets and is committed to continuing that leve! of security. The
Lottery will work with the architectural engineering firm to ensure these requirements are
considered during the redesign or reconfiguration process.

Tenant Improvement Allowance (TIAl

A Tenant Improvement Allowance (TIA) of $2.34 milllon is to be used for consolidating Lottery
work units into a contiguous area that will result in a smailer footprint while facilitating the
opportunity for shared resources, such as copiers, printers, conference rooms, etc. Additionally,
renovation of the facility's common areas, such as the lobby, restrooms and break areas, are
planned. Taken together, these improvements should enhance the appeal of the facility to
potential tenants.

It should be noted that approximately $380,000 of the TIA has been expended in the demoHtion
of excess office space and building of the on-site draw production studio. The T!A funds also
cover required architectural/engineering and permitting fees. as well as equipment and furniture
relocation expenses, associated with the reconfiguration and renovation of space.



Chairman Hays and Chairman Schenck
February 17, 2010
Page 4

Use of Lottery Rule 53ER87-24

Rule 53ER87-24 was the purchasing rule in effect in 1997, when the Lottery's Request for
Proposal (RFP) for a headquarters lease was issued. Thus, it was the governing rule in effect at
the time of the RFP and was used for that reason.

The current lease, dated July 11, 2008, is a renewal of the 1997 lease, but on more favorable
terms than the original lease. As stated above, the original lease was competitively acquired
through an RFP and although the RFP nominally took place under rule 53ER87-24, the rule's
substantive requirements were similar if not identical to chapter 255, F!orida Statutes.

Background

Section 24.105(13), Florida Statutes, authorizes the adoption of alternative purchasing
procedures by the Lottery. As stated in the 1987 legislation that created the Lottery, structures
and procedures appropriate to the performance of other governmental functions would not
necessarily be appropriate to the operation of a state lottery and thus, alternative purchasing
rules were statutorily authorized to be adopted by the Lottery.

Rule 53ER87-24 was the purchasing rule adopted by the Lottery in i987, at or near the time of
Lottery startup. Substantively, the rule closely paralleled the provisions of chapter 255, Florida
Statutes; both required competitive bidding for leases of 2,000 square feet or more.

In contrast to its 1987 counterpart, chapter 255 currently requires competitive bidding for leases
of 5,000 square feet or more. The Lottery's current facility leasing rule: 53ER09-51, directly
incorporates the competitive bidding requirements of chapter 255 for leases of 10,000 square
feet or more. Thus, while rule 53ER09~51 increases the minimum square footage for
competitive bidding to 10,000 square feet, it retains the requirement for open competition for all
leases, regardless of size. For leases under 10,000 square feet, the Lottery rule requires
competitive offers to be obtained, followed by negotiation of specific terms, conditions and cost.
For these smaller leases, the Lottery has used its tenant broker, Cushman & Wakefield, to
conduct comparative market analyses of potential lease facilities and to assist in negotiating
lease terms, conditions and cost. All leases acquired under rule 53ER09-51 are required to
provide the greatest long-term benefit to tile State. The criteria for determining "greatest iong­
term benefit to the state" are set forth in section 24.1 05(13), Florida Statutes.

Both of the referenced rUles, 53ER87-24 and 53ER09-51, were adopted pursuant to section
24.105(13), Florida Statutes. In adopting such procedures, the Lottery's goal has been to
streamline the procurement process while retaining the open, competitive nature of Lottery
procurements. This is one of the important tools the Lottery has used to gain the operational
efficiency that has been reported favorably in various OPPAGA studies. It is a tool that was
contemplated by the Legislature in 1987 when it directed the Lottery to operate in the manner of
an entrepreneurial business enterprise. The Lottery has made judicious use of this authority for
more than 20 years, again, contributing to the efficiency of its operations while maintaining fair
and open competition in its procurement activities.



Chairman Hays and Chairman Schenck
February 17, 2010
PageS

Space Utilization History

In an effort to further respond to questions that arose during the February 3 and 9 Committee
meetings, please see the following summary of actions taken by the Florida Lottery to obtain
subtenants for available office space in the headquarters facility:

July 2003 - Relocated the Tallahassee district office to the headquarters facility_
Approximately 2,000 square feet of office space and 3,423 square feet of warehouse space are
used to meet the district's space needs.

October 2006 - FDLE: approximately 14,700 square feet for a DNA lab. FDLE cited
environmental and design concerns, which resulted in its pursuit of other space.

November 2006 - RESPECT of Florida: approximately 7,000 square feet for a t~shirt

screen printing facility. The Florida Lottery was pursuing a contract where an employment
center for disabled persons would manufacture the Lottery's screen printed t-shirts. However,
the employment center had just initiated the prans, permitting and loan process for its facility in
Madison County.

July 2007 - Hispanic Market Spanish Language Advertising contract: Offered space for
co-location of account management staff, if the successful firm did not have an established
presence in Florida. Presence must have been established within 90 days after contract award.
Selected firm had an established presence; therefore, opted to not co-locate.

January 2008 -Instant Ticket Games contract: Mandated account management staff co­
location, and offered space for co-location of telemarketing function. Relocation of the
established telemarketing function from elsewhere in Florida would have resulted in increased
contract cost; however, account management staff is co-located at Lottery headquarters.

May 2008 - Auditing Services contract: Offered office space to successful firm in the
event they sought to establish a presence in Tallahassee, Fla. Selected firm had an established
presence in Tallahassee.

May 2009 - General Market Advertising contract: Mandated co-loca.tion of account
management staff. On September 8, 2009, account management staff co-located to Lottery
headquarters.

November 2009 - Production Services contract: Offered office space to successful firm
in the event co-location was necessary_ Selected firm had an established presence in
Tal~ahassee; therefore, co-location was not necessary.

April 2010 - Game Draws will commence in April 2010. The Florida Lottery completed
the renovation of excess office space into a new Draw Studio occupying 3,756 square feet of
space.



Chairman Hays and Chairman Schenck
February 17, 2010
Page 6

Chairman Hays, I appreciate your visit on the afternoon of February 11. This provided us an
opportunity to show you first-hand some of the challenges associated with securing new tenants
and consolidating our present headquarters facility.

I trust that this letter is responsive to your inquiry, and I look forward to addressing any further
questions that either of you may have on this matter.

Respectfully,

-::-~~~~-
Terry Perkins
Chief Administrative Officer

c: Secretary Leo DiBenigno



Larry Cretul
Speaker

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

Wednesday, March 3, 2010
8:00 AM -10:30 AM

306 HOB
Addendum A - 3/2/10 6:00 PM

Robert C. "Rob" Schenck
Chair



COUNCIL/COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. HB 1207 (2010)

Amendment No. 5

COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED (Y/N)

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION (Y/N)

FAILED TO ADOPT (Y /N)

WITHDRAWN (Y/N)

OTHER

1 Council/Committee hearing bill: Governmental Affairs Policy

2 Committee

3 Representative(s) McKeel offered the following:

4

5 Amendment

6 Remove line 236 and insert:

7 parties, affiliated party committees, or political committees or

8 expenditures in support of

Page 1 of 1
Amendment 5 HB 1207.docx



COUNCIL/COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. HB 1207 (2010)

Amendment No. 6

COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED (Y/N)

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION (Y/N)

FAILED TO ADOPT (Y/N)

WITHDRAWN (Y/N)

OTHER

1 Council/Committee hearing bill: GoverDmental Affairs Policy

2 Committee

3 Representative(s) McKeel offered the following:

4

5 Amendment (with tit1e amendment)

6 Between lines 1281 and 1282, insert:

7 Section 17. Paragraph (a) of subsection (4) of section

8 106.141, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

9 106.141 Disposition of surplus funds by candidates.-

10 (4) (a) Except as provided in paragraph (b), any candidate

11 required to dispose of funds pursuant to this section shall, at

12 the option of the candidate, dispose of such funds by any of the

13 following means, or any combination thereof:

14 1. Return pro rata to each contributor the funds that have

15 not been spent or obligated.

16 2. Donate the funds that have not been spent or obligated

17 to a charitable organization or organizations that meet the

18 qualifications of s. 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Page 1 of 3
Amendment 6 HB 1207.docx



COUNCIL/COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. HB 1207 (2010)

Amendment No. 6
19 3. Give not more than $10,000 of the funds that have not

20 been spent or obligated to the affiliated party committee or

21 political party of which such candidate is a member, except that

22 a candidate for the Florida Senate may give not more than

23 $30,000 of such funds to the affiliated party committee or

24 political party of which the candidate is a member.

25

26

4. Give the funds that have not been spent or obligated:

a. In the case of a candidate for state office, to the

27 state, to be deposited in either the Election Campaign Financing

28 Trust Fund or the General Revenue Fund, as designated by the

29 candidate; or

30 b. In the case of a candidate for an office of a political

31 subdivision, to such political subdivision, to be deposited in

32 the general fund thereof.

33 Section 18. Paragraph (a) of subsection (4) of section

34 106.143, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

35 106.143 Political advertisements circulated prior to

36 election; requirements.-

37 (4) (a) Any political advertisement, including those paid

38 for by a political party or affiliated party committee, other

39 than an independent expenditure, offered by or on behalf of a

40 candidate must be approved in advance by the candidate. Such

41 political advertisement must expressly state that the content of

42 the advertisement was approved by the candidate and must state

43 who paid for the advertisement. The candidate shall provide a

44 written statement of authorization to the newspaper, radio

45 station, television station, or other medium for each such

Page 2 of 3
Amendment 6 HB 1207.docx



COUNCIL/COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. HB 1207 (2010)

Amendment No. 6
46 advertisement submitted for publication, display, broadcast, or

47 other distribution.

48

49

50

51 TITLE AMENDMENT

52 Remove line 84 and insert:

53 an issue at any time; amending s. 106.141, F.S.; adding

54 affiliated party committees to the list of entities to which a

55 candidate can donate surplus funds; amending s. 106.143, F.S.;

56 requiring an affiliated party committee, like a political party,

57 to obtain advance approval by a candidate for political

58 advertisements; amending s. 106.1439, F.S.;

Page 3 of 3
Amendment 6 HB 1207.docx


	Text1: REVISED


